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Financial Highlights
TSt E

For the year ended December 31, 2020 For the year ended December 31, 2019 % Charjge
BE-T_TH+_A=t+—HIEEE BE-T-NE+-A=t+—HILEE B LEES)

i || REVENUE g3 R
20,961,708 21,375,248 1.9,
RMB Thousand AR¥FT RMB Thousand AR¥FT L4 0

—

| GROSS PROFIT £

8,240,896 8,491,463

- 0,
RMB Thousand ARMT5E RMB Thousand ARMF 5t 3'0 Yo

L3

| GROSS PROFIT MARGIN £/

3903 % 3907 % _004 %

TVEBITDA MIRHIE FUR-MHBMEREA ||
5,897,109 5,889,609

(o)
RMB Thousand AR¥FT RMB Thousand AR¥F7T 0.1 /0

B
e
=4

—

| NET PROFIT &l

3,848,653 3,840,571

RMB Thousand AR¥FT RMB Thousand AR¥ Tt 0020/0

" NET PROFIT MARGIN &iflE

18.4 18.09 0.4

—

| EARNINGS PER SHARE SIREF

0.28 rve A m5% 0.28 rvs AR 0.2%
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Five-Year Financial Summary i

L FMHEE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS BOES
FY2020 FY2019 FY2018 FY2017 FY2016
—ECE =N =)\ 22—+ R
MEERE HEE HEE MBERE MBEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARETT ABRETT ARETT
Revenue Was 20,961,708 21375248 20,863,557 19,799,109 17,841,887
Cost of sales THEE B A (12,720,812) (12,883,785)  (12,812,816)  (12,341,484)  (11,001,487)
Gross profit EF 8,240,896 8,491,463 8,050,741 7,457,625 6,340,400
Other income and gains Htw A & W= 1,036,617 886,733 649,339 665,982 360,210
Selling, distribution and THE ~ AT RATIEL
administrative expenses Fa (4,161,329) (4,230,482) (3,949,250) (3,772,007) (3,218,966)
Finance costs FRE AL A (9,574) (1,413) = = (4,705)
Profit before tax AR T 5,106,610 5,146,301 4,750,830 4,351,600 3,976,939
Income tax expense FRiSMFYx (1,257,957)  (1,305,730) (1,033,469) (917,897) (840,146)
Profit for the year FREH 3,848,653 3,840,571 3,717,361 3,433,703 3,136,793
Attributable to: LUR A LFEML :
Owners of the parent BATEBA 3,848,653 3,840,571 3,717,361 3,433,703 3,136,793
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ROTE R R LR

As at December 31,

®w+=—B=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ZEZEF T-hEFE ZEZ-N\E ZZ—+tHF ZERE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFr ARETT ARETT AREBTT ARETT
Total assets BEEEE 22,710,756 19,947,612 18,245,489 16,326,079 16,480,385
Total liabilities BR4E%E 5,245,320 3,670,986 2,830,819 2,539,894 2,614,508
Total equity AR R 17,465,436 16,276,626 15,414,670 13,786,185 13,865,877
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Chairman’s Statement
IEREE

Dear respectful shareholders,

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic has changed the world economic landscape
and profoundly affected the consumer market. In the face of the pandemic,
the Group demonstrated its anti-risk capacity and strong resilience of the
brand. Through comprehensive product upgrades, brand enhancement and
full channel expansion across all industry segments, the Group resumed
strong sales growth in the second half of the year, with a growth rate of 5.4%.
In particular, the household consumption segment capitalized on the post-
pandemic demand for healthy products and grew at a rapid rate of 14.7% at
full swing in the second half of the year. Overall, the Group’s annual results
remained solid, with revenue falling by only 1.9% to RMB20.96 billion for the
year. Profitability improved for the fifth consecutive year, with net profit
margin rising to a record high of 18.4%. In a complex macro environment, the
Group has placed greater emphasis on risk tolerance. Through optimizing
sales structure and improving operational efficiency, the Group’s net operating
cash inflow reached RMB4.22 billion and net cash holdings increased to
RMB12.38 billion, putting the Group in a healthier financial position and laying
a solid foundation for future growth.

After three years of development, the Group has formed a layout of three
major industries, namely household consumption, snack food and ready-to-
drink beverage, and has further defined its future development objectives for
the medium to long term to consolidate its leading position in the snack food
and ready-to-drink beverage industries, expand its presence in the household
consumption industry, and develop plant-based protein into a new leading
industry for the Group. Based on these strategic objectives, the Group has
targeted at consumer demand and promoted product innovation and full
channel expansion centering on the two core areas of product healthiness
and product quality.

In the wake of the pandemic, consumers’ health consciousness has been
strengthened and the demand for main meals has been on the rise. Thanks to
the Group’s foresight and advance planning for the household consumption
market, the soy milk and short shelf-life bread business has been presented
with significant development opportunities, accounting for 14.1% of the
Group’s total sales. With the stabilization of the macro economy, the Group’s
strengths in multi-brand and multi-category operations will be further
highlighted. By continuing to strengthen the triple force of brand power,
product power and channel power in the household consumption segment,
Doubendou and Meibeichen will become the main driving engine for the
Group’s future growth.

6 Dali Foods Group Company Limited -
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Chairman’s Statement

ETHERES

With the increasing health awareness of consumers, the plant-based protein
category has attracted widespread attention in the global market and the
market has been growing rapidly. Doubendou has become the leading brand
in the domestic soy milk market after four years of accumulation. In 2020,
Doubendou has maintained its leading market share and has made great
progress in product system construction and channel management. In terms
of product system, Doubendou has achieved comprehensive coverage of the
whole price range, different consumer groups and consumer scenarios. The
strategic launch of the first room temperature plant-based yogurt in China has
boosted the brand momentum and complemented the soy milk series to
further open up the market space. On the other hand, we have implemented
differentiated channel management based on product characteristics, which
further improved channel execution.

The short shelf-life bread market has been growing rapidly in recent years.
After two years of market development, Meibeichen has completed the first
phase of nationwide layout, with 18 factories strategically covering the
national market. The number of terminals reached about 130,000, and the
network coverage continued to increase, establishing its market position as a
nationwide brand. Based on its solid infrastructure, in 2020, Meibeichen
focused on consolidating sales quality and emphasized five key areas, namely
the distributor team, terminal network, distribution network, product portfolio
and operational efficiency, to increase the sales scale of individual network
and strengthen the cost-efficiency ratio, laying the foundation for the next
stage of industry scale-up.

Snack food industry maintains its leading position in the domestic market.
With a deep and wide channel network and an extensive product portfolio, the
snack food industry has established a strong market barrier. In 2020, our snack
food segment followed the market trend and actively introduced new
products with different flavors and rich nutrition, thus consolidating our
product and brand power. The ready-to-drink beverage industry experienced
a certain decline due to the macro-environment as well as some channel
adjustment factors, but in the second half of the year, through a series of
measures such as channel deepening and brand strengthening, the situation
has been turned around to achieve growth. With the further development of
new product sales and the results of deep channel development, the snack
food industry and ready-to-drink beverage industry will continue to achieve
healthy growth.

BEHEERREEHNTERS  EYMEQRE
EERRHSSIEEZNEL > HHRELE -2
FEREBUENER > EERABRRSHHHH
REDE - “ZTFF > IAIHHBNERFER
FES TERBRABENREEETENST
RENEY - TERBER LEATEERYLE
B~ TRBHBABINEBESRNEEERE - 8
BEEELBERNEREREYEY > e miEs
BB BEMRINCHER  E—THTRETEHZE
Blem—nH REEMFRETERCHRE
B RERTHE—TRS -

RAREETHIFRARESRER - RIEREHE
WMENTIHHAN > F—RBENEZEMHREET
BE 18ETRREEEBEEE TS ; KIKHE
EINREE  BARBEERENEERERT
BT 2EM MR TISML - ERNRENE
RER _ECEFEREREMSEHELS
EAARBMAEETESD  HEHEBmERK Kk
MR B EmEEREBEEMERAT  1E
SEEMRIHERER > REBWLEE > H T
ERPEXERE(CETEER -

HRE R REXEEANTISRETERMA o BER
BERENEENREBEMG  UKBHEEENER
HE AEBRmERCDHIERKIHIGES -
TECTE KHRRBETHEE - BB
L FEEHEEREOKES - BREERN
Edn > BEEMNIKRBES o BERERE EEMR
RHERENZEBMREREAR  HRE—ET
B BTNFFEBREFRM - mERtE—ZRT
23 CENEEE  BRER - BERKim
HERNE—PIE) » URREFRHNROAER
RE R R ERREEERERIER
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Chairman’s Statement

ETRERESE

In terms of channel construction, the Group has achieved full channel
widening in line with the market trend, the advantages of traditional channels
have been consolidated, the penetration of modern channels has been further
enhanced, e-commerce sales have grown significantly, community group
purchase has started to take shape, and channel efficiency has been further
improved. Through the refinement of the division of labor within the team and
the reorganization of the distribution system, the professionalism and
maturity of the sales system continued to improve. The precise matching of
channel resources and product characteristics will provide strong support for
the scaling-up of new products.

In 2020, the Group maintained strong profitability and a healthy cash flow. The
Group recorded revenue of RMB20.96 billion and gross profit of RMB8.24
billion, with a gross profit margin of 39.3%; Net profit amounted to RMB3.85
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 0.2%, with a net profit margin
of 18.4%, representing an increase of 0.4 percentage point. Cash increased by
RMB1.43 billion throughout the year, with net cash reaching RMB12.38 billion,
representing an increase of 12.9% as compared with the end of 2019.

Given the outstanding result performance and ample cash flow of the
Company, the Board proposes to distribute a final dividend of HKD0.085 per
Share for 2020, and the dividend payout ratio for the year is approximately
50%.

Looking ahead to 2021, with the further strengthening of domestic demand,
the consumption trend during the epidemic will be transformed into new
development momentum, driving the iterative evolution of the consumer
goods industry and making the trend of the strong gets stronger prominent.
The Group will continue to seize the opportunity of development and continue
to improve product quality and promote product upgrade in response to the
market trend of healthy consumption. In regards to corporate governance, we
will further improve the ESG organizational structure and working mechanism,
devote ourselves to implementing ESG management requirements into the
whole process of business operation, and continuously make the ESG
management more scientific and systematic.

During the past year, the Group achieved significant development, which was
inextricably linked with the staunch support of our business partners, the
effort made by all of our Group’s staff and the trust of consumers. On behalf of
the Board, | would like to express our gratitude to all Dali staff, business
partners and consumers. In 2021, Dali will adhere to the principle of “Creating
Quality with Heart” with a pragmatic yet proactive corporate culture. We will
keep our faith to offer more delicious and healthy products for the consumers.
We will continue to strive for enormous returns for our shareholders, and forge
ahead to new achievements for the Group’s business.

8 Dali Foods Group Company Limited -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
SEERESSI

In 2020, China’s economy demonstrated resilience despite the widespread
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the global economy. In 2020, China’s
GDP grew by 2.3%, exceeding RMB100 trillion for the first time. Despite a
decline of 3.9% for the year, total retail sales of consumer goods resumed
positive growth for consecutive months since the third quarter owing to the
rapid rebound of China’s economy. Although the pandemic has considerably
impacted the lifestyle of people and the food industry, consumers’ pursuit of
food quality, health and nutrition has also been stimulated. This has
accelerated industry upgrading and increased industry concentration, thus
highlighting the value of the leading brands. As the domestic and foreign
political and economic environment stabilizes, domestic demand will further
recover, while the consumption pattern during the pandemic will transform
into new development momentum, promoting the iterated evolution of
consumer goods industry, and the trend of market concentration with strong
players getting stronger will be more prominent.

In 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic has profoundly changed the way people live
and consume. On one hand, with the prolonged time at home during the
pandemic, enormous demands for main meal food were released, bringing
huge development opportunities to the short shelf-life bread market, and the
market growth prospect has become clearer. Since its launch in 2018,
Meibeichen has achieved a nationwide layout of production bases, sales
networks and logistics networks. In 2020 Meibeichen built on its existing
foundation to comprehensively boost its network coverage and supply chain
development, further strengthened its core competitiveness and rapidly
increased its market share. On the other hand, the pandemic has enhanced
consumers’ health consciousness, cementing the pursuit of healthy, green
and nutritious food as a long-term trend in the market. Characterized by
natural health benefits and suitability for household consumption, plant-
based protein products enjoy clear growth drivers and huge market potential
in China. Against this market backdrop, the Group is confident in establishing
plant-based protein as a new leading segment of the Group. As a leading
brand of packaged soy milk, Doubendou continued to promote full channel
penetration, multi-scenarios layout and stratified pricing in 2020, laying a solid
foundation for further industrialization. As the key players in the household
consumption industry, Meibeichen and Doubendou recorded overall sales of
RMB2.963 billion, accounting for 14.1% of the total sales of the Group, thereby
consolidating their leading position in the industry in 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEES RO

In response to the growing trend of divergent consumer habits, the Group has
accelerated the research and development of new products and enriched its
product portfolio, striving to become a leader in the trend of consumption
upgrade. In terms of the snack food industry, the Group established a refined
business segment in 2020, and upgraded its products to meet the diversified
needs of the target groups of high spending power and younger generations
with more diverse tastes and flavors and more sophisticated packaging
designs. In terms of the household consumption industry, the Group has
developed a variety of new products, including short shelf-life bread, soy milk
and yogurt to meet the needs of different consumption scenarios through
various flavors and packaging. Among them, “Flogurt” is the first domestic
room temperature plant-based yogurt which caters for the current demand of
consumption upgrade with its outstanding craftsmanship, delicious flavors
and healthy ingredients.

In line with market trends, the Group implemented an all-encompassing
expansion to consolidate its advantages in traditional channels, increase
penetration of modern channels, significantly increase e-commerce sales,
establish groundworks for community group purchases and further improve
channel efficiency. In particular, the e-commerce segment covered all top
e-commerce platforms and accelerated the development on emerging
content e-commerce platforms in terms of the channel expansion, and
precisely matched products and marketing resources to rapidly increase sales,
recording a sales growth of 45.2% in the e-commerce segment, accounting for
6.8% of the Group’s overall sales of food and beverage. In the future, the Group
will continue optimize its customer resources, enhance its professional team
and actively seek for emerging channels development opportunities to inject
new momentum into its business development.

Looking ahead, the application of new consumption scenarios and new
models will continue to create tremendous business opportunities, and the
Group will also create new growth drivers through continuous improvement.
The Group will firmly grasp the huge business opportunities brought by the
household consumption industry and promote plant-based protein as the
Group’s new leading segment. It will consolidate its position in the snack food
and ready-to-drink beverage industries, so that the three major segments of
snack food, ready-to-drink beverage and household consumption can
advance together. The Group will utilize differentiated products and star
products under its seven major brands to cultivate channels, strengthen brand
building and continuously increase market coverage. The Group will also
expand the business team dedicated to emerging channels to continuously
explore their market potential. The Group believes that the industry strategy
and management system will be clearer after the pandemic, which will lay the
foundation for healthy growth of the overall results in the future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEES RO

In 2020, the Group’s revenue reached RMB20.962 billion, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 1.9%. Meanwhile, revenue grew significantly in the second
half of the year, representing a year-on-year increase of 5.4%. The revenue of
household consumption segment increased year-on-year by 11.5% to
RMB2.963 billion, while the revenue of snack food segment increased year-on-
year by 0.6% to RMB10.213 billion and the revenue of ready-to-drink beverage
segment decreased year-on-year by 13.5% to RMB6.176 billion. The gross
profit amounted to RMB8.241 billion, representing a year-on-year decrease of
3.0%. The gross profit of household consumption, snack food and ready-to-
drink beverage segments were RMB1.391 billion, RMB3.852 billion and
RMB2.956 billion, respectively, representing year-on-year increase of 5.7%,
increase of 1.5% and decrease of 11.4%, respectively. The Group’s overall
gross profit margin was 39.3%, representing a decrease of 0.4 percentage
point as compared with last year; profit before tax was RMB5.107 billion,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 0.8%; and net profit increased by 0.2%
year-on-year to RMB3.849 billion, with a net profit margin of 18.4%,
representing an increase of 0.4 percentage point. Cash flow remained strong,
with cash increasing by RMB1.433 billion for the year and net cash reaching
RMB12.375 billion, representing an increase of 12.9% as compared with the
end of 2019.

HOUSEHOLD CONSUMPTION INDUSTRY

In the first half of the year, sales growth in the household consumption
industry was sluggish due to the shutdown of factories and logistic systems
under the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic in the first quarter, but saw a
strong growth momentum in the second half of the year. Overall sales revenue
increased by 11.5% to RMB2.963 billion in 2020 from RMB2.657 billion in 2019.
In particular, after a year of team building, the sales team, distributor team
and key establishments of the household consumption industry have been
further strengthened and equipped with strong execution and quick response
capabilities, laying the foundation for the next phase of market development.

. Short Shelf-life Bread

Intensified urbanization and quicker pace of life have boosted the
demand for convenient breakfast, driving the sustained rapid growth of
the short shelf-life bread market. After two years of market
development, Meibeichen has become a leading national brand in the
short shelf-life bread market.
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As of 2020, the Group has established over 130,000 retail terminals by
setting up 18 factories to cover markets of all provincial capitals and key
prefecture-level cities and a logistic system with countrywide coverage.
In 2020, we utilized our capabilities of multiple category operation and
cross-region development to focus on increasing our scale, thus
achieving rapid market expansion, quality enhancement of terminal
outlets and steady improvement in profitability. Five specific measures
were implemented: (i) On top of continuous expansion of the size of
distributors, we strengthened team building to develop a mature
distributor team; (ii) we expanded network coverage, strengthened
network penetration rate and improved the quality of network sales; (iii)
we optimized delivery network and improved distribution efficiency in
order to meet the requirements of distribution frequency and
continuously improve return rate; (iv) we optimized product selection
and built a diverse product portfolio; and (v) we optimized costs and
expenses and steadily improved profitability.

Looking forward, we will build on the solid foundation to continue to
strengthen our nationwide layout, expand the scale of our infrastructure
and achieve rapid and large-scale development, with a view to
becoming the most influential short shelf-life food brand in China.

Soy Milk

With natural health benefits and suitability for household consumption,
plant-based protein products have once again garnered industry-wide
attention this year as consumers’ health awareness increased after the
pandemic. According to Euromonitor, the market size of plant-based
protein beverage in China was RMB53.7 billion in 2019, with soy milk
being the fastest growing segment. The market size of packaged soy
milk was RMB12.4 billion in 2019, representing a compounded growth
of 12% over the past five years. Online sales were particularly
encouraging as relevant data showed that sales of plant-based protein
beverage on Alibaba’s e-commerce platform registered a nearly 10
times growth in 2020, far outperforming other beverage categories.

After about four years of brand building, Doubendou continues to enrich
its product portfolio, develop star products, improve its channel
network, and provide guidance and education so that consumers know
more about the liquid packaged soy milk, which is of high quality, highly
nutritious with no additives and can be kept at room temperature.
According to Euromonitor, the market share of Doubendou in China’s
soy milk sector in 2019 was 15%, making it a leading brand in the
industry.
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In terms of product portfolio, Doubendou has substantially completed
the construction of its product structure to fully cover every price band,
different consumer groups and consumption scenarios. The four
product series, namely organic soy milk, pure soy milk, original soy milk
and Weizhen soy milk, have formed a differentiated price band covering
the high-end, mid-range and mass markets to meet the needs of specific
consumer groups and consumption scenarios. In particular, Weizhen
soy milk has been well received by many consumers for its desirable
price/performance ratio and has achieved remarkable results in
traditional channels, modern channels and e-commerce channels in
2020. In terms of new product promotion, the Group recognized
consumers’ demand for plant-based protein beverages in various
scenarios and launched Flogurt, the first plant-based yogurt kept at
room temperature in China, in early 2021. Through the nationwide
rollout and large-scale sales of Weizhen soy milk and Flogurt plant-
based yogurt, Doubendou continued to expand its consumer base and
strengthen brand education, laying the foundation for other product
lines to further open up the market.

In terms of team and channel building, with four years of experience
under its belt, Doubendou’s independent sales team has obtained
strong execution and quick response capabilities. In 2020, the sales
team implemented differentiated channel management for each
product line to improve channel control and achieve full channel
expansion in line with market trends. In addition, it further developed
model markets and key markets in the national market and
continuously optimized regional sales quality in order to lay a solid
foundation for industrial development.

Looking forward, Doubendou will continue to develop star products
and enrich product flavors, packaging and specifications to capture the
ever-changing market needs and opportunities, while putting extensive
channel resources into suitable products to achieve effective market
penetration. In addition, it will continue to expand its consumer base,
making quick strides towards the goal of “RMB10 billion revenue” for the
brand and building the leading plant-based protein industry in China.
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SNACK FOOD INDUSTRY

As a leading enterprise in the snack food sector in China, the Group has a
leading market share with its rich product portfolio and extensive channel
network. There are three categories of snack food products under the Group:
bakery, potato puffed food and biscuits. Through a wide range of SKUs (stock
keeping units) and continuous product innovation, the Group is capable of
catering to product preferences of various local consumer markets and fully
satisfying the consumption demands from different groups and various
scenarios. In terms of channel network, with the depth and breadth of the
Group’s channel network, the distribution of its products across the nation
extends to town and village level, thereby establishing a strong channel
barrier.

With the continuous development of the consumer market, consumer groups
are increasingly sophisticated in pursuit of customization and differentiation,
showing different consumption patterns and channel preferences. The Group
is mindful of this trend and has been refining its channel management and
new product launch to further increase its operational efficiency, thereby
driving revenue and gross profit growth. Despite the impacts of the pandemic
in the first half of the year, the snack food segment saw a significant growth in
the second half of the year, with sales revenue from the snack food industry
increasing by 0.6% from RMB10.154 billion in 2019 to RMB10.213 billion in
2020. Sales and profit will continue to trend upward as the value of the refined
snack food industry becomes more prominent and the channel reform bears
greater fruits.

. Bakery

Bakery is the largest category in the snack food industry in China.
According to the statistics of Euromonitor, the market capacity of
bakery exceeded RMB230 billion in 2019, and Daliyuan was the leading
brand in the bakery sector in China with the largest market share in the
industry. In terms of products, Daliyuan offers a wide range of products,
including bread, cakes, swiss rolls, pies, traditional pastries and novelty
pastries. In 2020, the Group carried out product expansion surrounding
its core and best-selling products. For instance, a series of additional
products, such as pies and cakes, was launched in the fourth quarter.
Through unique positioning and packaging of products, the Group was
able to satisfy consumers’ demand for healthy products, thereby
increasing their repeat purchase rate. In terms of channel, the Group
further strengthened the advantages of its traditional channels with
existing products and achieved excellent sales results through
differentiated products and precise positioning in modern channels and
e-commerce channels.
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At present, the domestic bakery market is still relatively fragmented and
there is ample room for consolidation. As more and more consumers
value brand trustworthiness after the COVID-19 pandemic, top brands
are set to expand market share at a faster pace. Due to the dual
tailwinds of market environment, Daliyuan will continue to consolidate
its existing advantages, promote new products as replacement for old
ones and improve channel efficiency in order to continuously boost the
revenue scale and gross profit level.

Potato Puffed Food

As the leading domestic potato chips brand in China, Copico has built
strong brand advantages through packaging upgrade and efficient use
of various marketing efforts, enjoying a good reputation among young
consumers. In 2020, the Group increased its investment in innovative
marketing to continuously raise the influence of Copico among young
consumers. First, as a supplement to new products, packages featuring
Dunhuang elements, which are in line with the current market trend of
vintage fashion, have been launched in order to deliver a fun and
fashionable brand image. Second, we used a variety of innovative
channels to achieve full online and offline coverage, for example, by
interacting with young consumers through rap music documentaries
that resonate with the brand tone of Copico, hot topics on TikTok and
customized songs, thus further playing out the brand value.

Looking forward, Copico will continue to invest in brand marketing to
stay vibrant and fresh and adopt differentiated packaging that fits the
sales of multiple channels, thereby continuously increasing Copico’s
market share.

Biscuit

As a household name in China’s market, Haochidian has great brand
awareness, with a comprehensive product portfolio covering a variety of
consumption scenarios and consumption groups. In 2020, Haochidian
launched a number of upgraded and original products for young
consumers, including but not limited to two-color cookie, an upgrade
from Zhenhao cookie, and the newly launched Suda series. The
upgraded products and original products met the diversified needs of
the target consumer groups in terms of appearance, texture and flavor
and were well received by the market. The Group has established a
sound collection of sub-brands, including children’s snack market, mass
consumption group and high-end sub-markets. Through exploration of
sub-markets, Haochidian has further improved its product positioning,
expanded its consumer base, and provided consumers with more
consumption choices.
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Looking forward, Haochidian will work on product positioning, channel
and team to strengthen its core competitiveness, promote brand
upgrade, increase mid-to-high-end market penetration and bring higher
profit margins to the Group.

READY-TO-DRINK BEVERAGE INDUSTRY

Ready-to-drink beverage industry mainly consists of Hi-Tiger energy drinks,
Hegizheng herbal tea and other beverage businesses. In 2020, the COVID-19
pandemic shut down travel and outdoor consumption scenarios and posed
certain challenges to the ready-to-drink beverage market. In the face of the
pandemic, the Group reacted swiftly and strictly managed the inventory level
and controlled the price system. In particular, as the pandemic subsided in the
second half of the year, the Group actively explored new channel growth
opportunities and innovative marketing tools, resulting in stable sales for the
overall segment. The sales revenue of the Group’s ready-to-drink beverage
industry dropped by 13.5% from RMB7.142 billion in 2019 to RMB6.176 billion
in 2020.

In terms of new product launches, the Group launched a new generation of
milk tea products — soy milk tea in November to meet the demand for
consumption upgrades in view of the huge market potential for milk tea,
especially the strong demand for new milk tea from young consumers. Soy
milk tea is an innovative tea drink available nationwide and is highly
appreciated by consumers. Looking forward, the Group believes that there is
still a gap in the per capita consumption of the ready-to-drink beverage
industry between China and developed countries. As such, there is still room
for improvement in the market in the future. The Group will continue to
capture the industry trend of high-end and health-oriented development and
push for new innovations to drive sales growth.

. Energy Drinks

In 2020, although the decline in outdoor activities has brought certain
impacts on energy drinks, the Group managed to achieve stable sales in
the segment in the second half of the year by strengthening its terminal
control and channel efficiency, as well as formulating effective
marketing strategies. In terms of channel management, the Group has
set up its own team, putting meticulous effort into its terminal sales
outlets with a focus on the six major consumption scenarios, i.e.,
schools, stations, sports venues, entertainment venues, offices and
emerging venues. On the other hand, the Group has cemented its
market position in high-tier cities through target development in key
cities. Riding on the brand effect to facilitate the top-down approach for
its channels, the Group has increased its market penetration rate. On
account of the professional brand image of Hi-Tiger, the team has
participated in developing a thorough sales plan for its terminal
network outlets, devised marketing activities and designed product
displays to enhance channel efficiency.
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According to data from third parties, the per capita spending on and
consumption of energy drinks in China is only one-tenth of that in the
United States. With the expansion of consumer base and the top-down
approach for its channels, the segment presents great potential for
future development. The Group will proactively seize development
opportunities and fully exploit the advantages of its channels, together
with targeted brand marketing and offline scenario marketing, to
continuously drive the growth of sales scale of Hi-Tiger.

Herbal Tea

In 2020, the traditional channel and catering channel of the herbal tea
segment were significantly affected by the decline of traffic flow and the
number of people dining out after the pandemic.

In response to this challenge, the Group has made proactive
adjustments to the herbal tea segment in terms of packaging. The
Group recognizes that with the rise of national brands, the vintage
fashion is prevalent in the consumer market. In this sense, herbal tea, as
a traditional Chinese beverage, is naturally fit for this popular element.
Riding on this popular trend, Hegizheng has introduced packagings in
vintage style to maintain the novelty of the brand. On the other hand,
the Group has strengthened its product promotion by targeting various
consumption scenarios such as gifts, single serving and shared use.
Underpinned by various marketing efforts, Hegizheng’s sales trend
improved significantly in the second half of the year as compared with
thatin the first half of the year.

In the future, Hegizheng will continue to optimize its resource input and
explore opportunities in high-growth specialty channels in a bid to
achieve healthy sales growth.

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased by 3.3% from
RMB3.677 billion in 2019 to RMB3.555 billion in 2020. Such expenses as a
percentage of revenue slightly decreased as compared with 2019 to
17.0%, which was mainly attributable to the decrease of advertisement
and promotion fee.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by 9.6% from RMB553
million in 2019 to RMB606 million in 2020. Such expenses as a
percentage of revenue increased from 2.6% in 2019 to 2.9% in 2020. This
was mainly attributable to the increase in administrative expenses
related to the pandemic outbreak in 2020, including donations for
prevention and control of the pandemic, as well as the increase in labor
costs due to higher average salaries.
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Cash and Borrowings

The Group meets its liquidity needs mainly through cash flow generated
from operation. The total value of the Group’s pledged deposits, cash
and bank deposits increased from RMB11.092 billion as at December 31,
2019 to RMB13.925 billion as at December 31, 2020. The increase was
mainly due to the Group’s net operating cash inflow of RMB4.224 billion
in 2020, and cash outflow from capital expenditure on acquisition of
fixed assets and land of RMBO0.759 billion.

As at December 31, 2020, the balance of short-term loans of the Group
amounted to RMB1.918 billion, of which 78.2% was denominated in
RMB (December 31, 2019: Nil). Such short-term loans of the Group are
unsecured bank borrowings with interest rates ranging from 2% to 3%
per annum and will mature in 2021. Benefiting from various domestic
macroeconomic policies and the supporting policies for the post-
pandemic real economy from various financial institutions, the Group
obtained corporate phased preferential policies loan to replenish
working capital and reserve low-cost cash for potential merger and
acquisition opportunities.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group’s gearing ratio was 23.1%. The
gearing ratio is the total liabilities divided by equity plus total liabilities.
The increase in gearing ratio from 18.4% as at December 31, 2019 was
mainly due to the addition of short-term loans of the Group in 2020.

Inventories

The Group’s inventories decreased by 14.9% from RMB1.262 billion as at
December 31, 2019 to RMB1.075 billion as at December 31, 2020. It was
mainly because the Group effectively controlled material inventories in
response to market sales conditions. The inventory turnover days were
33.1days in 2020, essentially the same as 33.5 days in 2019.

Trade and Bills Receivables

The Group’s trade and bills receivables increased by 22.1% from
RMBO0.737 billion as at December 31, 2019 to RMB0.900 billion as at
December 31, 2020. The increase in receivables was mainly as a result of
the impact of the pandemic, the Group eased the credit terms for
certain modern channel distributors in order to support distributors.
The trade and bills receivables turnover days increased from 12.2 days
in 2019 to 14.1 days in 2020.
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Trade and Bills Payables

The Group’s trade and bills payables decreased by 27.0% from
RMB1.348 billion as at December 31, 2019 to RMB0.984 billion as at
December 31, 2020, mainly attributable to the fact that the Group
strengthened the control on inventory purchase in response to market
sales conditions and the trend of raw material prices, and some of the
bank acceptance bills were due for settlement at the end of the year.
The trade and bills payables turnover days increased from 32.0 days in
2019 to 33.0 days in 2020.

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China and as such
nearly all transactions are conducted in RMB. As nearly all of the assets
and liabilities of the subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland China
were denominated in RMB, the subsidiaries of the Company in Mainland
China were not subject to significant foreign currency risk. As at
December 31, 2020, the Group’s assets and liabilities denominated in
HKD were mainly held by the Company and certain subsidiaries
incorporated outside Mainland China and had currencies other than
RMB as their functional currencies.

The Company and these subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland
China also held bank balances denominated in RMB, from which foreign
currency exposures arise. The Group has not undertaken any significant
hedging activities.

Contingent Liabilities

As at December 31, 2020, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Asset Pledge

As at December 31, 2020, the Group’s short-term deposits amounting to
RMB100 million (December 31, 2019: RMBO0.14 million) have been
pledged to secure its bills payable and letters of credit.
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Use of Proceeds from the Listing

The shares of the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on November 20, 2015 with net
proceeds from the global offering of approximately HKD8,665 million

(after deduction of underwriting fees and commissions and estimated

expenses payable in connection with the global offering). According to
the intended use as set out in “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
prospectus published on November 10, 2015 (the “Prospectus”), the
amount utilized and the expected timetable of the use of the unutilized
net proceeds as at December 31, 2020 were as follows:

Use of Proceeds from the Listing

Unit: HKD million

i TS Rk TE R

EABRMN _E—RE+—B_-+H%E
EEMERBMERAE (TH3RER) £k
W REEKEEMBRBIENS
86.65 R B T (MNPRA R B 2 R &5 & FE (T
NEHEERRAE RGNS - BEZE
—HFE+—BA T BEEHNBERKRER (T8
B2 N TR B RSB AT P
NBEERR R_EBE_EF+_A=+—
HNESBSEMERREBMEIIES
REMTEHRFBIRU T ¢

RS RE R

B BEET

Utilised during Unutilised
theyearended  Utilised as at asat  Expected timetable of
December3l, December3l, December31, the use of the unutilised
No. Items Percentage Available 2020 2020 2020  net proceeds®
i
T S SE
+ZA=+-B ZEZ%F ZECEE  [ERAMA
LEE +ZB=+—-H +ZB=+—H FFiEREFEN
Fi BB 5kt AEA EBR  RACHA APH FREBEHRY
1 Development, introduction and 20% 1,733 306 1,501 232 ltisexpected to be fully utilised on or
promotion of new products before December 31,2021
BE Y RIEENER BRR 5%
TZA=T—-HIZAEHHA
2 Expansion and upgrade of production 20% 1733 - 1,733 - NARER
facility and manufacturing network
BRKRAEERREERS
3 Enhancing presence in sales channels 20% 1,733 = 1,733 - NATEA
and promoting brands
RATHERENIRIERERR
4 Potential acquisitions and business 30% 2,600 - - 2,600 Itisexpected to be fully utilised on or
cooperation before December 31,2024
BRNERERAE BARN S M
+ZA=+—HAzF2HEHE"
5 Working capital and other general 10% 866 - 866 - NATER
corporate purposes
EEESRAM—RARAR
Total &3t 100% 8,665 306 5833 2,83
(1) The expected timetable of the use of the unutilised net proceeds is subject to the (1) FER KRB AMSRIE S ERRERZE

unprecedented uncertainty caused by the prevailing and future market conditions,
business developments and supply and demand, owing to the global macro
conditions and the COVID-19 pandemic. In light of the significant impact on the
economy and business environment, we will continue updating and revisiting our

plans.
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2) In terms of seeking potential acquisitions and business collaborations, since the
listing of the Company in November 2015, the Company has been prudently
evaluating potential target acquisitions to strengthen our position in the food and
beverage industry by leveraging our national sales and distribution network in
accordance with the intended use of the net proceeds as stated in the prospectus.
The Group adheres to prudent financial management policies to maintain adequate
cash flow and a healthy financial position. While strengthening internal growth, the
Group will continue to focus on mergers and acquisitions and business collaboration
opportunities in a bid to realise such opportunities and fully utilise the net proceeds
allocated for such purposes on or before December 31, 2024. As at the date of this
report, we have not entered into any legally binding definitive agreements
concerning any of these opportunities. The Company will make further
announcements in accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as and when
appropriate.

The Group will prudently use the balance of the proceeds. Should the
Directors decide to substantially revise the intended use of the proceeds
and reallocate the proceeds to other business plans and/or new
projects of the Group, the Company will make further announcements
in accordance with the Listing Rules in due course.

Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

The Group had capital expenditures of RMB0.759 billion in 2020,
primarily used for (i) the construction of new plant and workshop and
land acquisition; (ii) the acquisition of new product’s production lines;
and (iii) the equipment upgrades and renovation work in every
production plant.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group’s capital commitments relating to
property, plant and equipment were RMB0.297 billion, which were
primarily used for (i) the construction of plant and workshop for new
factories; and (i) the equipment upgrades in every production plant.
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. Human Resources and Staff Remuneration

The Group always believes that talent is the core competitiveness of
enterprises and regards employees as important strategic resources for
corporate development. It has made active efforts in establishing a
sound talent selection and training mechanism to improve employees’
overall competitiveness and their sense of belonging to the Group. In
2020, the Group continued to introduce a large number of professional
high-end talents, and actively identified talents from the existing
employees and jointly established a training mechanism with key
universities and colleges in China on a long-term basis. The Group
established a tutor management system and a training management
system, and a learning and development model such as visiting external
model enterprises, formed a talent selection and promotion mechanism
for competition for posts and performance appraisal, maintained the
core competitiveness of corporate talents, and cultivated an
experienced, stable and reliable management team. Meanwhile, the
Group continued to optimise and upgrade our management structure,
promote fine management, upgrade information management and
strengthen the headquarters’ control of the market, laying a solid
foundation for the Group’s sustainable development.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group had a total of 39,216 employees (as
at December 31, 2019: 37,975 employees). The Group’s employees are
remunerated with reference to their positions, performance, experience
and prevailing salary trends in the market. In addition to basic salaries,
the Company provides various staff benefits to its employees. For the
year ended December 31, 2020, the total employee benefits expenses
(including Directors’ remuneration) were RMB2.304 billion (for the year
ended December 31, 2019: RMB2.234 billion), which was primarily
attributable to the development of short shelf-life bread industry which
resulted in the increase of relevant sales and production staff with the
corresponding increase in remuneration.

PROSPECTS

Although the COVID-19 pandemic posed a short-term impact on consumer
products industry, the long-term trend of a positive consumer market remains
unchanged. The epidemic has caused the loss of certain consumption
scenarios and a decline in consumer demands, but it has fostered new
consumption demands and development opportunities. With deep insight
into the changes identified in market trends and consumer demands, the
Group will focus on consumers’ quests for food quality, health and nutrition to
seize the opportunities of innovative development in household
consumptions and leisure consumptions for higher market shares.

- ANOEFE KB LM
FEFERBREATBEENRLOGF S
BEIHEACXERNEZHRER > &
MBS e E AT BBIE RS - R85
INERHRFNNNEEENRER - —
ToTE AEERASIEREEES R
AT BEBRRAEETHEREAL > &
RS EEMSRAS BERIITEHS
BRUSMEERFEMNEINIEERES SN
BECEERENEFEREN > TERR
B BERERBAT BINE A
REEEASZORES > WIEEL—
XEHREE « REVENEEERK - B8
FERFEEBCAREFANEEREE  #
ERMCEE  ARESECERE  NmA
BEHIHAER > SEENFEERITT
BIERERYERE o

RIZE_ZTFE+_FA=+—H ' A&EE(E
BEI&AH326A(RIE—NEF+ZA
=+—H 37975 A) o AEBEES BIH
Th2BERMU - X7 KRERITHE L
N BB METE c BREAFTHEIN &2
BAHEERHEZEETIGN HE_Z
“EF+ZRA=1+—HIEFE  BEEF
FZ 4% (BEESEH) AARK2304E
T(EEZZE—NF+ZA=+—HILHF
B ARE234ERT)  TEHRARE
RREMEEX > BANHEEREEASE
0 FHBNAEREIE INFTER ©

Je¥

BT IEREANEEERITRENTE - B8
BHETSAFNRABE NS - BIEEMN
TEHAHBSRNRRIVEER RO TIE B4
RETHBOSERRMERILE - EERZIFE
BB EHBERRNEE  REEHESE
HRemEE BREMEEMNER > REFEBER
FEOHBNREHERNRMERESE  E—PIHRE
THIBNER ©

ENRmERBRAR . £ 2020 23



Management Discussion and Analysis

BEES RO

As the economy becomes more stable in 2021, the Group continues to seize
the opportunity for development and stimulate the growth momentum in
every segment. In household consumption segment, the Group will speed up
the large-scale layout process of Meibeichen, improve the quality of sales and
increase market penetration. Also, we will strengthen the brand promotion of
Doubendou so that consumers’ preferences can be cultivated and conversed;
star products will be made to facilitate the process of industrialisation of
plant-based protein. As for the snack food segment, refined business segment
development will be carried out comprehensively so that the prominence of
our products and brands in the mid-to-high-end consumption market will be
extended, which will further consolidate our leading position in the industry.
As for the ready-to-drink beverage segment, the Group will make every effort
on its terminal sales outlets and tighten its control on such terminal outlets to
improve its brand image. In terms of widening our channels, we strongly
support the strategic development of the e-commerce channels and actively
expand emerging channels to realise high growth.

The Group will adhere to prudent financial management policies, maintain
ample cash flow and a healthy financial position. While strengthening our own
growth, the Group will continue to explore opportunities for mergers and
acquisitions and external cooperation.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to produce quality products under a
pragmatic yet proactive corporate culture. We will keep our faith to offer more
delicious and healthy products for our customers. We will continue to strive
for enormous returns for our shareholders.
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Report of the Directors
EETWRS

The Board is pleased to present the report of the Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group is a
leading branded food and beverage company in China with a diversified multi-
brand product portfolio focusing on high-growth product categories. The
Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of food and
beverage in China. The Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on November 20, 2015.

Segment analysis of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2020 is set out
in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. A list of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries, together with their places and dates of incorporation,
types of legal entity, principal activities and particulars of their issued shares/
registered share capital, is set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

A review of the business of the Group during the year and its future
development, and an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year
using financial key performance indicators as required under Schedule 5 of
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are set out
in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 8 and the “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 9 to 24 of this annual report which
constitute part of this report of the Directors.

There was no material subsequent event undertaken by the Group after
the year ended December 31, 2020.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to the market, operational, financial and compliance
risks in relation to the industry in which the Group operates and each business
division of the Group. With the growth and expansion of our operations, the
potential risks to our business increase as well. We have implemented a risk
management system that covers each material aspect of our operations,
including finance, supply chain, security, technology and compliance. As our
risk management is a systematic project, each of our departments is
responsible for identifying and evaluating the risks relating to its area of
operations. Our Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing and assessing
our risk management policy and they supervise the performance of our risk
management system. Details of the principal risks during the year are set out
in Risk Management and Internal Controls under Corporate Governance
Report of the 2020 Annual Report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2020 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 148 to 149.

DIVIDEND POLICY

On November 19, 2018, the Company adopted a dividend policy for the
declaration, payment or distribution of its net profit to shareholders of the
Company as dividends. According to the dividend policy, in recommending or
declaring dividends, the Company shall maintain adequate cash reserves for
meeting its working capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value. The Board has the discretion to declare and distribute
dividends to the Shareholders, subject to the Articles of Association and all
applicable laws and regulations and the factors set out below.

The Board shall also take into account the following factors of the Company
and its subsidiaries when considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

financial result;
cash flow conditions;
. business conditions and strategies;
. future operations and earnings;
capital requirements and expenditure plans;
interests of shareholders;
potential investment, mergers and acquisitions;
any restrictions on payment of dividends; and
. any other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
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Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the
conditions and factors as set out above, dividends may be proposed and/or
declared by the Board for a financial year or period as follows:

. interim dividend;
. final dividend;
special dividend; and
any distribution of net profits that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to shareholders’ approval.
Any dividend unclaimed shall be forfeited and shall revert to the Company in
accordance with the Articles of Association. The Board will review the dividend
policy as appropriate from time to time.

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK$0.075 per ordinary share for the six months ended
June 30, 2020 was declared during 2020.

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.085
(equivalent to approximately RMB0.072) per ordinary share for the year ended
December 31, 2020 (the “2020 Final Dividend”), representing a total payment
of approximately HK$1,164,000,000 (equivalent to RMB986,228,000). The
payment of the 2020 Final Dividend is subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM to be held on May 18, 2021.

Upon Shareholders’ approval to be obtained at the AGM, the 2020 Final
Dividend is expected to be paid on July 15, 2021 to the Shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on May 28, 2021.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five years, as set out on page 5 of this annual report, is extracted from the
audited consolidated financial statements.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended December 31, 2020 are set out in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

The Company’s distributable reserves comprise the share premium and other
reserves. As at December 31, 2020, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to RMB134.73 million (2019: RMB1.29 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
during the year ended December 31, 2020 are set out in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM INITIAL PUBLIC
OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on November 20, 2015. The net proceeds from the Listing were
approximately HKD8,665 million (after deduction of underwriting fees and
commissions and estimated expenses payable by the Company in connection
with the global offering).

For details, please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Use of Proceeds from the Listing” on page 21 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors:

Mr. Xu Shihui (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang

Ms. Xu Yangyang

Ms. Huang Jiaying (appointed on February 8, 2021)

Non-executive Directors:

Ms. Xu Biying
Ms. Hu Xiaoling

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan
Mr. Liu Xiaobin
Dr. Lin Zhijun

Each of Mr. Xu Shihui, Mr. Zhuang Weigiang, Ms. Xu Yangyang, Ms. Xu Biying,
Ms. Hu Xiaoling, Mr. Cheng Hanchuan, Mr. Liu Xiaobin and Dr. Lin Zhijun shall
retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming AGM pursuant to article
16.18 of the Articles of Association or the Listing Rules and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election. Ms. Huang Jiaying who has been appointed
by the Board shall hold office until the forthcoming AGM pursuant to Article
16.2 of the Articles of Association. Ms. Huang Jiaying, being eligible, will offer
herself for re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors offering for re-election at the AGM has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE AND
COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below and Note 32 “Related Party Transactions” to the
consolidated financial statements, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance (as defined in Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or controlling shareholder (as
defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of 2020 or at any time during 2020.

None of the Directors has interests in any businesses apart from the Group’s
business which competes or is likely to compete with the Group’s business,
either directly or indirectly or would otherwise require disclosure under Rule
8.10 of the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions for the year as disclosed in Notes 32(a)(i) and
32(a)(iii) to the consolidated financial statements constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined under the Listing Rules but are exempt
from the reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(a). Details of
such continuing connected transactions are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated December 1, 2017.

The related party transaction for the year as disclosed in Note 32(a)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements constitutes a continuing connected
transaction as defined under the Listing Rules which is subject to the
reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but is exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of this related party transaction.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Property and Land Leasing Agreement

Except for the continuing connected transactions of the Group which are exempt
from the reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(1)(a), the Company
and Fujian Dali Foods Group Co., Ltd. (B EF B mEREBRAR) (‘Fujian
Dali”) entered into a property and land leasing agreement (the “Property and
Land Leasing Agreement”) on December 1, 2017. The transaction under the
Property and Land Leasing Agreement is made in the ordinary and usual course
of business and on normal commercial terms, the highest applicable percentage
ratio calculated for the purpose of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules were more
than 0.1% but less than 5% on an annual basis. Fujian Dali is owned as to 100%
by Mr. Xu Shihui, Ms. Chen Liling and Ms. Xu Yangyang, who are the controlling
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company and, in the case of
Mr. Xu Shihui and Ms. Xu Yangyang, executive directors of the Company. The
Group had been using certain properties and land owned by Fujian Dali for
general business and ancillary purposes. The Property and Land Leasing
Agreement was entered into in order to avoid unnecessary disruptions to our
business caused by the relocation and enable us to ensure continuity of the
operation of the Group.

Pursuant to the Property and Land Leasing Agreement, the Company agreed
to lease the relevant properties and land in the PRC from Fujian Dali for a term
of three years from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2020 on the following
principal terms:

(a)

the properties and land that were leased to us consist of (i) an office
building located at Zishan, Linkou, Hui’an, Fujian Province and
occupying a total gross floor area of approximately 21,142.67 sq.m., and
(i) buildings used for manufacturing workshop, warehouse and workers’
dormitory as well as for other ancillary purposes located at Zishan,
Linkou, Hui’an, Fujian Province and occupying a total gross floor area of

approximately 265,643.40 sq.m.;

the monthly rental prices in respect of the office building and other
properties for each of the three years ending December 31, 2020 are
RMB10.70 per sg.m. and RMB5.40 per sg.m., respectively;

the rental price shall be reviewed and adjusted from the second year of
the duration of the Property and Land Leasing Agreement by reference
to the GDP growth for the previous year published by the National
Bureau of Statistics of the PRC but in any event such increase in the
rental price shall not exceed the relevant GDP growth rate;
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(d)  the Company shall pay the rental to Fujian Dali on a quarterly basis on
or before the 25th day of the last month of the relevant quarter of the
year; and

(e)  the Company shall be responsible for all utility charges and other
miscellaneous expenses incurred in using the relevant properties and
land during the term of the lease, except for national administration fee
and property tax that shall be borne by each party in accordance with
relevant laws and regulations.

The Company paid Fujian Dali rental expenses in an aggregate amount of
RMB19,928,000 pursuant to the terms of the Property and Land Leasing
Agreement for the year ended December 31, 2020, which was within the
annual cap for the aggregate rental expenses payable under the Property and
Land Leasing Agreement of RMB21,000,000 for the year ended December 31,
2020 as set by the Company.

Opinion from the Independent Non-executive Directors and Auditors on
the Continuing Connected Transaction

The Company’s auditors were engaged to report on the Group’s non-exempt
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information and with reference to
Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above and confirmed that nothing has
come to their attention that causes them to believe the continuing connected
transactions abovementioned:

(a)  have not been approved by the Board;
(b)  werenot, in all material respects, in accordance with the pricing policies
of the Group if the transactions involve the provision of goods or

services by the Group;

(c)  were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(d)  have exceeded the annual cap.
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The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
these transactions and confirmed that the non-exempt continuing connected
transactions have been entered into:

(@) intheordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(b)  onnormal commercial terms or better; and

() inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

The Directors confirm that the Company has complied with the requirements
of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of all of its continuing connected
transactions.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at December 31, 2020, the interests of the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

I. Interestin shares or underlying shares of the Company

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interest
ERNR 8519 #EmtE

Mr. Xu Shihui® Interest in controlled corporation
B MR EEN R

Ms. Xu Yangyang®
SEBL LY

Beneficiary of a discretionary trust?
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II. Interestin shares of associated corporations of the

IL 7S WA 725 o e 7 ) R 2t

Company
Approximate
Numberof  percentage of
sharesinthe interestin the
Name of associated associated associated
Name of Directors corporation Capacity/Nature of interest corporation corporation
8B EE
R BE AR RY Byt
EEiR MEEERTE B s B8 E B E 2L
Mr. Xu Shihui® Divine Foods Limited  Interest in controlled corporation 50 50%
A E (“Divine Foods”) N EE R
Note: R
(1) Divine Foods is 50%, 10% and 40% legally owned by Divine Foods-1 Limited, Divine (1) Divine Foods FH Divine Foods-1 Limited ~ Divine

Foods-2 Limited and Divine Foods-3 Limited respectively. Divine Foods-1 Limited is
98% and 2% legally owned by Mr. Xu Shihui and Hi-Tiger Limited respectively. Divine
Foods-2 Limited and Divine Foods-3 Limited are in turn wholly-owned by Hi-Tiger
Limited. Hi-Tiger Limited is an investment holding company incorporated in the BVI
wholly-owned by Cantrust (Far East) Limited (the “Trustee”), and Hi-Tiger Limited
holds 2%, 100% and 100% shareholdings in Divine Foods-1 Limited, Divine Foods-2
Limited, and Divine Foods-3 Limited respectively. The Trustee is a company
incorporated in the BVI and the trustee of the Xu’s Family Trust which is a
discretionary trust established by Ms. Chen Liling as the settlor and Ms. Chen Liling,
Mr. Xu Shihui and Ms. Xu Yangyang as the beneficiaries.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2020, none of the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any interest
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which were required to be notified under Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Foods-2 Limited & Divine Foods-3 Limited 43 5!/
& & ¥ B 50% * 10% 52 40% © Divine Foods-1
Limited 4 &F t8 8 5¢ 4 K Hi-Tiger Limited 73 5l
& & ¥E H98%K2%c iDivine Foods-2
Limited Kz Divine Foods-3 Limited FA Hi-Tiger
Limited 2 B # A ° Hi-Tiger Limited 2 — &K 1%
HEEREEEMRINEERERAS > #H
Cantrust (Far East) Limited (T2 5EA)) 2 &%
A © Hi-Tiger Limited 73 | 5 A Divine Foods-1
Limited ~ Divine Foods-2 Limited & Divine
Foods-3 Limited B9 2% ~ 100% Kz 100% ¥& B% 1
o R AA RN EBE R EFTMAL
HAB TATFEREELTNZEA  FE
KikEstAMRER X TERAMERT AL
MBS MEBKR LT FitELER
HHEHBRTAZEA ©

MR FXFRIREEIN  RZBE_EF+_B=+—
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at December 31, 2020, the interests or short positions of the following

TR RARER B A

ATETETE+"H=+—H> FHAL(EA

persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) in the

shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Name of Shareholders

BERY%E 2

Divine Foods

Divine Foods-1 Limited®
(“Divine Foods-1")

Divine Foods-2 Limited™
(“Divine Foods-2”)

Divine Foods-3 Limited™
(“Divine Foods-3”)

Ms. Chen Liling®®@
[EEEIS 4100

Cantrust (Far East) Limited
(“Trustee”)V

Cantrust (Far East) Limited
(FZEEALD W

Notes:

Capacity/Nature of interest

815 t#=itE

Beneficial owner

BREEA

Interest in controlled corporation

SRR BB

Deemed interest as an associate of
a substantial shareholder

R —RBEERRHEANRFED

Interest in controlled corporation

R E BRI

Interest of spouse

[ =L

Trustee; Interest in controlled corporation

KH

sEA S MEIEGAEBIER

(1) Divine Foods is 50%, 10% and 40% legally owned by Divine Foods-1, Divine Foods-2 and
Divine Foods-3 respectively. Divine Foods-1 is 98% and 2% legally owned by Mr. Xu Shihui
and Hi-Tiger Limited respectively. Divine Foods-2 and Divine Foods-3 are in turn wholly-
owned by Hi-Tiger Limited. Hi-Tiger Limited is an investment holding company incorporated
in the BVI wholly-owned by the Trustee, and Hi-Tiger Limited holds 2%, 100% and 100%
shareholdings in Divine Foods-1, Divine Foods-2, and Divine Foods-3 respectively. The
Trustee is a company incorporated in the BVI and the trustee of the Xu’s Family Trust which
is a discretionary trust established by Ms. Chen Liling as the settlor and Ms. Chen Liling, Mr.
Xu Shihui and Ms. Xu Yangyang as the beneficiaries.

2) Mr. Xu Shihui and Ms. Chen Liling are spouses. Accordingly, each of Mr. Xu Shihui and Ms.
Chen Liling is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all shares and underlying shares in which
their spousal counterpart is interested in for the purpose of the SFO.
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Approximate
percentage of
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the Company
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85%

(long positions)

11,640,000,000
11,640,000,000 85%

11,640,000,000 85%

11,640,000,000 85%

11,640,000,000 85%

11,640,000,000 85%
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme as set out below, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement for the year ended December 31,
2020.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME
Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme on August 25, 2015 to
enable the Company to grant share options to Qualified Participant (as
defined below) as incentive for their commitment towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Shareholders, and
to maintain or attract business relationship with the Qualified Participant
whose contributions are or may be beneficial to the growth of the Group.

Qualified Participant

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe
for such number of Shares as the Board may determine to:

(a)  any executive Director, or employee (whether full time or part time) of
the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which the Company or any
subsidiary holds any equity interest;

(b)  any non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which the
Company or any subsidiary holds any equity interest;

(c)  any customer, business or joint venture partner, advisor, consultant,
contractor, supplier, agent or service provider of the Company, any
subsidiary or any entity in which the Company or any subsidiary holds
any equity interest who is an individual; or

(d) any full-time employee of any customer, business or joint venture
partner, advisor, consultant, contractor, supplier, agent, customer or
service provider of the Company or any subsidiary or an entity in which
the Company or any subsidiary holds any equity interest,

who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, has contributed or will
contribute to the Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which the Company
or any subsidiary holds any equity interest (collectively, the “Qualified
Participant”).
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Maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may
be granted

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company shall not in aggregate exceed the number of Shares that shall
represent 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date
(such total number of Shares being 13,694,117,500 Shares) (the “Scheme
Mandate”, being 1,369,411,750 Shares), excluding for this purpose options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company. As at the date of this
report, the total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme is 1,369,411,750 Shares, representing approximately 10% of the total
issued share capital of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each Qualified Participant

Unless approved by Shareholders in general meeting in the manner prescribed
in the Listing Rules, the Board shall not grant options to any grantee if the
acceptance of those options would result in the total number of Shares issued
and to be issued to that grantee on exercise of his options (including both
exercised and outstanding options) during any 12 month period exceeding 1%
of the total Shares then in issue.

Grant of options to connected persons

Any grant of options to a Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of their respective
associates under the Share Option Scheme must be approved by all the
independent non-executive Directors (excluding any independent non-
executive Director who is also a grantee of the options).

Any grant of options to a substantial Shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) must be approved by the Shareholders in general meeting if the
Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options already granted
and proposed to be granted to him (whether exercised, cancelled or
outstanding) in the 12 month period up to and including the proposed date of
grant:

() would represent in aggregate more than 0.1% of the Shares then in
issue; and

(i) would have an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the Shares

at the date of each grant, in excess of HKD5,000,000 (or such other

amount as shall be permissible under the Listing Rules from time to

time).

The grant of options shall be subject to approval by Shareholders in the
General Meeting.
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Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of the grant of an option shall be made to a Qualified Participant by
written offer letter in such form as the Board may from time to time determine,
requiring the Qualified Participant to undertake to hold the option on the
terms on which it is to be granted and to be bound by the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme. The offer shall remain open for such period (not
exceeding 30 days, inclusive of, and from, the date of offer) as the Board may
determine and notify to the Qualified Participant. There is no minimum period
for which any option must be held before it can be exercised unless the Board
otherwise determined and stated in the offer letter of the grant of options.

An option shall be deemed to have been accepted and to have taken effect
when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed by
the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company of HKD1 by
way of consideration for the grant of the option shall have been received by
the Company on or before the last day for acceptance as set out in the offer
letter. The remittance is not in any circumstances refundable. Once accepted,
the option is considered to be granted as from the date on which it was
offered to the relevant Qualified Participant. The period during which an
option may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10 years from the
offer date.

Subscription Price

The subscription price shall be a price determined by the Board but in any
event shall be at least the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on the date of offer;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and

(i)  the nominal value of the Shares.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting or by the
Board, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the date of adoption.

Since the listing of the Company and up to the date of this report, no share
option had been granted under the Share Option Scheme.

38 Dali Foods Group Company Limited -

TRAN AR REEL A
RUBRENENARESZETRFEENKRIANU
ZHENRARTERSREFL > ERGER
SHEEFGERREEHNERTABRE > 12E
IRTESTBINIR AR - BNANEFEHEETE
KB ER2EENZARE (BENRBEE
ZERESTBIE30H) MEJHHEMR - (RIFEEE
ATBELAR HBRENEZQRETIE > &
AMERERERTTER T ERERAHIR -

MR EQRAPRERNEMNEILE BRI Z A > AR
EEREE AR A ENRBNEERMBRENX
Rl BRI ABBYRAR 1B ITTER -
ERRTHRRENSE  IBRERRGEAEE
BMBEBEN - EEAERT » ARAERISTF
RiE - BRE—GEN > BRRARABRSER
SEZRUBHAMERE - BRED TTE
HERBESFET2RNBERE  EERENEY
HERfEST L0 FBTISITRE

o (5
REERHREFTET  HERUARFERT
JI=FEPHNERSE !

()  ROKREBHBHRBAESEKREXRATIN
WHE ;

(il ERENHBEARLEZEEH > ROCBR
PR HRERPTIBFIINHE ; &

(i) BRApmEME -

el FRERE 5 1 281 ) B R
HRIERARATNBREAG LYREETIRER
1E > BRUEBARAESTE) B ERAN B e St A R A 3K
104F ©

BARE EHUREIKRSHE » SERERER
FEST IR IR IR AR o

Annual Report 2020



Report of the Directors
EFERS

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Xu Shihui, Ms. Chen Liling, Ms. Xu Yangyang, Divine Foods, Divine Foods-1,
Divine Foods-2 and Divine Foods-3 (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-competition in favor of the
Company dated August 25, 2015 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) as set out
in section headed “Relationship with Our Controlling Shareholders — Non-
Competition Undertaking” under the Prospectus. The independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed and the Controlling Shareholders had
confirmed their compliance with all the undertakings provided under the
Deed of Non-Competition as of March 29, 2021. The independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed the compliance of the Controlling
Shareholders with the Deed of Non-Competition and there are no matters
required to be deliberated by them in relation to the compliance with and
enforcement of the Deed of Non-Competition and considered that the terms
of the Deed of Non-Competition have been complied with by the Controlling
Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended December 31, 2020, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

MINIMUM PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float as approved by the Stock
Exchange during the year ended December 31, 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the laws of the Cayman
Islands (place of incorporation of the Company) or under the Articles of
Association which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-
rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no other significant
investments held, no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year, nor was there any plan
authorized by the Board for other material investments or additions of capital
assets during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code. The Board considered that during the year ended
December 31, 2020, the Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the CG Code, save and except for code provision A.2.1, details of which
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report”.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

The annual remuneration of the members of the senior management (other
than the Directors) by bands for the year ended December 31, 2020 is set out
below:

N E 4R

Remuneration bands

HKD1 to HKD500,000
HKD500,001 to HKD1,000,000
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000

Details of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended
December 31, 2020 are set out in Note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors are reviewed and recommended to the
Board by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable market trends.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to directors

and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he/she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his/her office or
otherwise in relation thereto.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate revenue attributable to the Group’s five largest customers was
6.2% by value of the Group’s total goods sales during the year ended
December 31, 2020, with the largest customer accounting for 1.9%. The five
largest suppliers of the Group comprised 10.2% by value of the Group’s total
purchases during the year, with the largest supplier accounting for 3.3%.

None of the Directors, their close associates or a Shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year ended
December 31, 2020 was the Company or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

It is our corporate and social responsibility in promoting a sustainable and
environmental friendly environment, we strive to minimise our environmental
impact by saving electricity and to build our corporation in a sustainable way.

We have adopted a set of emergency planning, response and control
procedures as counter-measures for unexpected environmental pollution
accidents to minimise our impact on the environment and the adverse effect
on our business. We incurred RMB14.14 million (2019: RMB13.8 million) in
environmental compliance costs for the year ended December 31, 2020.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in China while the Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
operations shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in China and Hong
Kong. During the year ended December 31, 2020 and up to the date of this
report, we have complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in China
and Hong Kong in all material respects.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS
Relationship with our distributors

Consistent with market practice in our industry, the customers of the Group
are primarily distributors. This network penetrates a wide range of points-of-
sale, enabling us to sell products at all levels of the market, from provinces to
counties, villages and towns throughout China. As at December 31, 2020, we
had more than 5,779 distributors covering all provinces, cities and most of the
county-level divisions in China, and had over 12,302 dedicated sales personnel
to maintain and support approximately two million points-of-sale.

1. Standard for selecting distributors

We select our distributors in each region based on factors including
their business qualifications, marketing capabilities, reputation, breadth
and quality of sales network, number of personnel, and logistics and
transport capabilities.

2.  Comprehensive support

In order to enhance our relationship with distributors and to provide
adequate support to the distributors in meeting sales targets, the Group
provides comprehensive support to its distributors. The Group develops
and executes strategic and tactical sales plans with the distributors,
provides support and implements incentive measures to promote sales.

Further, our sales team provides comprehensive support coverage in
various counties and cities. They contact and cooperate with local
distributors closely to enhance and maintain the relationship with the
distributors. A sustainable relationship with our distributors also helped
to expand the network of points-of-sales in China and the number of
products being sold in different outlets.
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138 Inventory management

We closely monitor the distributors’ inventory policies and movement
and ensure their policies and practices are in compliance with the
agreed requirements. The requirements include (a) the maintenance of
an adequate inventory level that equals to the estimated monthly sales
volume; (b) first-in-first-out policy; (c) evaluation of inventory based on
its aging and expiration; (d) age of inventory shall be kept within one
third of the shelf life; (e) if the age of inventory exceeds one third of the
shelf life, sales personnel shall cooperate with the distributors to carry
out sales plan to promote the sales of the specific products; and (f) if
age of inventory exceeds half of the shelf life, it must be reported to the
headquarters and the sales personnel shall cooperate with distributors
to undergo promotions in specialty channels to promote sales of the
specific products. We also conduct periodic stock taking and our sales
representative, sales manager and region manager undertake specific
responsibilities in respect of stock taking with the distributors.

Maintaining effective management of the sales team and distribution
network is crucial to sustainable development of the Company. We
established systems to enhance the management of personnel on the
basis of relationship development, and placed the development of
effective management as the core policy of the Company. With the
combined effect of systematic management and personalized
management, we have improved the cohesion and the capability of the
Company through systematic division of labor and effective
cooperation.

Relationship with our suppliers

We generally centralise the procurement of packaging materials and the raw
materials used in the production of our food and beverage products to take
advantage of economies of scale and to increase our bargaining power with
suppliers. We believe that our centralized procurement system enables us to
obtain more competitive prices and avoid regional or other price variation.
Our raw materials are generally available from a number of domestic
suppliers, and we normally have various source of supply for each type of raw
materials to reduce our dependency on a single supplier. Our suppliers grant
us payment terms that vary depending on a number of factors including our
relationship with the suppliers and the size of the transactions.
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We uphold the principle of equality and cooperation for mutual benefit and
maintain a sustainable and long-term relationship with various suppliers. To
ensure the quality of the procurement, we typically work with large reputable
domestic suppliers to secure the key raw materials used in our production
process, based on criteria like product quality, reputation, scale of production,
price and ability to meet our delivery schedule. Further, we established and
maintained a mechanism and database of suppliers to perform a detailed
evaluation and audit on the suppliers, which takes into account of
comprehensive indicators like food safety, quality control, financial strength,
technology research and development ability, environmental protection and
reputation in the industry. These indicators reflect the criteria we look for in
our suppliers under the long term development goal of the Company. We also
require the suppliers to comply with the commercial code of conduct of the
Group.

Relationship with our employees

We embrace our employees as the most valuable assets of the Group, the
objective of the Group’s human resources management is to reward and
recognise outstanding employees by providing competitive remuneration
packages and implementing a sound performance appraisal system with
appropriate incentives, and to promote career development and progression
within the Group by providing adequate training and opportunities.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020
have been audited by Ernst & Young, who will retire at the conclusion of the
AGM and offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the auditors of the Company will be
proposed at the AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Xu Shihui
Chairman

Hong Kong
March 29, 2021
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DIRECTORS
Xu Shihui (EFitHE)

Chairman, executive Director and chief executive officer

Mr. Xu Shihui (EF1#E), aged 63, is the founder of the Group, Chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company and was
appointed as a Director on November 4, 2014. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company. Mr. Xu has been the chairman and
the president of Fujian Dali since its establishment in 1992 and has served as
the chairman of all subsidiaries of the Group since their establishment. Under
Mr. Xu’s leadership, the Group’s business has grown from a local food
manufacturing company in Fujian province to a nationwide food and non-
alcoholic beverage company in China with a diversified multi-brand product
portfolio focusing on high-growth product categories. Mr. Xu has accumulated
33 years of experience in food manufacturing industry. Mr. Xu has been a
representative of the eleventh and twelfth National People’s Congress of the
People’s Republic of China (FZE A REFMEZE A RAFTRAE) in 2008 and
2013. Mr. Xu was also the News Figure of China Food Industry Elite Forum of
the 30th Anniversary of the Reform and Opening Up (BX & RIRB0BETHE
TS EAIE R AY) in September 2009. Mr. Xu was appointed as a
senior consultant of the third session of the board of Quanzhou Food Industry
Association (RN EMITERE) by the association in January 2016. During
2017, Mr. Xu was also recognized as a Hui’an Philanthropist for the year 2015-
2016 (CE—HEFEE_E—NEFEBLZEER) and awarded a Special
Outstanding Contribution Charity Award for the year 2015-2016 (—&E—H
EIR-RFEZSEERFIEREERE). Mr. Xu is the father of Ms. Xu
Yangyang, the brother of Ms. Xu Biying and the brother-in-law of Mr. Chen
Baoguo. Mr. Xu is a director of Dali Foods and Divine Foods-1, the controlling
shareholders of the Company.

Zhuang Weiqiang (F£{&3%)
Executive vice president and executive Director

Mr. Zhuang Weiqiang (¥{£38), aged 43, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on June 14, 2015. Mr. Zhuang joined the Group in 1998
and has more than 20 years of experience in management with the Group. Mr.
Zhuang has been the executive vice president of the Group in charge of overall
marketing and distribution of products of the Group since 2006. Prior to this,
Mr. Zhuang had been the general manager of Jinan Dali Foods Co., Ltd. (Z5E5
EFBRARAE) from 2004 to 2006 and the general manager of Chengdu
Dali Foods Co., Ltd. (B ESZEF B RBFREAT) (“Chengdu Dali”) from 2000 to
2004. He had been a financial specialist of Chengdu Dali from 1998 to 2000. Mr.
Zhuang graduated from the continuing education course of Sichuan
Agricultural Management Cadre Institute (F8)1| £ EIRHIZ2P7) with a
certificate in business administration in January 2007. Mr. Zhuang obtained a
professional title as senior economist in Jilin province in January 2010.
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Xu Yangyang (3¥[5[53)
Vice president and executive Director

Ms. Xu Yangyang (5FB5R5), aged 37, is the vice president and executive
Director of the Company in charge of making corporate and operational
decisions and managing the day-to-day operation of the Group. Ms. Xu was
appointed as a Director on November 4, 2014. She is also a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. She joined the Group in 2008 and
has worked as a director and the vice president of Fujian Dali from 2009 to
date and is also the supervisor of various subsidiaries of the Group. With more
than 10 years of experience in the Group, Ms. Xu has held various positions in
Fujian Dali from July 2008 to date, including the chairman of the labour union,
workshop director and deputy factory manager. Outside the Group, Ms. Xu
Yangyang also holds various important positions, including serving as: (i) the
vice president of Fujian Association of Health Care Products and Cosmetics (&
BERIEIRE) since September 2012; (i) the representative of the twelfth
and thirteenth People’s Congress of Fujian Province ({82 R E+ _EKSE
+=E A KLE) since March 2013; (iii) the honorary president of the third
session of Quan Zhou Food Industry Association (SR ERITER D) since
January 2016; (iv) vice president of the fourteenth Quanzhou Federation of
Industry and Commerce (F+UERMNT IEHEBSERIERE) since
January 2017; (v) standing committee member of the eleventh Fujian
Provincial Federation of Industry and Commerce ({22 & LHEMEEE
+—EEZEZEE) since August 2017; (vi) standing vice president of the sixth
session of the Standing Committee of Youth Chamber of Commerce of the
Youth Entrepreneurs Association of Quanzhou (RN B ELERRETBE
) since July 2018; and (vii) committee member of the twelfth Fujian Youth
Federation Committee (F+ _EREZEFHEETEEETES) since
November 2018. Ms. Xu Yangyang was awarded the honorary title of the 16th
Fujian Provincial Excellent Entrepreneur ((B+/N\EBERE BB LERKE
FBE%) in 2016, the Bearer of Red Flag March 8 (2B = )\ALJEFHEFER) in
2017, and elected as the Ten Outstanding Young Entrepreneurs of Quanzhou
(EINTFFAREEBELZESR) in 2018. Ms. Xu Yangyang graduated from
Xiamen University (BP9A2) with a bachelor’s degree in international
economy and trade in 2005. Ms. Xu is the daughter of Mr. Xu Shihui, the niece
of Ms. Xu Biying and the nephew of Mr. Chen Baoguo. Ms. Xu is a director of
Dali Foods and Divine Foods-3, the controlling shareholders of the Company.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
EEREREIEERBE

Huang Jiaying (H{E%¥)
Executive Director

Ms. Huang Jiaying (B{£%), aged 42, was appointed as an executive
Director of the Company on February 8, 2021. Ms. Huang joined the Group as
investor relations director in September 2020. Ms. Huang has extensive
experience in the area of investment banking and investor relations. Prior to
joining the Group, Ms. Huang worked as the Vice President of investor relations
at Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited from 2018 to 2020. Before that,
she worked at investment banks, securities firm and accounting firm from
2001 to 2018, including serving as a director at Bank of China International
Limited; as a vice president at Barclays Capital Asia Limited and Nomura
International (Hong Kong) Limited; as a research analyst at Lehman Brothers
Asia Limited; as a manager at BNP Paribas Peregrine Limited; as an analyst at
Platinum Holdings Limited Shanghai Representative Office; and as an auditor
at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (Shanghai) (B 2h & 5t EMEF5FT(L38E)),
specializing in the research of China’s consumer sector. Ms. Huang obtained
her bachelor’s degree in English for Finance and Trade from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University in the People’s Republic of China in July 2001.

Xu Biying (FFE3)
Non-executive Director

Ms. Xu Biying (8FE88), aged 65, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on June 14, 2015. With 32 years of experience in the food
manufacturing industry, Ms. Xu Biying has been the vice president of the
Group, participating in the formulation of the corporate and business plans of
the Group, since the establishment of the Group in 1992 until 2010, and has
rich experience in the food industry and corporate management. Ms. Xu Biying
has over 20 years of experience in financial management. Ms. Xu received the
Certificate for Qualified Accountant (& 5HEM{EREEEEE) from Department
of Human Resources and Social Security of Fujian Province ({828 AJTE R
Fr- = RIZEEE) (previously known as the Personnel Department of Fujian
Province (8#2%2& A ZEEE)) in December 1998. Ms. Xu Biying is the sister of Mr.
Xu Shihui, the aunt of Ms. Xu Yangyang. She is also the sister-in-law of Ms. Chen
Liling and the cousin-in-law of Mr. Chen Baoguo.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREIEERBE

Hu Xiaoling (#AB%3%)
Non-executive Director

Ms. Hu Xiaoling (¥BE¥$), aged 51, is a non-executive Director of the
Company. She was appointed as a Director on May 4, 2015. She is also a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Ms. Hu is responsible for
providing advice on investment activities of the Group. Ms. Hu joined CDH
Investments in 2002 and is currently a managing director of CDH Investments
Management (Hong Kong) Limited, which is a Hong Kong company
incorporated under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance on April 22, 2003.
Ms. Hu is also currently a director and general manager of CDH Investments
Management (Xiamen) Limited (SRPEIZ B EIE(EFY)AFRAE]), a manager of
CDH Investments (Tianjin) Limited (SAEEIRE (KE)EFRATE]) and a director
and manager of CDH Hetai Investments Management (Xiamen) Limited (5HM&
MBEESIE(EP)BRATE). Ms. Hu is currently a director of Belle
International Holdings Limited (a company delisted on the Stock Exchange
since July 28, 2017, stock code: 1880), a non-executive director of Baroque
Japan Limited (a company listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange, stock code:
35480) and Topsports International Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 6110) and director of Hangzhou Beika Industrial
Co., Ltd.. Ms. Hu had also been a director of Anhui Yingliu Electronmechanical
Co., Limited (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
603308) from March 2011 to April 2017; a director of Midea Group Co., Ltd. (a
company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000333) from
August 2012 to July 2017; and a director of Beijing Motie Book Corporation
Company from July 2010 to December 2017. Prior to joining CDH Investments
Management (Hong Kong) Limited, Ms. Hu had worked at the direct
investment department of China International Capital Corporation Limited
and Arthur Andersen. Ms. Hu graduated from Beijing Jiaotong University (355
IBAER) previously known as Northern Jiaotong University (157532 1@A
22), with a master’s degree in Economics and Accounting and a bachelor’s
degree in Economics. Ms. Hu has also been a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBREE

Cheng Hanchuan (i2:)I[)
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan (¥23£])Il), aged 67, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company on August 25, 2015. He is also a
member of the audit committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. Mr. Cheng had been the head of factory of the Hui’an Huiquan Beer
Brewery (BLZ BB RMAERR) from August 1991 to February 1997 and the
chairman, vice chairman, director and general manager of Huiquan Brewage
Group Inc. Fujian China ({8 2 & BRMEEEERHD B R AE]) (now known as
FuJian YanJing HuiQuan Brewery Co., Ltd ({2 &R ERIEERMDEREA
B]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600573)
from January 1997 to August 2013. Mr. Cheng had been the vice chairman of
the specialised committee of beer of China Food Industry Association (Bl &
mIEGERHEEEEED) from March 2008 to May 2013. Mr. Cheng had
also been the vice chairman of the seventh session committee of Fujian
Federation of Enterprises and Entrepreneurs ({22 R ¥ MM X RHE D)
and Fujian Federation of Industrial Economic ({82 & TEL&BMAEE) from
April 2012 to May 2013. Mr. Cheng graduated from Fujian Normal University (&
FREMEIAER) with a diploma in Business Administration in July 2010 and was
awarded the professional qualification as a senior economist by the Personnel
Department of Fujian Province (f8#2& AZEEE) (now known as “Department
of Human Resource and Social Security of Fujian Province” ({8228 ANER
Kt E{RBEBE) ) in August 1997. Mr. Cheng has been an expert who enjoys
the special allowance of the State Council since June 2000.

Liu Xiaobin (2U/)\iK)
Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Xiaobin (2I/J\iE), aged 55, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on August 25, 2015. He is also a member of
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the Company.
Mr. Liu has been engaged in teaching Chinese in Xiamen University (BPAZ2)
since September 1989. He was an assistant professor of Chinese language and
literature from August 2007 to July 2010, and currently holds the position of a
lecturer at the Overseas Education College of Xiamen University. Mr. Liu
graduated from Xiamen University in July 1986 with a bachelor’s degree in Arts
(Chinese Literature) and Northwest University in China in June 1989 with a
master’s degree in Arts (Classic Chinese Literature).
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management
EERSREIEERBE

Lin Zhijun (HEE)
Independent non-executive Director

Dr. Lin Zhijun (}3EE), aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on August 25, 2015. He is also the chairman
of the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the Company. Dr.
Lin is currently an independent non-executive director of Sinotruk (Hong
Kong) Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3808),
China Everbright Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 0165), CITIC Dameng Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1091) and BOCOM International Holdings Company
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 3329). Dr. Lin
had been an independent non-executive director of Springland International
Holdings Limited (a company delisted on the Stock Exchange since March 2,
2020, stock code: 1700) from February 2008 to March 2020. Dr. Lin is an
Associate Vice President of the Macau University of Science and Technology,
and served as the Dean of the Business School until August 2020. From August
1998 to January 2015, he was a Professor and Head of the Department of
Accountancy and Law in Hong Kong Baptist University. Prior to these
positions, Dr. Lin also taught at The University of Hong Kong from August 1996
to June 1998, Lethbridge University in Canada from September 1990 to August
1998 and Xiamen University (BEFIAZ2) from September 1982 to August 1990.
Dr. Lin worked at the Toronto office of an international accounting firm from
December 1982 to November 1983.

Dr. Lin holds a master’s degree in Science in Accounting from University of
Saskatchewan in Canada in October 1991 and a Doctorate’s degree in
Economics (Accounting) from Xiamen University in December 1985. Dr. Lin is
also a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants since
August 1995, the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants since June
1995, the Washington Institute of Certified Management Accountants since
May 1995 and the Australian Institute of Certified Management Accountants
since 2003. He is a member of various educational accounting associations
including the American Accounting Association.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBREE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Chen Baoguo (FREE)

Vice president in charge of production

Mr. Chen Baoguo (BREE), aged 51 is the vice president of the Group. Mr.
Chen is responsible for overseeing and managing overall production activities
and quality control of the Group. With over 28 years of experience in the
Group, Mr. Chen has served in Fujian Dali as the head of production
technology development department from 1992 to 2010. He is the brother-in-
law of Mr. Xu Shihui, uncle of Ms. Xu Yangyang and the brother of the sister-in-
law of Ms. Xu Biying.

Mr. Chen graduated from the Professional Online Education Program in Food
Science and Engineering (Bakery) of Jiangnan University CTEIAZ2) in 2011
and further obtained a bachelor’s degree in Engineering with a major in Food
Science and Engineering (Bakery) from Jiangnan University (LFIAZE) in
January 2017. Mr. Chen was awarded the professional qualification of Grade 1
Senior Technician by the Ministry of Labour and Social Security of the PRC (1
#E A\ REMBESE ST EIREEE) in December 2008. Mr. Chen was awarded
the Certificate of Professional Technology Training by the Technology Training
Center of the China Food Industry Association (B & &L # il
HC)) in December 2007, and was appointed as a member of the Expert
Committee of the China National Food Industry Association (Bl & & T 217
BEREZEEZEE) during the same period. He was awarded the certified
qualification of senior baker by the Bakery Food and Confectionary Expert
Committee of the Society of Food Science of Shanghai (LB B RZ2E) in
April 2004.

Wu Xinchuan (52/%J11)
Chief financial officer

Mr. Wu Xinchuan (52fR)11), aged 40, is the chief financial officer of the Group
and has held the current post since 2008. Mr. Wu is responsible for overseeing
and managing overall finance of the Group. With over 19 years of experience
within the Group, Mr. Wu had held various positions at the Group from 1999 to
2008, including head of the finance department of the Group, financial director
of Jinan Dali Foods Co., Ltd., accountant of Quanzhou Dali Foods Co., Ltd., and
financial specialist of Hubei Dali Foods Co., Ltd.. Mr. Wu graduated from the
Accounting Department of the School of Modern Distance Education GRUi=
FEHE 287) of Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics (36 A ZE
FRAEE) with a diploma in Accounting in 2015.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBREE

Huang zhiqing (E&3)
Chief procurement officer

Mr. Huang Zhiqing (E&i5), aged 54, is the chief procurement officer of the
Group and has held the current post since 2008. Mr. Huang is responsible for
supervising and managing the overall purchasing and supply of the Group.
With over 27 years of experience within the Group, Mr. Huang had served as
the head of the procurement department in the Group from 2006 to 2008, as a
purchasing manager in Fujian Dali from 1998 to 2006 and as a purchasing
specialist in Fujian Dali from 1993 to 1998. Mr. Huang was awarded the
professional title of senior economist by the Human Resources and Social
Security Department of Jilin province in 2012. Mr. Huang was elected as a
representative of the sixteenth People’s Congress of Quanzhou Municipality
(B+H/NERIMNTHAKRNTE) and recognized as one of the Top 10 Professional
Managers in 2016 for Food Industry in Quanzhou (SRINTI B RITE T —X
FEHEBZLIEA) in2017.

Le Zhengiao (44R%R)
Head of product research and development department

Mr. Le Zhengiao (#43RER), aged 43, senior engineer, is the head of product
research and development department of the Group and has held the current
post since 2007. Mr. Le is responsible for research and development of new
products and supervising the quality control of the products of the Group.
Mr. Le has over 17 years of experience within the Group.

Mr. Le graduated in 2001 from Shaanxi University of Science and Technology
(BREARIE KZ2), previously known as Northwest Institute of Light Industry (78
168 T 2 23B57), with a bachelor’s degree in Biochemical Engineering, with a
minor in Computer Application and Maintenance. Mr. Le completed the food
safety capacity building program organized by the Department of Human
Resources and Social Security (A 1B RNt & RFESL) and China Food
Industry Association in 2014. Mr. Le was awarded the professional qualification
of Engineer of Biochemistry by the Human Resources and Social Security
Department of Fujian Province in 2009. Mr. Le was awarded the Certificate of
Professional Qualification in Quality Specialization (B2 51T A BRI
EILFEE) by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC (FREE A BHFNE A F3F)
and the AQSIQ in 2005. Mr. Le was engaged by the Committee of
Standardization Administration of the PRC (FTEIEIKIZELEREEZER) as
a member for the National Committee of Snack Food Technology
Standardization (SAC/TC490) (ZEIAME B MIZE(CIMTEZE ) in 2009 and
as a member for the National Committee of Baked Product Technology
Standardization (SAC/TC488) (ZEUEIE R MIRZEIERITEZEE) in 2004. Mr.
Le was awarded the honorary title of National Advanced Worker for Quality
Works (ZBIEE T1EHET{EE) by the China Quality Inspection
Association (REIE @ E1HE) in 2014.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EEREREEBREE

Chen Ying (Fk3E)
Joint company secretary

Ms. Chen Ying (B&5H), aged 35, joined the Group in 2016. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Chen was a lawyer at Shanghai Llinks Law Offices from 2011 to
2016, specializing in capital market with extensive professional experience in
securities issuance, merger and acquisition, corporate assets reorganization,
equity investing and financing and post-listing legal and compliance matters.
Ms. Chen graduated from Xiamen University with a master’s degree in law in
2011 and graduated from Southwest University of Political Science and Law
with a bachelor’s degree in law in 2008, as well as a bachelor’s degree (dual
degree) in English literature from Sichuan International Studies University in
the same year. Ms. Chen obtained her practicing certificate in Law in the PRC
issued by China Ministry of Justice. Ms. Chen is also a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Chen Ying (B&5H), was appointed as a joint company secretary on March 18,
2018. Please refer to “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management —
Senior Management” for details of her biography.

Mak Sze Man (255, has served as a joint company secretary of the Company
since May 29, 2019. Ms. Mak is currently a senior manager of Corporate
Services Division of Tricor Services Limited, a global professional services
provider specializing in integrated business, corporate and investor services.
Ms. Mak has over 23 years of experience in the corporate secretarial field and
has been providing professional corporate services to Hong Kong listed
companies as well as multinational, private and offshore companies. Ms. Mak
is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered Governance Professional and an
Associate of both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom (formerly Known as
“The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators” in the United
Kingdom). Ms. Mak holds a master degree in corporate governance from the
Graduate School of Business of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEE == #Eﬂ:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that good corporate governance
standards are essential in providing a framework for the Company to
safeguard the interests of shareholders and enhance corporate value,
formulate its business strategies and policies, and enhance its transparency
and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles
and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on Stock Exchange and the Company has
adopted the CG code as its own code of corporate governance.

The Board is of the view that throughout the year ended December 31, 2020
the Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG Code,
save for code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, detail of which is explained in the
relevant paragraph in this report.

The Board will periodically review and enhance its corporate governance
practices to ensure that the Company continues to meet the requirements of
the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the transactions of
securities of the Company by the directors and the relevant employees who,
because of their office or employment in the Group, are likely to possess inside
information of the Company, the Securities Dealing Code, on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and all of them have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code and the Securities

Dealing Code throughout the year ended December 31, 2020.

No incident of non-compliance of the Securities Dealing Code by the
employees was noted by the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS WA

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and HEEEFHEAEENER  FRAERERE > I
performance and should take decisions objectively in the best interests of the  ZBZERVEH TS AA B REFIHHIRE o
Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a Directorto  #E & ATHIRS EERBITHE A ATINEEM
perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Director is ~ BfEHMEE » URESTRACHERBTH

spending sufficient time in performing them. HARNBNELE ©

The Board of the Company comprises the following directors: KABDEETEAHUTESMEMN
Executive Directors: WITES !

Mr. Xu Shihui (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) St B A (F/E RITEAEZ)
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang Rkt

Ms. Xu Yangyang BT

Ms. Huang Jiaying (appointed on February 8, 2021) BEELLT (W ZE—F_H/\HEZF)
Non-executive Directors: JFHITES !

Ms. Xu Biying SFEEY L

Ms. Hu Xiaoling EABEIO 2+

Independent non-executive Directors: BIUIFNITES !

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan 2E)kE

Mr. Liu Xiaobin 2N

Dr. Lin Zhijun MEEEL

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed ~ EEMBEBRHIINAERE4SEEFEREE
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 45 to 53 of this FE&SHRBIEE[EE —& °
annual report.

The relationships between the members of the Board are disclosed under EEGREMZ RGN AERESEEEREE

“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 45 to 53 of this  ZEARSHEBEBE] DINE o
annual report.
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Insurance for Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of any
legal action against its directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are held by Mr. Xu
Shihui who is the founder of the Company and has extensive experience in the
industry. The Board believes that vesting the roles of the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer in the same individual would enable the Company to achieve
higher responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when formulating business
strategies and executing business plans. The Board believes that the balance
of power and authority is sufficiently maintained by the operation of the
Board, comprising the executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors.

Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors (representing not less than one-third of
the Board) with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Non-executive Directors

The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
of the Company are appointed for a specific term of one year, and the term is
renewable for one year automatically upon approval by the Shareholders in
general meeting.
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Responsibilities of the Directors

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the businesses, strategic decisions and performance of the Group
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. Directors of the Board take decisions
objectively in the interests of the Company.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and financial performance,
and ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in
place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company.
The Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses for discharging their
duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to
implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating the daily
operation and management of the Company are delegated to the
management.

B
EXgaERERIER A AT MEEAERAYE
B ARRKRERE U RRERRATNAINMIES
REEHEBEREE BEFEREFALAT
M PR FERE o

EFgERKERBAHEE RIERBILEE
BITEREEEREL A HRMIEE » BERA
SENEERMBHERE > WEFREHTEHIANER
BEEREREERLE

2REE (BEFFRTESRBIIFNTES) 13
AEFENNERREMEFEREZNEEHE
B ~ IR Bk o

EREFIINENRFERERREMEER -
EFRERTEHERSRBUEERR » HE
BITA A B FBR S A AT AHE

EFANARDRERFEENEMBEF
B MEFETEEMERASEFTOLRETET
HE R FHBER

EXEBEREMAREFE  ETIREERS
B RERRE REREREREE  EAX
7 RHRAESIRMNEEHERNER) - UHBE
B ZEEERAATHMERNSEEE - BRI
HITEFERR BERBRAELARDAEEER
EENHEERTEERE -

ENEREERRRAE . F£I 2020 57



Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the Company and of
the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Internally
facilitated briefings for Directors will be arranged and reading material on
relevant topics will be issued to Directors where appropriate.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the following Directors participated
in the following trainings:

Directors Type of Training“°t

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Shihui A,B

Mr. Zhuang Weigiang A,B

Ms. Xu Yangyang AB

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Xu Biying AB

Ms. Hu Xiaoling A,B

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan A,B

Mr. Liu Xiaobin AB

Dr. Lin Zhijun AB

Note:

Types of Training

A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars, conferences and
workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant publications
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the
Company are established with defined written terms of reference. The terms
of reference of the Board committees are posted on the website of the
Company and of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (‘HKEX”) and
are available to Shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are independent non-
executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each Board
committee is set out under “Corporate Information” on pages 2 to 3 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing
the financial information and reporting system, internal control and risk
management systems, effectiveness of the internal audit function, relationship
with external auditors, and arrangements to enable employees of the
Company to raise concerns about possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters of the Company.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year to discuss the audit
process and accounting issues with the external auditors and to review,
among other things, (i) the annual financial results for the year ended
December 31, 2019 and the interim results for the six months ended June 30,
2020 and the relevant reports prepared by the external auditors relating to
2020 annual audit and interim review plans and major findings in the course
of audit/review, (i) significant issues on the financial reporting, operational
and compliance controls, (iii) the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems and internal audit function, (iv) appointment of
external auditors and their relevant scope of work, as well as (v) continuing
connected transactions.

During the year, the Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice
without the presence of the management of the Company to discuss the audit
procedures and accounting issues.
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Remuneration Committee

The primary functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management; and establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will participate
in deciding his/her own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure of
the Company and the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management and other related matters.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band are set out
under “Report of the Directors — Senior Management’s Emoluments” on page
40 of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the
Board composition, developing and formulating relevant procedures for the
nomination and appointment of directors, making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and succession planning for directors, and
assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

The Board has adopted a “Board Diversity Policy” to achieve and maintain
diversity on the Board in order to strengthen the performance of the Board,
promote effective decision-making and better corporate governance and
monitoring. The Company considered that diversity of board members can be
achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not
limited to skills, experience and cultural and educational background,
geographical, industry and professional experience, ethnicity, gender, age,
knowledge and length of service.

Based on the business needs of the Group, the Nomination Committee has
recommended and the Board has adopted the following measurable
objectives:

(@)  at least one-third of the Board members shall be independent non-
executive Directors; and

(b)  at least one of the independent non-executive Directors shall have
obtained accounting or appropriate professional qualifications.

The Nomination Committee shall monitor the implementation of the Board

Diversity Policy and review the progress of its measurable objectives from time
to time.
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The Company has also adopted a Director Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process and the Board succession planning
considerations in relation to nomination and appointment of Directors of the
Company and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity
of the Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following;

. Candidate’s age, skills, knowledge, experience, expertise, professional
qualifications, academic qualifications, background and other personal
qualities

Impact on the composition of the board and the diversity of its
members

Commitment by the candidate to devote sufficient time and effectively
perform his or her duties

The number and nature of the positions of candidates in public
companies or organizations or other administrative appointments or
otherimportant work commitments

Potential/actual conflict of interests with the Company upon
appointment of candidates

. Candidate’s independence

Length of service of the proposed re-election of independent non-
executive director who has been serving to the Company

Other factors that the Nominating Committee considers to be relevant
on a case-by-case basis

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection
and appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. During the year ended December 31, 2020, there was no change in
the composition of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee met once to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and to consider the qualifications of the retiring
directors standing for election at the 2020 Annual General Meeting. The
Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives of the Board is maintained.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year, the Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Securities Dealing Code, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board Committees
meetings and the general meeting of the Company held during the year ended
December 31,2020 is set out in the table below:

ER - RREEEEAM—REH > MBESNES
FHRIE ~ R URIE L IFNTEENE
Tt BEBR _E_EFRFBFAG LRE
NWEIEFNER - RBREEEIREFEETT
{ERHN BT EHESUAES -

RSB IRIAE
EXEaERTRETRIBTRIRSIE D3 1IRFT
BHYBEAE ©

FR EFETERATARNEEERBRAS
B BEEREREEERNEIRSEEEERE
FRABEETEAREERENBERKLER &
TRETHREFEETIURETEE TR
RAEGEERBREPIEHIVKE -

HUF N 6 sk
TRBNSEFLERE_S_TE+ 8
St-BLEERRTNESEREEEEEY
ELURAAFREA TS |

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HERY FERY

Audit Remuneration  Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EENE EHg #EXEEY HFHEST REZE® RRRE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Xu Shihui SFit 44 N/ATEA N/A R 11 1/1
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang HEARLE 44 N/ATRER N/A B N/A i 1/1
Ms. Xu Yangyang el xodun 4/4 N/A @A 1/1 N/A T iE 1/1
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
Ms. Xu Biying FEREZ T 44 NATRER  NATER  NATER /1
Ms. Hu Xiaoling RS 7+ 4/4 22 N/A i N/A B 11
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE

Directors

Mr. Cheng Hanchuan 2811505 4/4 22 N/A FNiE 11 1/1
Mr. Liu Xiaobin B NRAE 4/4  N/ATER 1/1 11 11
Dr. Lin Zhijun MEEE L 4/4 2/2 /1 NATRER 11

The Chairman also held a meeting with the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of other Directors during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2020.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 141 to 242.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid/payable to the external auditors of the
Company, Messrs. Ernst & Young, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended December 31, 2020 is set out below:

HE AR IR EAT

EERIEHGRAERBE"_E"EF A
= t+—HIEFESHTBRROEE -

NABDBIUZEM AR EM B RRNBSETE
BEENE 141 BEEF 24 BB IZEEIRER o

A T
REE—E-BE+ A=+ AILEENER
RS RIFBRRBEAADINERUAR G 5t
EEBFRIEL, T HMO TR T :

Service Category ARFEEER Fees Paid/Payable

et FEHER

RMB

ARE

Audit Services BEIZARTS 4,500,000
Non-audit Services (including Tax compliance service, JEEIZARTS ( &TE%RVA%EHEV TRFEEEER

Tax advisory, ESG reporting advisory and RiE %iﬁ&”é ARG B
Risk management reporting advisory) Efe SRR E5H) 778,000
Total = 5,278,000
COMPANY SECRETARIES AL T

The Company has engaged Tricor Services Limited (“Tricor”), external service
provider. Ms. Mak Sze Man, a senior manager of Corporate Services Division of
Tricor, has been appointed as the Company’s joint company secretary since
May 29, 2019. Its primary contact person at the Company is Ms. Chen Ying, the
joint company secretary of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholder interests and rights, a separate resolution is
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including
the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward at general
meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of HKEX after each general
meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Pursuant to Article 12.3 of the Articles, any two or more shareholders or any
one shareholder which is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) (the
“Requisitionist(s)”) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition. If
the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the
Requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than one-half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene the general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit of the
requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the Articles or the Cayman Islands Companies Law
for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders
who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph. As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a
Person for Election as a Director of the Company” which is posted on the
Company’s website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company will not normally
deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the
following:
Address:  Room 2601, 26th Floor, One Harbourfront, 18 Tak Fung Street,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong

(For the attention of the Joint Company Secretaries)

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the above address and provide their full name, contact details and
identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders is
essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the
Company’s business performance and strategies. The Company endeavours
to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders and in particular, through
annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the annual general
meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet
shareholders and answer their enquiries.

The Company maintains a website at www.dali-group.com as a
communication platform with shareholders of the Company and investors,
where the financial information and other relevant information of the
Company are available for public access.

Constitutional Documents

During the year under review, the Company has not made any changes to its
Articles. An up-to-date version of the Articles is also available on the
Company’s website and HKEX’s website.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board’s Responsibility for Risk Management and Internal
Control

The Board of Directors, as the supreme leading organ in risk management of
the Group, undertakes ultimate responsibility for construction and effective
operation of the overall risk management system, takes charge of the
establishment, improvement and efficient operation of the overall risk
management system and has the discretion to delegate senior management
and operational division of each department in the risk management system.

The Board of Directors is responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks the Group is prepared to take in achieving its
strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems. The
Board has an audit committee which is responsible for overseeing the
appropriateness of the risk management and internal supervision procedure
and the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Group, as well as
providing a confirmation to the Board on the effectiveness of these systems.
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Characteristics of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The Group’s internal control system is formulated according to the principles
of the internal control framework of the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”) in the United States.
With the philosophy of risk management at all levels consistently adopted
according to the framework, the Group has been implementing the risk
management work to the group headquarters and all the subsidiaries with
intensive management against critical risks therein. The components of the
framework are shown as follows:

Internal control framework REBESIEIESS

Control activities
PEFIES

Risk assessment
LA

JoRL B P B A S B A 2 A ) A R

5 [ AY A B B 1 & A AR #5 32 B Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (TCOSO1) BY 7Y &P &5 12 AE 2R B9 JR A1 &l
E o EERRIERGKRENEERBERES

HEREETFESERAN R TETFAS » I
HEDARRREREREE - ERVARE D
R

Information and communication
EERBIE

Identify and evaluate the risks associated
with achieving internal control objectives in
the operating activities, thereby establishing
risk management objectives in light of
specific businesses.

Aol ML= R R EIRIEERAE
RARY AR DUFIE R R EBRE SR E
IREEE R

Environmental control
PERIRIE

Provide enterprise discipline and structure,
create corporate culture and raise
employees’ internal control awareness,
which lay the foundation of all other

internal control elements.

R ERRE BETE - E
BTIRRERR BEMPAERIEENE
RAVERE.

The risk management and internal control systems adopted by the Group are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks associated with its failure
to fulfill business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Establish control measures through policies
and procedures to help ensure that
management directives to mitigate risks are
carried out for achievement of objectives.
BIBBER AL R IR B B FE(R
B RE R LUER B R

o

Internal
Control
Framework

PIBRET
R

Conduct internal and external information
communication to provide the Group with
the information required for daily control.
EITRIME BIUR AR EERHE B
EFENER.

Internal supervision

Supervise and inspect the establishment
and implementation of corporate internal
control to evaluate the effectiveness of
internal controls, identify internal control
defects, and rectify them in a timely manner.
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Risk Management Organizational System

Risk management organizational system E{ EIR{AMER

Nomination Committee

The Board of Directors EHg&

Remuneration Committee

e
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Audit Committee

BREEY

Various subsidiaries
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e Identify, quantify and
monitor risks in their
respective business areas
B st EMEER B
FEeRIE A R

e Formulate and implement
measures to address risks
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Management functions

To be responsible
W [~ for, toreport to
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Responsible persons of
respective subsidiaries
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e Coordinate the
implementation of risk
management and relevant
internal control policies of
the Company
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e Monitor the risk
management of various
business areas
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To authorize, offer
guidance, provide
resources and supervision
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Internal Audit
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Internal Audit Division
NS

Conduct internal audit in
specific areas

RSB AERE

Evaluate the effectiveness
of risk management and
internal control regularly
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To remain consistent, maintain
communication, coordination,
and in mutual collaboration
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Based on the respective responsibilities of the Board of Directors, the Audit
Committee and the management for risk management, the Group has set up a
three-line system regarding its risk management and internal control:

Line 1 serves as a risk bearer for various functional departments as well as
subsidiaries of the Group, undertaking the primary and direct responsibilities
for the risks in business activities. Its main functions include identifying,
quantifying and overseeing the risks within each business area as well as
formulating and implementing risk countermeasures linked to daily operation.

Line 2 is composed of the Risk Management Taskforce and responsible
persons of various centers and subsidiaries of the Group who assist the Group
in the implementation of its risk monitoring and control. The Risk
Management Taskforce is staffed by professionals from the Legal Department,
Human Resources Department and Financial Operation Center, facilitating the
improvement and execution of risk management and control measures
through the transfer and accumulation of professional knowledge and skills
as well as the coordination, integration and monitoring of risk exposures and
management in each business area. The primary duties of responsible persons
of various centers and subsidiaries of the Group are coordinating and
formulating the Group’s risk management and internal control policies and
systems as well as implementing major risk countermeasures and pivotal
internal control processes.

Line 3 comprises the Audit Committee and the Internal Audit Division. The
Internal Audit Division is responsible for carrying out specific tests, verification
and evaluation on the integrity and effectiveness of the risk management
framework and internal control system and providing independent and
objective appraisal. The Audit Committee reviews the process and findings of
the Internal Audit Division’s evaluation on the risk management framework
and internal control system on a regular basis and reports to the Board of
Directors.
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Management Procedure for Risk Management and Internal

Control

JoEL g 7 B B A S P PR AR

The Group has set up a cycle of risk management and internal control system H#EERY—ERNSEESESENRAREIER
in line with the characteristics of our management. It continually operates at ~ REF &R ABIE > T EHAREET > HEEL
regular intervals to manage and monitor the Group’s risks for this financial ~ BAFMEREITEIRHEEE » EFZREWMT ©

year. Main processes are as follows:

].J e Externalindustry-related information collection and industry benchmarking;

SNERITERE B TR R D

e Internal risk management interview, questionnaire survey and risk identification.

3]

Scientific and systematic
analysis of inherent logical
relations between risks;

T§$~%ﬁﬁﬁ$ﬁ}§l RATEERE R

Effective control of key risks;
BRICERIR R

Continuous improvement of the
internal control system readily.

RERE R E IR BB B R o

Risk management
and internal control

EpEEES M
EREEIERIE

2

Application of cause-and-effect
analysis in conducting risk
assessment;
ERRERREET R Ee
In-depth exploration of the
implication of and quantitative
analysis on risks by all staff
members.

2E28, RAZER BN
ZHEEE SRR

FHEERT R eENIERE R o

4

e Enhancing the development of the three-line system for
risk control management and performing duties of daily
supervision;

RMEEZEZARER BB REERE-

e Conducting audit in special areas to ensure “Line 1” has

been set up properly.

FRERBAENE RS BIEERR -
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3

Refining countermeasures so that they are integrated into
daily operation and delegating responsible departments
and posts;

MCREEEHE S H BEERE S SR E R ERPIM R L

Establishing a top-down reporting channel and fulfilling
the role of risk management under “Line 1”.

MRCREEHETE S B B SRR S S B R AR PIM =L
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Collection of risk information

The Group collects and updates risk information both internally and
externally. The Group collects external industry-related information,
conducts industry benchmarking and analyzes industry risks. At the
same time, the Group has collected internal risk management
information through various channels such as internal visits and
questionnaires, effectively identified and analyzed various risk points as
well as updated the Comprehensive Risk Database.

Analysis of risk assessment

The Group reviews the prevailing conditions about its risk management
on a regular basis, mobilizes all members of the Group to participate in
risk assessment, and thoroughly explores the implications of risks by
means of interviews and scoring of risks along with the cause-and-
effect analysis approach. Quantitative analysis and comprehensive
assessment of the risks are conducted from two aspects, namely the
possibility of occurrence and the degree of impacts of risks, to
determine the major risks of the Group for the relevant year which
constitute the List of Major Risks.

Implementation of risk countermeasures

The management of the Group discusses and decides on contingency
plans for major risks, refines countermeasures, and links such risk
countermeasures with day-to-day business operations for the proper
implementation by responsible departments and functionaries and
make clear the crucial contingency arrangement. The Group has
established a bottom-up reporting channel to ensure effective
monitoring of risk countermeasures and give full play to the role of risk
management under “Line 1”.

Continuous supervision of risk

The Group conducts continuous supervision of risks through various
means to ensure the effectiveness of risk management and internal
control system. The Group further enhances the development of the
three-lines system for risk control, conducts daily supervision duties for
risks, explicitly defines the relevant responsible departments for various
risks, and conducts normal supervision over the content and frequency
of its risk management implementation. In addition, the Group regularly
conducts audit in special areas and evaluation of internal control
procedure according to the work plan for annual internal audit and
evaluation on internal control, so as to ensure that the risk control
under “Line 1” has been put in place.

JENC S ESUIES

EERASISWS ERREREBRE
BT TAE - ERILINEPUREITHARRRAE R -
REBITEHR  DNTXRR; Bk &
EBBANRES REMHEFLERE
WEEERE AR SIEERERS > BWH
AR R ER  FEER(ZERRHY
BE) °

J A 53 A
EETEHREENNERERIFR AT
EE2E2HERTG - BEm - AR
ANFLH > BERRDNE > RAEZE
RkRrE > {tREELETEEREEBEE
MIEEE S RRETEEDT « ARasid
BEEEEFNEREAR TR (EXRER
BE) -

v oL M B4 i
EEEEEARNRIEREERRREY
FE MMCRESE BN - )R R S HE e
HEXZBESHAN > WARZEIEE
EBPI R (I - BAFEAEE TIRRYENRLZHE o
EEEITBETMLEINERRE  BRER
RERERNERZ I ENEE > T0%
EEREZERES -

JoRL I 40
EEBBEETRARRRNFEERE
EREREERASIERERRENN -
ERE—IRCEREE=GRAER "
HERMAREERS > RS EARE
BEEAFT > THEREEBERIAESE
SARETERCES o LI EERRE
ENERE T RAIETELFEE > EHIFH
EERBHBE RABERFEIF ) 7
BE—RATEERIIL -

ENEREERRRAE . F£I 2020 71



Corporate Governance Report

AN S
TEERIRS
5. Optimization of risk management

The management of the Group integrates the results of risk assessment
with those of internal audit for the update and improvement of the
Group’s internal control and risk management system. By further
enriching and improving its risk database, the Group conducted
systematic analysis on the causes, impacts and internal logic of various
risks, traced the root causes of risks, grasped the core factors of risks,
enhanced risk countermeasures so as to realize the efficient
management and control of risks and the optimization and upgrade of
the internal control system.

Major Risks and Management Measures in 2020

Major risk management achievements of the year

72

To conduct a comprehensive risk assessment in an orderly manner. The
Group’s Risk Control Taskforce took the lead in carrying out a
comprehensive review of businesses of the Group and its subsidiaries.
The Risk Control Taskforce understood the potential risks of the Group’s
business processes and the countermeasures adopted through field
visits to and questionnaire surveys with various functional departments.
The Risk Control Taskforce led the employees from various departments
to score risks in the risk database from the two dimensions of the
possibility of occurrence and the degree of impacts of risks, in order to
identify the risks that the Group is exposed or will be exposed.

To continue to advance risk control management. The Group’s Food
Safety Center has been expanded, the R&D team and quality control
team are growing by the day, and cooperation with professional
institutions and institutions of higher education has been actively
pursued, so as to attract more professional talents into the Group and
extend quality control and risk control to the front end. In addition, the
Group regularly conducts specific internal audits on food safety, and the
Regional Production Division manages production bases nationwide on
a regional basis, thus strengthening front-end risk control through the
“Group-Region-Subsidiary” three-tier supervision model.
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To actively respond to emergency risk events. The Group actively
responded to the national policies related to the prevention and control
of the COVID-19 pandemic, formulated emergency response plans and
issued epidemic prevention guidelines as soon as possible. Each
company promptly established an emergency management team, and
under the premise of ensuring employee safety and production and
operation safety, actively assumed the social responsibility of food
production enterprises during special periods in organizing the
resumption of work and production in an orderly manner, and ensuring
an adequate supply of epidemic prevention materials. The Group
responded to public health emergencies efficiently and successfully
achieved both “risk control” and “ensuring production”.

To strive to raise awareness of risk control for all staff members. The risk
control culture is the assurance of soft power of the Group’s
comprehensive risk control system. Guided by the overall strategies,
giving priority to production and operation, as well as requiring the
commitment of everyone, the Group continued to increase awareness
of risk control among all staff members and enhance the execution of
risk control by staff members at all levels. The Group carried out the
promotion of risk control awareness through multiple channels, fully
utilizing platforms such as WeChat groups, TV rolling screens and online
education, and advocated the risk control culture from multiple angles,
channels and levels through the promotion of risk control knowledge,
briefings on risk control work and experience exchange sessions, fully
fostering a culture of risk control within the Group and continuously
raising the risk awareness of staff members, in order to play a positive
role in accelerating the construction of the Group’s risk control system,
promoting the normal operation of the system, as well as further
enhancing and standardizing the Group’s operation and management
activities.
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After the process of risk assessment, the Group has identified six major risks
and potential risks in the industry. By integrating them with the characteristics
of the value chains in the food industry, and gaining an understanding of the
potential impacts of the major risks on the Company’s core processes and the
logical relationship among them, the Group proactively pressed ahead with
the comprehensive rectification of risk, specifically formulated and effectively
implemented risk countermeasures, so as to fully support the healthy
operation and development of the Group.
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In respect of its risk exposures, the Group has designed and monitored the
implementation of the following countermeasures through collation of
business processes.

1. Market competition risk

In recent years, the food and beverage industry has shown steady
growth. Due to an overwhelming number of market products and
fragmented industry landscape, market competition continues to be
intensified. If the Group fails to react timely to the increasing health
awareness of consumers, lead the new trend of healthy diet or inject
new momentum to the growth of mature brands, or is unable to strike a
balance between the expansion of new channels and the maintenance
of traditional channels or focus on increase in market share, or fails to
respond to the overall changes in the market environment or implement
reasonable resource allocation, it may lead to a decrease in the
efficiency of the Group’s management and operation and its resilience
to risks, which may affect the Group’s competitiveness in the market.

Countermeasures:

1) Upgrade of branded product lines and continuous
development of new products:

The Group has been following its strategies on industry-oriented
positioning and multi-brand strategy, so as to meet the needs of
different consumer groups. In 2020, products under the
Doubendou and Meibeichen brands performed well in household
consumption industry. Flogurt plant yogurt, launched under the
brand of Doubendou, features with the value of “threefold plant
power and fat-free yogurt with good taste”, with the purpose of
meeting the new consumption demand for healthy nutrition in
the market. Meibeichen launched new short shelf-life bread
including raw toast, soft baguettes and others, providing
consumers with fresh, delicious and diversified breakfast offerings
with dozens of products in five series. With regard to snack food,
Copico introduced a new hollow corrugated puffed snack named
“Kayixia”, which is quite popular among young consumers. Taking
full advantage of the plant protein industry chain, the Group
launched its latest milk tea product — SOYDO Soymilk Tea, which
was highly regarded by consumers. In addition, the Group actively
explored e-commerce business, selected competitive products to
expedite its online setup, and used online promotion to attract
offline consumption, realizing the synergy between traditional
and new channels.
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2)

3)

Da

To enhance product awareness and influence by enriched
marketing channels:

In addition to carrying out regular marketing activities during
holidays, the Group kept abreast of market trends and
implemented multi-channel promotion with combination of
online and offline platforms, which enabled an accurate grasp of
market opportunities. Copico, as a sponsor of a rap music
documentary titled 8 Miles to the Surface ({ # F=8ZH B )),
advocated a pleasant and healthy lifestyle and enhanced its
interaction with general consumers. Hi-Tiger officially sponsored
the 60-year anniversary celebration of the first Chinese team
summitting Mount Everest in 2020, in order to spread its brand
awareness and enhance the influence of its brand and products
through various new media channels such as live streaming and
short videos. Doubendou joined Tencent Video’s TV series Love
Advanced Customization ({=+&#&3F 7] 5z)) by means of cinema
and packaging advertising, and made use of media placement on
PC and mobile platforms and OTT multi-screen casting, with an
aim to reach out to multi-channel audience and enhance product
awareness.

To pay attention to market dynamics and keep up with
development trends:

For offline product sales, the Group’s market research specialists
collected extensive information about domestic and international
markets, cooperated with sizable market research institutions, as
well as conducted site visits to shopping malls and large
supermarkets, grocery stores and import supermarkets to grasp
product trends, sales rankings and other information in a timely
manner, so as to accurately position the Group’s products and
provide guarantees for newly launched products. For online
product sales, the Group paid close attention to similar best-
selling products on major e-commerce platforms, analyzed the
selling points and special nutritional ingredients of best-selling
products, compared the sales performance of its own new
products with that of competing products, enhanced its market
acumen, made timely adjustment to product marketing and
promotion strategies, and reaped dividends from online market.
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2. Food safety risk

Food safety relates to the national economy and people’s livelihood,
and is of vital importance to the food and beverage industry. Food
safety risk arise from the whole process of the Group’s industry chain,
and negligence in any part of the chain may lead to major food safety
incidents. If the Group fails to exert effective control over the quality of
raw materials purchased, production operation, quality inspection
capability, food safety standards and other aspects, the products may
not meet national and industry standards, which may lead to significant
impacts such as customer complaints, product recalls, negative
publicity and damage to the Group’s interests and goodwiill.

Countermeasures:

1)

To continuously pass the food safety qualification
certification:

In 2020, the Group continued to pass ISO9001 quality
management system and ISO14001 environmental management
system certifications, and obtained BRC Global Food Safety
Standard System and HACCP Hazard Analysis and Critical Control
Point System certifications on the basis of passing 15022000 food
safety management system certification. Its competency in food
safety is fully recognized by the industry. In addition, the Group’s
testing center has continued to pass the re-evaluation for the
laboratory accreditation certificate issued by China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (CNAS), and its
capability in product quality inspection remains at a high
standard.
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To establish a product quality control system:

The Group always adheres to the concept of “quality first”, and
places food safety as the top priority for its sustainable and
healthy development by integrating food safety and quality
concepts into each of the work stages. The Group has built a
sound closed-loop management system for product quality
control, and effectively guarantees product quality and food
safety through various measures such as on-site inspection of
suppliers, multi-directional evaluation, inspection of incoming
raw and auxiliary materials, monitoring of the entire production
process, standardized evaluation of product quality, after-sales
tracking service and regular return visits, as well as establishment
of a sound recall mechanism for products in question. Meanwhile,
the Group attaches importance to promoting ideas of food safety
and quality management, and improves the quality awareness
and operation level of employees through a three-tier training
system, with an aim to achieve the goal of “quality for all
employees and safety for all products”.

Increased efforts in food safety and quality inspection:

In 2020, the Group expanded its food safety center for conducting
safety tests along the process of product development,
production and market transformation, so as to make continuous
improvement to its capabilities in food safety and quality
inspection by upholding the concept of moving quality control to
the front end. Currently, the Group has a strong quality control
team of over 1,200 quality control personnel and technical
experts with relevant professional backgrounds and technical
skills. Moreover, the Group has in-depth cooperation with
established professional institutions and colleges, which assists
the Group in identifying and reducing food safety risks, as well as
enhancing its overall capability and professionalism in safety and
quality inspection. The Group’s testing centers conduct random
quality inspection for all the products according to the national
testing standards on a regular basis. In 2020, a total of more than
2,000 internal and external random inspections were conducted,
with a passing rate of 100%.

li Foods Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2020

2)

3)

EREEREERERR

EERRBRE TRBE L) NES
REEZEEHERFREEEREN
BB REnReRAREESE
FREBETFRET - EEERT
ENELEEREMREERR B
BHEHEMER - L5 NES
A REMEAERA  EERRE
B EmEERELTR - ERR
BIRU R ERE ~ BIUBREMEE
A EEH E—R I » BRIRE
EmmBENEnZE - FF > £EE
RERZEREEEBEESMNEE
BE=MRIFIIRRIRSETEEEH
MEERMFEKT  BRIT2888

EmEEINER-

3

MAERRZEERHHE :
TECIEE > ERERERTET
Do HERMELEE  HIHELAR
ETZRMERA > REERLEEE
BAHSENES  FERARMRE
2ESWAEN - Bal > £EEAEE
REEEFEMFEMEENREAER
RMTER120085% » EEBRAN G
PTER o EEBERATFEMER R
RETREGTE > HEIEEHEILE
BERZERER  WaEmERT S
BERAEIRBEMEKTF - £EIR
AR ERRBER AR ERE R
BEETHE ) _ T _TEHHER
AN EB IR 2,000 88 2% » BRBI SR X
EE100% ©



Corporate Governance Report
TEERARS

Raw material price fluctuation risk

The prices of raw materials required for the Group’s production were
affected by the combination of global economic downturn under the
impact of the pandemic, rising consumer index, exchange rate
fluctuations, weather changes, natural disasters, market supply and
demand, environmental protection requirements and other factors,
resulting in increased uncertainty in the Group’s production costs and
its composition. If the Group fails to scientifically forecast and
reasonably predict the price of raw materials based on the
comprehensive analysis of macro-economy and price trends of raw
materials, or lacks effective coping strategies in the event of unfavorable
fluctuation of raw material prices, the Group’s purchasing cost may
increase, which may reduce the Group’s operating efficiency.

Countermeasures:

1)  Toreasonably forecast the price trend of raw materials and
secure purchase price in advance:

At the beginning of each year, the procurement and supply
operation center will analyze and forecast the current domestic
and foreign economic situations and the price trend of all kinds of
major raw materials, formulate annual procurement plan and
submit the procurement budget to the finance department. The
procurement plan and budget will be adjusted monthly according
to the actual situation, which contribute to effective control of
procurement cost. In addition, the procurement and supply
operation center will, based on the historical market price, sign
strategic contracts as needed and appropriate, so as to strike a
balance between the price stipulated in strategic contracts and
market price. Purchase contracts are also signed at lower prices
to secure the prices of bulk purchases in advance and avoid
economic losses to the Group due to price increases caused by
unexpected events.
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To maintain active cooperation with multiple suppliers and
make proactive response to price fluctuations:

Over the years, the Group has maintained close cooperation with
multiple raw material suppliers, and regularly communicates with
multiple suppliers on raw material costs, operation plans, quality
of deliverables, payment terms and other information, which
helps to fully compare the cost analysis of each supplier under
the same quality and business conditions, identify the
discrepancies between each of the cost analysis, and drive a
bargain in price negotiation. Eventually, this enables the Group to
select suppliers with reasonable pricing and reduce its production
costs, thus strengthening the Group’s control over raw material
prices. Meanwhile, by establishing a partnership of mutual trust
with multiple suppliers, the Group is able to ensure timely and
steady access to raw material and negotiate with suppliers to
determine the price of raw materials, so as to further reduce the
impact of price fluctuations.

Significantly reduce the impact of price fluctuations by
comprehensive use of diversified procurement methods:

The Group makes comprehensive use of diversified purchasing
methods, manages seasonal demand for raw materials in a
meticulous manner, and adopts off-season purchasing methods
according to production characteristics, thus effectively avoiding
the risk of rising raw material prices due to concentrated market
demand. Through reasonable forecasting of macroeconomic and
market conditions and scientific analysis of price trend of raw
materials, mid-to-long-term strategic purchase contracts are
signed with suppliers of raw materials in the form of long-term
spot price, which allows the Group to secure the prices in
advance. By doing so, it leads to a reduction in uncertainty of
purchase prices and effective control of purchasing costs, thus
obtaining the relative advantages in terms of purchase prices in
the market.
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Brand reputation risk

Brand reputation is an important factor of building and maintaining
corporate image, and are thus very important for increasing the
influence of the brand, growing customer base and developing
competitive edges. If the Group fails to take active measures to maintain
and enhance its brand reputation, consumers’ recognition and trust in
its brand and products may be adversely affected, which is not
conducive to the establishment of a positive overall image. In addition,
if the Group fails to establish an emergency response mechanism for
external crises such as counterfeit products and negative publicity, and
make timely and effective responses, the Group’s reputation may be
damaged, which is detrimental to the long-term healthy, stable and
sustainable development of the Group.

Countermeasures:

1)  Toenhance brand reputation by receiving domestic
prestigious awards:

In 2020, the Group was named the “Top 50 Enterprises in PRC Soy
Products Industry in 2020” by the Soy Products Professional
Committee of China Food Industry Association. In addition,
Doubendou cooperated with CCTV’s new media and made
appearance in the live streaming program of “Special Session of
Anti-Poverty Fight in Shaanxi and Hubei (B 77 i & B EX Bk 75 74
1EE15)”, which was simulcast on platforms of CCTV news clients,
CCTV video clients, CCTV news Weibo, Taobao, Pinduoduo and
others. This fully demonstrates that the brand has been highly
recognized by influential platforms in China, which in turn
significantly improves general consumers’ perception of the
brand, drives forward upgrading of brand image and supports
continuous enhancement of brand reputation.
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Actively safeguard the interests of the Group by ongoing
improvement in public opinion monitoring:

The Group continues to improve its system for monitoring public
opinion, and its internal departments jointly carry out real-time
monitoring of information spreading on major social media
platforms and mass media and dissemination channels.
Meanwhile, it conducts ongoing tracking of contents in relation to
the Group and its subsidiaries, competitors, consumer behavior,
brand image and unexpected events, categorizes negative
publicity into different levels, and make timely and proactive
responses in order to maintain the brand image. Besides, in
response of all kinds of counterfeit products in the market, the
Group safeguards its legitimate interests by comprehensive use of
official announcements, anti-counterfeit designs, on-site evidence
collecting and litigations. In 2020, the Group won a number of
cases on trademark infringement, thus successfully maintaining
the brand image, effectively safeguarding the legitimate interests,
and significantly enhancing the brand reputation of the Group.

To establish positive image by active fulfillment of social
responsibilities:

The Group has been actively committed to charity works and
strived to fulfill its corporate social responsibilities. After the
outbreak of COVID-19, our nationwide subsidiaries and partners
donated supplies of more than RMB10 million to better equip
front-line medical workers in the battle against the epidemic. In
February, the Group further donated Doubendou soymilk in
amount of over RMB10 million, with the hope of fighting against
the pandemic with practical actions and concerted efforts. In
addition, the Group has been actively and consecutively
participating in various charity activities for more than ten years,
by which our positive corporate image is established. In the 11th
“Old-age Subsidy Presentation Ceremony of Dali Foods” held in
January, the Group granted old-age subsidy of RMB10 million to
elders in Huian County, with a goal of promoting the traditional
virtue of respecting and caring the elderly; in 2020, Daleyuan
produced a social issue film featuring left-behind children in
conjunction with Fujian Children’s Channel under the theme of
“Daliyuan — Letting Dreams Set Sail, Love Reunited”; in August,
the “Huian Educational Foundation by Xu Shihui of Dali Foods
Group Company Limited” was merged into the “Liangliang
Education Trust Association” of Huian County, granting RMB10
million as teaching and learning scholarships and student grant,
with beneficiaries of nearly 3,000 teachers and students.
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Consumer behavior change risk

As the social environment and living standards change over time,
consumers’ awareness on health issues have increased. Consumer
groups are stratified in terms of consumption preferences while
showcasing a stronger attraction towards customized and diversified
products. In addition, the pandemic has affected the overall market
environment, where more new consumption scenarios and driving
forces have emerged. If the Group does not conduct in-depth research
on consumer behavior or analyze the changing trends of consumption
patterns as well as related driving forces for an accurate understanding
of various consumer groups’ different needs and preferences in product
price, appearance, function and other aspects, it may reduce
consumers’ loyalty and purchase rate and weaken product market
share, thereby affecting the overall revenue of the Group.

Countermeasures:

1)  Tofurther explore product marketing channels and promote
brand images:

With an increasing number of consumers switching from
traditional offline purchase to the modernized online platforms,
the Group has enhanced its efforts in developing the e-commerce
segment and achieved full coverage of the segment by including
pastry, biscuit, puffed food and beverage products. It has also
been growing a fanbase for the brands through cooperation with
well-known KOLs (Key Opinion Leader) to improve brand
influence. In 2020, the Group made efforts to reach consumers
from various perspectives and angles by adopting a diversified set
of promotional channels. For example, real-life claw machine
games for Copico fresh-cut potato chips were launched at the
atrium of Wanda Plaza to encourage consumer engagement and
deliver a better customer experience; Doubendou cooperated
with top streamers from various major e-commerce platforms for
interactive marketing, strengthening brand images among end-
users; Hegizheng conducted brand promotion campaigns at
subway stations, and achieved a high level of exposure within a
short time by a combination of innovative AR games and trending
Weibo topics.
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Dali Foods Group Company Limited -

Upgrade and innovate product positioning to strengthen the
original growth engine of sales:

The overwhelming outbreak of COVID-19 in 2020 caught the world
unprepared, urging consumers to raise concern over food
nutrition and health. The Group underwent a comprehensive
upgrading for all product lines to inject new impetus into product
sales growth through measures such as upgrading brand
positioning, developing new products and optimizing quality. In
2020, the Group optimized and upgraded our brand positioning
of Doubendou, which shifted from “Enriching nutrient with
technology” to “Focusing on plant nutrient”, and continuously
stepped up efforts on our plant-based protein series, where soy
milk by-product such as plant-based yogurt was launched with a
very strong identification and competitiveness compared to
similar products to fully capitalize on our advantages in the
industrial chain. Bread under our Meibeichen brand continued to
be positioned as “Fresh breakfast with plenty choices” and
adhered to the brand concept of being “Fresh, Delicious and
Diversified”, to cater for the changing needs of modern consumers
for bread products in different consumption scenarios with a
large variety of freshly-baked nutritious short shelf-life bread.
Stemming from our product philosophy of “Minimizing additives
and maximizing nutrition”, Beiyouxing led the snacks market for
children with its increasingly healthy and innovative flavor.
Daliyuan launched three types of cakes with luxurious texture,
rich nutrients and improved healthy component that meet
various needs of consumers for ingredients, flavor and color. We
added a new hollow corrugated puffy snack “Crisp Chips (H—
“N)” under the Copico series to satisfy younger consumers’
pursuit for texture. A new bottle packaging with ancient text
printed thereon is on the way to its debut to enter the consumer
market of the Z Generation group utilizing innovative AR
technology.
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3)  To analyze consumer behavior through scientific
methodologies and achieve innovation and evolution of
product R&D:

At the stage of new product research and development, the Group
obtains information on market trends, consumer behavior and
new product competitors through various channels, and analyzes
consumer behavior based on data to stay ahead of changes in
consumer demands in the market; and combined with the
existing strengths and experiences of the industry chain, the
Group conducts internal assessment to accurately position its
target consumer groups and brands, so as to determine the
direction of new product design and development. The Group
collects domestic and international market data through market
research specialists and tracks product market trends; uses its
e-commerce platform database to track the sales of new
competitive products, focusing on new product selling points,
promotional highlights, product ingredients, nutrients, etc.;
conducts in-depth research on various sub-segments through
supplier networks and regular visits to supermarkets and grocery
stores; and extensively collects consumer information.

Macro-economics and politics risk

The food and beverage industry is subject to macro-economic and
political changes. If the Group fails to keep up with the changes in
policies and regulations and the adjustment of industry standards and
optimize the Group’s operation and management in a timely manner,
decisions made by the Group may become inappropriate and have
adverse effects on the Group’s operation. In addition, under the
influences of external uncertainties, such as the continuous spreading
of the pandemic overseas and the aggravation of geo-political risks, and
increasingly intensified market competition as well as RMB exchange
rate fluctuation, the growth of the Group’s product sales and income
may be negatively impacted.
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Countermeasures:

1)

2)

Da

To pay close attention to changes in policies and regulations
and actively seek policy support and incentives:

The Group pays close attention to and regularly reviews newly
implemented policies and regulations and revises its corporate
system and workflow in a timely manner according to the new
policy and regulation guidelines to ensure functional and orderly
internal operation of the Group. During the pandemic, the Group
has received strong support from the local government and
obtained the certificate of enterprise qualification for livelihood
protection issued by the provincial department of commerce,
thus smoothly solving the issue of product transportation. The
Group carefully studied and reasonably utilized various
supporting policies during the pandemic, and has enjoyed several
preferential treatments, including incentives for electricity
consumption increment, social insurance remission and price
reduction for electricity and gas. The Group was also selected as
one of the enterprises listed in the “Ten Thousand” Production
and Efficiency Enhancement Action Plan for Top Three Industries
(——ZEETHT BEEMITEN A Z) in Fujian Province.
The Group has actively responded to the central and local
governments’ call for corporate innovation and has sought
special funding support from the central government to enhance
its core competitiveness in manufacturing as well as industrial
technology transformation.

To actively participate in the formulation of industry
standards and vigorously promote healthy industry
development:

The Group is an important member and governing entity of the
China National Food Industry Association, and actively
participates in the formulation of national food safety standards.
It is also aware of policy changes in the national food and
beverage industry at an early stage. In 2020, the Group
participated in the development of GB7099 national food safety
standard, GB/T22699 general principle of puffed food quality and
revision of GB/T38404-2020 standard for hot filling and capping
machine for fruit and vegetable juice and beverages containing
pellets. Through promoting standardization and systematization
of the food industry and by establishing sound cooperative
relationships with other standardization institutions in the
industry, the Group has been fostering healthy, steady and
sustainable development of the food industry.
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3)  To establish an emergency response mechanism in time to
effectively solve public health crisis:

During the first half of 2020, the unexpected outbreak of the
pandemic forced enterprises to suspend operation and
production and resulted in the disruption of supply chains and
closure of certain outlet stores, while the daily operation of the
Group was also affected to some extent. The Group actively
responded to national policies on epidemic prevention and
control and formulated emergency plans against the pandemic. It
arranged for resumption of work and production in an orderly
manner under the premise of ensuring safety while providing
sufficient epidemic prevention supplies to protect employees’
health and safety and to ensure operation security. In the
meantime, the Group was able to maintain its profit margin by
reasonably deploying resources and improving management
efficiency and succeeded in sustaining stable cash flows amidst
this special time, thus strengthening its risk resistance capability.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS REVIEW OF 2020

The Internal Audit Division, in accordance with the annual audit plan approved
by the Audit Committee in 2020, carried out independent review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and major internal control,
covering financial control, operational control and compliance control. The
Internal Audit Division reported the audit results to the Audit Committee and
the Board of Directors, recommended rectification measures and exchanged
views with the management and took follow-up actions to ensure that the
management has put such rectification measures into practice.

The Audit Committee scrutinizes and approves the review results and
comments from the Internal Audit Division regarding the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control system and the risk management system on a regular
basis and reports major events to the Board of Directors.

As of December 31, 2020, the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee have
conducted a review on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems, including adequacy of resources, employees’
qualification and experience, training programs and budgets of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting functions. The Board of Directors is of the
view that there is no material deficiency in the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems in terms of integrity, rationality and validity.
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ABOUT THE REPORT
Overview

The report is the fifth annual Environmental, Social and Governance
(hereinafter referred to as “ESG”) Report issued by Dali Foods Group Company
Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Dali” or the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries “We” or the “Group”) which mainly discloses the Group’s
performance on ESG. The report covers work for the financial year from 1
January 2020 to 31 December 2020 (the “reporting period”).

Preparation Basis

The report was prepared in accordance with the revised Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide published in December 2015 as set out in
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The report contents are determined according to a set of systematic programs
and relevant procedures include: identification and prioritization of important
stakeholders, identification and prioritization of ESG related important topics,
determination of boundary of ESG report, collection of relevant materials and
data, preparation of report according to the data, verification of data in report,
etc.

Scope and Boundary Of The Report

Unless specially stated, the policies, statements and data in the report
basically cover the Group’s headquarters and subsidiaries while certain
information on community is related to “Liangliang Education Trust
Association” of Huian County. The currency used in the report is RMB.

Data Source and Reliability Assurance

The data and cases of the report are mainly from the statistics report and
related documents of the Group. The Group undertakes that there is no false
record or misleading statement in the report, and we shall be liable for the
authenticity, accuracy and completeness of the report.

Confirmation and Approval

As confirmed by the management, the report was approved by the board of
directors on March 29, 2021.
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METICULOUS GOVERNANCE AND SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

The Group has always upheld the corporate ideal of “Creating Quality with
Heart” by incorporating sustainable development into our corporate
development strategy and committing to providing reliable healthy food,
beverage and family consumer mode for numerous households. We continue
to create wonderful quality of life for consumers and join hands with our
partners in the mutual pursuit of good health and a wonderful life.

ESG Governance

The Group continues to improve the organization and working mechanism of
ESG and commits to applying ESG requirements to the comprehensive
process of our business operation and turning our responsible operation
ideals as a corporate as well as our undertakings to stakeholders into practice.
By way of setting up ESG governance structure comprised of the Board, Audit
Committee and ESG Working Group, we ensure the ongoing and effective
implementation of our ESG management measures. In the future, we will
continue to deepen the involvement of the Board in respect of the ESG risk
evaluation and management process, in order to keep enhancing the scientific
and systematic development of our ESG management.

EEGRENME EET EEESCRER

The Board 0
BExg

EHESCHERRERE

e  Monitor the ESG matters of the Company
EEARNBRE HERERER

HEAE R 85T ESGABRARYE R

Audit Committee
BZEEY
W iRREEGIBIBESGHRE

o Responsible for daily ESG follow ups
BEHEESCEHMHIE

ESG Working Group
ESGI{E/A .

EHRESGHITZE FER
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e  TheBoard is responsible for the evaluation, determination and management of ESG risks

Ensure the Group has set up appropriate and effective ESG management and internal control system
BREERISBAMNESCEERNEIEIERAM

e Review and approve ESG policies and report

e  Suggest ESG strategies to the Company and identify material ESG risks and ESG opportunities
HEARTIESGERER MUK # B EAESGRME R 4B

e Approve and review the ESG related policies
®  Review the annual ESG report of the Company, make appropriate disclosure of the ESG risks
encountered by the Group, the measures taken and the progress in achieving the objectives, and

recommend the Board to approve the ESG report

ERAABNEEESCR S BENRBEAEEFEHNESCE R BRI RER B IRNER

Report regularly to ESG implementation committee
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Communication With Stakeholders

We are fully aware that the long-term momentum of our sustainable
development lies in striding ahead with our stakeholders. We attach great
importance to the communication with stakeholders by learning the
demands, opinions and suggestions from different parties and integrating the
focus of stakeholders into the operational and decision-making procedure of
the Group, and hence continuing to pursue the mutual value maximization
among us and our stakeholders. During the reporting period, the major
stakeholders who are closely related to the Group that we identified including
shareholders/investors, government departments, suppliers, staff,
community/organizations/NGOs, Medias, as well as customers.

TRILRERAN T 2R S AABRIFTRE LR

The following table sets forth issues of concern from different groups of

stakeholders during the reporting period: & .
Groups of Communication channels/

stakeholders Issues of concern Feedback form Frequency/Number of times
A 4H5 RN EE R BERE REAN SER R

Shareholders/
Investors

Operation Results
Pandemic Response
Food Safety

Green Production
Climate Change Risks

— General Meeting

— Investors Telephone Conference
— Investors Conference

— Result Announcements Meeting
— Press Release/Announcement
— Online Reverse Roadshow

— Mail Communication

General Meeting is held once a year;
Investors Conference and Telephone
Conference are held irregularly

BRI EE e N BRAREEFET X REER
RISREY — REEERER mEeMhEFENEHET
Rmm&ZE - REERES
RRELEE — XEnmhe
RIRBCRER — kR RE
— R ERAKE
— BER
Government Food Safety — On-site Research and Investigation Irregular
Departments Green Production — Meeting
Operation Compliance
B RTERFT RmEE — IG5 T
REBLE —gHK
BREE
Suppliers Supply Chain Management — On-site Research and Investigation Irregular
Food Safety — Supplier Assessment Regular
HrEm HEEE R — IG5 T 5
RmmZE — HEREZ £
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Groups of Communication channels/
stakeholders Issues of concern Feedback form Frequency/Number of times
A H5 RAER EE R BERE RESN SER R

Staff Employee’s Rights — Staff Interviews Irregular
Remuneration and Benefits — Internal Email/hotline

— Internal WeChat Public Account

— Employee Satisfaction Survey

— Employee Complaint QR Code

BT — BIE#* T EH
oA — NEPE T, AR
— ABBMIERRIR
— BImBERE
— BITRF M
Community/ Green Production — On-site Research and Investigation Irregular
Organizations/ Food Safety — Meeting
NGOs
HEAL B4 EI=ES:s — RGN T HA
FEELAFAR 4 BmRE — g%
Food Safety — Press Release/Announcement Irregular
Product Tracing — Interview
— Meeting
BRmRE — ¥ERNE T HA
EmEW — K&
~ &%
Consumers Food Safety — Online Promotion and Release Irregular
Food Nutrition and Health  — Offline Promotion

— Contact Through Telephone/Email
— WeChat/Weibo
— Questionnaire

— Symposium
BmZE — KR EHEEEM TEH
RmEEREER — RTHEREEE

— B/ ETHH

— s /18

— B

— E#E
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Material Issues Analysis

In 2020, we have identified a list of potential material issues considering the
Group’s business development, industry policy trends, media reports and ESG
regulatory requirements, and have integrated the opinions and expectations
of various stakeholders into our ESG management strategy and policy
formulation through interviews. By conducting a material analysis on each
identified issue, we have developed a matrix for material issue of the Year.

Assessment process of material issues E X {$ % (LB

l | Identify potential material issues B EE A5

To examine the media analysis, industry benchmarking analysis and reviews on other relevant documents, we
could identify the potential material issues which reflect the economic, environment and social impact brought
by the Group’s business, or affect the stakeholders’ evaluations and decision making on the Group.

FFIBBIRED T FITH R DT R EMARRIS (R B RES0 S PR A SR M 275 AR A RO  IRIB AN &

T AR BRSNS EETGTRARETEE RS

l | Prioritize potential material issues Ef EE 54 g A1

To conduct comprehensive and in-depth interviews, learn the priority issues of concerns for each stakeholder,
review the potential material issues again and prioritize them based on the influence on both the Group’s ESG
development and the stakeholders, resulting in the formation of a matrix of issues.

FHEZERANT 7RSS AFTRERNELER ENMERETEERE T REHAEFESCERR

EFHRE A EMESEE T o EEERE-

l | Prioritize potential material issues 4%

R

To examine whether the report content provides a reasonable description of the Group’s impact and ESG
performance and whether the process for preparing the report content reflects the intent of the reporting

principles and invite input from stakeholders.

BEREANBESRE T ARAERNZEMESCREN SR URFENRENTIEES R T H

SRANBE TEFSEm A RHER.

During the reporting period, we have adjusted the importance of issues such
as pollutant management, carbon footprint, packaging material management,
employee care and customer privacy based on the assessment of the material
issues for 2019 and according to the operation characteristics of the Group
and priority of concerns of stakeholders, thus developing 9 most material, 8
moderately material and 3 less material ESG issues for the Year. Such issues
constitute a significant part of the content of this report, in which we will
disclose relevant management initiatives in detail.
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Importance towards the Group HHAE@EMEEM
1 Integrity g Employee developmentand training 15 Intellectual property rights
HIERE BT ERMEE e EE
2  Water resources management g Employeecare 16 Producttracing
KEFEE BT E B
3  Pollutant management 30 Occupational health and safety 37 Customer communication and service
ERMER RS e ERBIBERES
4 Carbon footprint 11 Supply chain management 18 Customer privacy
ik B &5 e EIR ERE
5  Packaging material management 12 Productinnovation 19 Social participation
BEMRIEE EmBIRT HtE2H
6 Employee rights 13 Food safety 20 Pu blic welfare and charity
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7 Employee salary and benefits 14 Food nutrition and health
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Integrity and Compliance

Legal and compliant operation and adherence to business ethics are the
foundation of an enterprise’s development. The Group always sticks to
business ethics and strives to build a standardized, compliant, transparent
and healthy development model in its business operation activities. We strictly
abide by the relevant laws and regulations including but not limited to the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Basic Standards for Corporate
Internal Control and the Interim Rules on Prohibition of Commercial Bribery, as
well as formulated internally a number of standards including the Anti-fraud
Management Rules, so as to proactively facilitate a comprehensive compliance
management system. During the reporting period, we have organized
compliance interpretation training activities in the context of the latest
domestic and international laws and regulations for frontline business
personnel, which have covered 120 people in aggregate and enhanced the
business credibility of the Group.

Integrity enhancement is the basis of corporate wellness and orderly
production operation. The Group has actively created an impartial and honest
business environment and resolved to eradicate any form of corruption and
bribery. We have established a permanent anti-fraud body and performed
integrity inspection work in the Group based on the sessions of prevention in
advance, investigation during the event and afterward disposal, ensuring the
healthy development of the Company. During the reporting period, the Group
did not have any corruption lawsuit cases.

In addition, we pay extra emphasis on the privacy protection of
whistleblowers. All reported information is received and managed by a limited
number of specialists and transferred to the investigation department, and no
information about whistleblowers would be involved in all investigations, so
as to ensure that no staff or stakeholders will receive unfair treatment due to
reporting corrupt practices. Besides, we made efforts in driving the
development of our integrity culture within the Group. During the reporting
period, we organized a number of integrity training sessions with number of
trained staff reaching 1,128 and training hours totaling at 2,888.
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Honorary Award
The Group strives to deepen the integration of our business and social
responsibility by combining our corporate value with social technology
innovation and civil health upgrade. In 2020, we received accreditation and
recognition from various sectors of the society, including the government,
industry, and media:

Some honorary achievements in 2020

Ranked among the China Top 500 Private Enterprises
of the Manufacturing Industry

PEINEXRERH5005

e All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce

FRESETHEHMSE
Ranked among the China Top 500 Private Enterprises
hEREE%50034

e All-China Federation of Industry and Commerce
FEZETHEHSS

il

S|
AEBBRFREEEEREERAMTAIN - RER
BRIt RS - NETR AR EF R EHER
ME - —T-FTF ZAAEBTRBBM 17
¥ ERESHEERZBEIIREE !

R TEMENNRERA

Elected as the vice president unit
of the first session of CFBB under
China Beverage Industry

Association (Tenure of five years)

BEAPEREIEGENGERES
EF—EREREN (EAF)

e China Beverage Industry Association
CFBB under China Beverage Industry
Association

FREIERE TGS TR D&

2020 Top 100 Fujian Manufacturing 2020 Top 50 Private Enterprises of the Manufacturing

Enterprises Industry in Fujian Province

2020 FEENEXETE1003E 20200 F REARELENERXS503

- Eujtian ProvincS Enterprise and e Fujian Province Federation of Industryand Commerce
ntrepreneur Uunion EE%I%%H“&AQ

BRACERACERBAY oo

° Eujian Broadcasting and Television 2020 Top 100 Private Enterprises in Fujian Province

roup 2020 FEREREL¥10034

REERZAERE

e Fujian Province College of Social Science

e Fujian Province Federation of Industry and Commerce

REEHERER EREIBEMSE

Shanghai Adream Charitable Foundation Ideal
Dream Partner

LIEAZSHANMESSTHABA

e Shanghai Adream Charitable Foundation
L EEZSRATES

2020 Fujian Province Food Industry Pioneer
Enterprise in the Fight against COVID-19
2020 FEREEMITENENERERERHEMER

e  Fujian Province Food Industry Association

REEARRIERS

2020 Top 100 Fujian Enterprises
2020FEET¥10034

e Fujian Province Enterprise and
Entrepreneur Union

REEERETERMSE
Fujian Broadcasting and Television
Group

ERERAAEE

Fujian Province College of Social
Science

BEELER SR
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CRAFTED QUALITY, ATTENTIVE SERVICE

We strive to provide healthy, nutritious and safe products to consumers. Based
on our corporate philosophy of “Creating Quality with Heart”, we are
committed to ensuring food quality and safety, innovating and developing
healthier and more nutritious products to meet consumers’ needs for a
healthy diet and enhance consumer experience, and working with our supplier
partners to fulfil our responsibilities to protect the safety of our customers’
food intake.

Food Quality and Safety
Quality control mechanism

We believe that the safety and health of consumers are of paramount
importance, hence we strictly comply with the Food Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Regulations on the Implementation of the Food Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China and other relevant laws and regulations. We have put in
place a quality control policy which follows the principle of “being conscious
at the outset, gaining control of the source, having attention to detail, placing
focus on the process, conducting inspection as safeguard, and striving to
ensure safety”, as well as a quality management system which follows the four
principles of “one standard, two levels of supervision, three prohibitions and
four non-tolerances”, providing an accurate and clear direction for quality
control.
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In order to ensure the quality and safety of our products, we have continued
to promote the construction of our quality and safety systems, actively
aligning with advanced international standards and establishing an all-round
integrated management system based on 1SO9001 Quality Management
System, 1S022000 Food Safety Management, BRC Food Safety Management
and HACCP Hazard Analysis Management. During the reporting period, the
certifications of the systems owned by the Group and their range of coverage
are as follows:

Range of Coverage System Certifications

ARBEREBEEZE  BMFEHEEELS
BERER  BREEMRITERERE BT
1S09001 EEEIEEE A  ISO2200 B MEEEIE
BRCEMTZEEE -HACCPRBEDITEES AR
MW —RBCAREEIEER - REHN » NERE
ENEBADEBNEEHE B RUOT -

EEHE R A0
Headquarters . ISO9001 Quality Management System
B 1S09001 EEEIERE R
. Halal Product Certification
BEREMRE
. Informational and Industrial Integrated Management System
ERENIX REEERA
. Credibility Management System
WEEEEAR
Headquarters and 7 subsidiaries in . BRC Global Standards for Food-safety

Chengdu, Jinan, Hubei, Jilin,

Guangdong and Ma’anshan
ABBD R Rl AR ~ R ~ 36 ~ HAk

BERMEFELTRNBAT

BRCERZEEINIZHERE A

Headquarters and all subsidiaries .
BB EN B AT

1SO22000 Food Safety Management System
15022000 B Z 2 EIEE AR

. Hazard Analysis and Critical Control Point System
HACCP /B E A EARASRIZHIRABE &+

. Organic Product Certification

B EmsD
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In respect of team building, we have set up a triple-level integrated quality
control team, which comprises the Group’s quality control department, the
company’s quality control testing center and workshop quality control
officers, as well as established a monitoring process to ensure supervisions
are carried through from top to bottom and staff are held to be responsible
from bottom to top. Through these, a scientific, orderly and complete
traceable quality control system and a unique “chain style” full supervision
mechanism have been formed. From purchasing, warehousing, production to
sales, we have established a complete product monitoring system through the
“chain style” mechanism to control the quality of our products throughout
their lifecycle, effectively ensuring product quality and safety.
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Supplier management and assessment

Stable and quality supplier resources can help us ensure the safety and quality
of our products at source. The Group continues to improve its supply chain
management to ensure the stability of our production operations. In order to
promote the development of a digital and modular supplier management
system, we have established an online supplier service system to standardize
the management process, which includes supplier screening, supplier rating
and assessment, etc. As of December 31, 2020, the Group had a total of 556
centralized procurement suppliers, the distribution of which is shown below:

31

Northwest
China

[l

40

Southwest
China

il
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China
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Overseas
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The Group is also committed to maintaining a fair, transparent and
sustainable supply chain ecology. We require our material suppliers to sign a
Supplier Code of Conduct and actively fulfil their environmental and social
responsibilities beyond the usual factors such as food quality and safety. In
addition, to further promote communication within the supply chain, we also
provide support and training to our suppliers to help improve their internal
management practices and production processes, so as to achieve mutual
benefit in our cooperation.

Supplier Management Process {it fif i & 12 5 #2

e  Strict access criteria for production suppliers

S E MRS REREIEARE

HEERETRSE R WRELEEE

I Supplier assessment {8 iR (S

FEBMIPRANE NEFERLE ~ BEANMAHE
LROMEIBLER - HAIEREGEONEHRERD
BI(HEETARN)  BBETEERRE
B 225 ERARLMOMIRENTESEE - It
Sh o BT E—HRIEMER BFRBIER > &
MEREHHEEGTERNEE » EhhRER
BEERBNEEME  BRAFER -

e On-site audits of suppliers to control quality at source

e Based on ISO and HACCP systems, suppliers are evaluated on multiple dimensions such as
delivery quality, price, delivery time and service

ERISOMHACCPEE & R (T H & ER - IRFE L EHEEHHERETEZ

e Classification and control of raw materials into A, B and C categories according to their risk

levels

R REHZ ARSI #A B C=5 WET DR EE

I Supplier support i€ & &
* ® Localized sourcing of key agricultural products to support local agriculture
REMREMS EERAMCEREE KT EtRE

e Technical exchanges and guidance during on-site reviews, and problem solving with suppliers

RSRERETRMIREEES MEREHEERREE
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Targeted support for local growers
ERKGEMEER

During the reporting period, the Group organized three projects in
total to help growers. We invited large domestic and international
agricultural companies to potato order farming bases across China,
where on-site training and guidance on potato cultivation techniques
were provided to local agricultural cooperatives and farmers. During
the on-site training and guidance, relevant agricultural experts
provided farmers and co-operatives with professional cultivation
techniques, taking into account the actual conditions of on-site
farming, making the product growing process safer and more stable,
safeguarding the quality of potatoes, improving the product
acceptability rate and ensuring the quality and safety of food at the
supply end.

HREHRE > AEEHEERAS=RBEREKIEE o HMEE T E
RIRBEEENT I 2AEMEHRBETEREEAM > HEMEES
Fit ~» RRNEREBERMETRSENREEHT - HAREEX
FIRGIEIEEBIET » B RSHENBERBERRRAMS (it
RHTEENBERN > ERELBEAEENEZE2RE » RES
RELE  EeEmoRE  BRHELREmMNEEZE -

Raw material incoming inspection

In addition to strengthening the supervision and management of suppliers, we
have also established strict raw material inspection standards to manage food
safety at source. During the reporting period, the Group’s testing center
conducted food safety monitoring work on heavy metal lead in potato chips
paper cans, fluorescent whitening agents in paper trays and Tetra Pak cartons,
etc., to strictly control incoming inspection and ensure consumer health and
safety.

During the reporting period, by virtue of the systematic and whole-process
control for food quality and safety, the Group’s testing center was awarded the
certificate of “Provincial Enterprise Technology Center” by the Department of
Science and Technology of Fujian Province, the Department of Industry and
Information Technology of Fujian Province and the Department of Finance of
Fujian Province.

ENRmERBRRAR -

R A B R

BRT ISR MR EEIE » RALHIE T BRIBHY
RMEHRERIREE > RELHFEREEERE -
BREHA EERATORRTZERMENES

B AN R ER AR FRERE
2EATHFE BEBESRR  BREHEERER
2o

BEERC 2BEENRREENZE2EE R
FHR - EEBATOERFHRERE N BRI
B BEEIENEEE  FEAMBESE
UG IR [HEERMPO) EE -
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Production process supervision

Based on the effective operation of our food safety management system, the
Group attaches great importance to production process control. We have a
professional quality control team that conducts production site inspections to
ensure that each step of the production process meets food quality and safety
requirements, and we take focused control measures on high-risk key
operational steps. In addition, during the pandemic, we actively carried out a
series of prevention and control measures to ensure food quality and safety in
response to the potential risk posed by the virus to product safety.

Access Control °
AEEE

SEBREERE
FEBRTANETRRREEERANER L
PEEREEBEEE - RMEHETEXNRE
BERETEERSKORE  RIEEEBESE
EEMTRHNEGRAEEBHRZEENR  ITHS
ERR R IR (FIRENIRENERIER R o SN > &
BHEHYRESHERZEERNEBETERRE—
BIRE > RAEBFER T —RIEEHIETIE > XU
FERBEERE -

Internal staff: Temperature check and disinfection are performed before entry. Vaccinations
are provided to officials who travel frequently

PMERE T ABRIETIRIBRR VHR A K E R EABTSEH

e Qutsiders: Negative COVID-19 test result, temperature check, health code, hand-sanitizing and

social distancing are required before entry

SRS ARRAT TR BT RS A SRR S EITRERRA BRI EA AT S R

REFX SR
Logistic Control o
NN}z B EWMABRAETEEHES

Transportations: Comprehensive vehicle disinfection is performed before entry

e Suppliers: Material suppliers are required to provide COVID-19 related information and
are permitted to entry only when a qualified inspection report is obtained

ISR YR HERETH SR BRRADT REURR SRS R i@

Quality and safety control practices during the pandemic

RIS EEZ 2 EETIF

Finished product inspection

The testing center at the Group’s headquarters obtained the laboratory
accreditation certificate from China National Accreditation Service for
Conformity Assessment (CNAS). All of our factories have established a testing
laboratory, equipped with top-notch international testing equipment, which
can complete all testing procedures for all raw and auxiliary materials and
products of food and beverage, covering a total of 160 test indicators.
Indicators that attract public concern, including plasticizers, heavy metals,
pesticide residues, and melamine, are all tested by high-tech advanced
equipment, providing accurate and powerful support and protection for
quality control.

102 Dali Foods Group Company Limited -
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Product tracing and recall

Based on the “chain style” full supervision mechanism, the Group has
established and implemented the Product Identification and Traceability
Control Procedures. Through the establishment of the “One Product, One
Code” tracing system, the Group has implemented full batch management for
each product item entering and leaving the warehouse, by which each batch
is traceable, can be traced and will be traced. During the reporting period, in
the process of an on-site audit by a third-party food safety certification
institution, the Group’s Fujian branch successfully completed the forward and
reverse tracing of products within four hours, fully demonstrating the
effectiveness of the tracing system.

According to the Administrative Measures for Food Recalls, we have established
and implemented the Product Withdrawal Control Procedures and Non-
Conforming Product Control Procedures, which include clear provisions for the
preparation for recall plans, the implementation of recall activity, the disposal
of recalled products, and corrective measures. In addition, the food safety
team of each member of the Group regularly conducts mock tracing and recall
drills every year to enhance staff awareness of food safety risks and product
recall operation procedures. During the reporting period, the Group did not
experience any product recalls.

Product Tracing Chain

AT R L

Finished products

R R

==l

Finished product batch number

R AR

= =

Finished product inspection record

AT

=24

Production ingredient records

& ERCH o

28

Inbound inspection records

BN
i
S

Raw materials, auxiliary materials and packaging materials

[ a5kt

EmEHRZE

BTN 2REERS AEERINER
T(EREHM AT BMMIEREF) BRI —
m—BEMRR  HHABENS—ERENER
BETEEERREE > BRTHHAAE - HEHLAE
T HBERE - HERB > EE=SREEE
SRERBNREERT > AEEREDOATES
NENRITER T HRERNERAEN DO
BRIRTIEMERINARL

RIE(ERBRIEENE) - RABRLWER T (E
m B EHERE ) (R e mERIER) » B3
ClEt BN~ ARIEENE - BolEREE ~ 4
ERMERNTET 7 RRIRE o It5h > &R
BERARBRMZE/NMESFENRBRERENNA
Ok RIEETHRAREABREHRKREMRT
EHRERIZ  IREMM » *EERBEEAER
BREIEMAF -
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Quality training

The Group highly emphasizes the creation of a food safety culture. We
proactively organize professional skills and knowledge training in relation to
food safety so as to increase employees’ safety awareness. During the
reporting period, we organized a considerable number of trainings related to
quality and safety in accordance with the needs in different production posts,
further enhancing the professionalism of our employees and operation
standardization. During the reporting period, we invited the industry experts
to conduct laboratory training for our employees in the testing centers.

Scientific Research and Innovation

We strongly believe that innovation is the primary driver of corporate
development. The Group has invested in the establishment of a “product R&D
centre” equipped with cutting-edge R&D facilities as an effort to develop a
creative R&D team, thereby addressing the increasingly diverse consumption
demands from consumers. In addition, we have developed a scientific R&D
innovation system to make continuous progress in the fronts of product R&D
and technical innovation as an industry leader.

Product R&D: Through continuous introduction of new products, we
have gradually established four major product series, namely bakery
products, potato chips and puffed foods, biscuit baked goods, and
beverages. Our actions are a testimony to the successful transformation
from “Made in China” to “Created in China” by Chinese enterprises.

Technical innovation: we ramp up our input in technical innovation
every year to enhance production efficiency. Currently, through the
means of independent innovation, technology acquisition and co-
development, the Group has obtained fully automated production lines
for HASS-MEINCKE, a Danish butter cookie brand, and rapid production
lines for Rademarker, a Dutch croissant brand, which are food and
beverage production lines comparable to those of international
heavyweights. We always maintain our production technology at the
state-of-the-art level.

104 Dali Foods Group Company Limited -
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-

Development of
Innovative system

P2 R RS &

Product R&D
Embfs

Technological innovation

FfiTelH

»,

Establish and implement a complete
set of R&D processes involving
product planning, laboratory R&D,
trial production, R&D validation,
product evaluation, and product R&D
conclusion

BT EmRE BEREE-
Emmsl f 5 EmamaT Em
TR E 1 N —BEEMERIZ

»,

Actively carry out independent
innovation, introduce technology
and joint venture projects, increase
investment and increase patent
application and improve patent
management

TR B R 5 ER TN S 1E
FEEB - MARANELTEEF
A EE

LI

LI

To meet various needs of customers at different To improve energy conservation and emission
times, enhance the competitiveness of the reduction, stabilize product quality and

Group, and take on the leading position in improving operational efficiency through
development direction in the industry through technological innovation in order to ensure our
product research and development advantageous position in the industry
BBERMETEARERRNCEEAEFR BIBRATRIFTINSRENSERBE IR E EmE 2R
R RGP 5IBTERERAR FHE &N  FERTTRE S AL

During the reporting period, the Group recorded expenses in R&D and
innovation projects amounting to RMB65.35 million, representing an increase
of 5.4% over 2019.

Intellectual Properties

The Group highly values the transformation and application of innovation
achievements as well as the protection of intellectual property rights, and
strictly abides by the Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China, the
Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Copyright Law of the
People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations regarding
intellectual property rights, and improves our intellectual property protection
and management system constantly. During the reporting period, the Group
has acquired 23 new patent applications, 12 authorized patents and owns
1,007 effective registered trademarks.

WREAAN > REBRMAZAIFNEEERES
6,535 877 > BN —LEFIEIN T 5.4% °

M ERE
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In an effort to safeguard market order and our brand image, as well as to avoid
consumers’ health problems caused by consuming counterfeit products, the
Group has been relentless in its anti- counterfeiting activities and has put in
place effective measures to safeguard our rights. We build on the existing Dali
Foods Group’s Rights Protection and Anti-Counterfeiting Management System to
improve management procedures progressively and refine department
structure. During the reporting period, the Group was successful in 15
concluded litigation cases in respect of rights protection and anti-
counterfeiting, receiving a total compensation of approximately RMB1.92
million.

AIEETSRFNMETR > BRHEERRE
REEMMSIERERE » AERERELEITR
EBWERIL T AMBERRE - AMERARN
(EfemEEERITREEFRE) ER L > B
BICEEME - WHEPIERERIET THME -
RERE > AEREETRFRZ GRS
o BREESESFN12ET -

Strengthen exchange of rights protection knowledge
among administrative and judiciary bodies and

friendly brands

PSRBT Bl AT MmbE A 8 2 BBV R B SR

Set up a dedicated rights protection
and anti-counterfeiting team in the
legal department

TATSER R B M FO AR T R B R

Measures of

the Group
B
{RIEEHE

Nutrition and Health

The Group firmly believes that a balanced diet is crucial to the physical health
of our fellow countryman. As a player in the food industry, we are responsible
for addressing the increasing demands for healthy and nutritional products
from the consumers. During the reporting period, we keenly responded to the
“Healthy China” campaign and progressively developed a variety of nutritional
and environmental-friendly products, such as Doubendou plant-based yogurt,
black tomato bun, Ritech children’s nutrition biscuits, in accordance with our
product structure and market trend insights and through product innovation
and nutrition upgrade. As of December 31, 2020, health products of Dali Foods,
including products of low fat, low sodium, low sugar, organic, fewer artificial
additives, low fertilizer consumption, as well as nutrition supplement, body
building products, account for 23.6% of our portfolio.

106 Dali Foods Group Company Limited -
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Enhance the rights protection and
anti-counterfeiting system and
J procedures

BCAERTRBIEM M2

BEFE

AEBRE EENENHEBATIERSER
BoFABRTE  MEHEEHRENEEE
MEEEENERERMNEERS - REH
N BRFRGERETRETE G ERER
@SR AANRRTHEE  BAREANEE
Fép BERETEATEYEBYT - REMNE
B S LREEES NS L BREERRNgE
BR-BEZIZF+A=+—H  Efe
GHNEEREER SEEE KRN -EE -5
BN BOMATRME R ER R
B NEFREERGILER23.6% °

Annual Report 2020



Environmental, Social And Governance Report
RIS HEKREARRS

luct innovation S%EEIH Nutrition upgrade E&HB |

e Whole-wheat toast: Its upgraded formula
increases wheat content by 27% and other
nutrients, such as Vitamin E and crude fiber
2EME) B AR EERRINEEE
21% 1RE T HERE-ABESSBEYES

=

e Doubendou plant-based yogurt: It
makes use of Danish fermentative
bacteria to offer rich dietary fiber
and plant-based protein and
improve texture and nutritional
value
SARGEYEEY AR EEHRE
B S RRAENEYERD
RAEAORNEEEE

e Black tomato bun: The product incorporates
two tomato ingredients to achieve cancer
prevention and anti-aging, as well as
enhance body immunity
EEMEE : EmEPARI T MRS
BhENRE REHERENEI

e Beiyouxing children’s nutrition biscuits: It
incorporates a number of vitamins through
nutrient proportion adjustment to help
children adopt a balanced diet
BEEREEEM IBARERNPEE
R NS = (R FE BT

Doubendou plant-based yogurt as a trendsetter in health
BT EYIEEY » SIERENSRS

During the reporting period, the Group introduced a plant-based yogurt at
room temperature produced by plant fermentation — Doubendou Flogurt.
The product is based on the value concept of “delicious yogurt with triple
plant power and zero downside” with no cholesterol and trans-fat. It
meets the health requirement of consumers and promotes a low-carbon
and environmental-friendly lifestyle with plant-based product, which
aligns with the perception of “green, healthy, delicious” of the public.

HREHR . AEERELEYEENERIUEYED — 482 Flogurtid
VIBEY) o mEMMN BEEYHE > BRDFRHZ0EE ) HEEES
ANNEREEE - TRIVE > LEmEHEERERROFE - UEY
EmEBERIRME - T AfIOG TRt ~ @R ~ X081 B958A0 -

« Primary plant power: Proprietary Danish fermentative bacteria to
boost texture with the addition of 1X108CFU Streptococcus
thermophilus + Lactobacillus delbrueckii subsp. Bulgaricus per 100

grams;
1SEEYNHE  EBEEEREER > 51005770 7 1X108CFU B
FEEGEIKE + ERAREMRINMNE DB ERE » AR ;

Secondary plant power: 2 grams dietary fiber per 100 ml Doubendou
plant-based yogurt to help maintain normal intestinal functions;
QEEYNE B0 ATEYRNSE 2=NEREM > A
AR IE B RUBRETAE 5

Tertiary plant power: 3 grams plant-based protein per 100 ml Doubendou
plant-based yogurt to address the daily protein intake need of human
body.

3SEEYNR B0 REASEYEINSEIRNENER > WE
AMHBERENEEHIER -
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Protection of Rights and Interests L

As Dali Foods Group always regards consumers as the most important core  EZM B REBBKEHEEARESNZOE
value, it strictly abides by the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the — {B > BREBF(hEARIMBEHEE T RE
Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests in its effort to explore new service %) AR EFE B HEE BEMRBHE
modes on the basis of continuous enhancement of consumer communication B L FRHMRFEDR - MERFES > mR
and services, so as to serve customers with satisfaction as priority. We have ~ §— o BRI T &M (E LR FEIET 1EH
established a comprehensive Customer Complaint Handling Policy to refine ) > LURESBEHRIZEHBERRFETHRMALE
the management of customer complaints with a standardized process and ¥ » WiE{TRNIRE o REHRN » AEBEFFER
follow up on rectification. During the reporting period, all complaints were #9183 7 RFEFANHIEE ©

timely and effectively handled by the Group.

Complaint feedback mechanism &3 R &1 H

l Complaint investigation ZifiAZ

X e  Customer Service Department conducts investigations based on the content of customers’ complaints
ERIRFERIEE RN HRERE

e For substantiated complaints, a completed customer complaint transfer form will be transmitted to the
responsible department

HNBERBENR IERE P RMEIRE A EERPIEE

l Rectification solution EEpyfZA LD

e  Customer Service Department communicates with customers on the response and handling solutions of the
responsible department

ERIRGEHMEESNFINSBNREESREATFEE

Solutions will be organized forimplementation by the responsible department upon acceptance by

customers

BEREBERFRAAFER AEENPIEMERS

Foiisw-up Eﬁmﬁﬁﬁ i) "w; ‘ i ‘” “w‘{‘lahi‘{

e After the implementation of solutions, the Customer Service Department will take follow-up action and
complete a customer satisfaction questionnaire

REMR FRRBEHETREED MESERRRERER

e  Customer Service Department will return the customer satisfaction questionnaire to the responsible
department for filing

ERRBHRER RS ERE R EEEMPILFE
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We attach great importance to customers’ information security and privacy
protection. We have established a set of corresponding customer privacy
protection measures to strictly safeguard the personal information of each
customer. We prohibit unwarranted sharing of screenshot and revealing of
personal privacy. Specific personnel are also assigned to file and archive
customer information while unauthorized access is prohibited. In addition, we
also conduct regular risk impact assessments on personal information to
ensure the security of customers’ privacy.

To protect consumers’ right to knowledge and freedom of choice, the Group
strictly abides by relevant laws including the Advertising Law of the People’s
Republic of China, the General Standard for the Labeling of Prepackaged Foods
and the General Standards for the Nutrition Labelling of Prepackaged Foods. It
has formulated the approval process for external publicity materials and the
information review system for its own online media, and conducts multi-
departmental professional reviews for the relevant information, so as to
ensure the compliance and legality of our marketing activities and the
accuracy and credibility of external information.

RMEEERBRENEE L2 BRARE > BI1L
THRENEERRARERE  BRRESUES
NEAES > THREEE®EE BEOEMNRE
BAFER > T2HFEANBEREER2E  71&
RERFIRBEER - L5 - RMEETEHH
REANGEERBREN L > REHEERLZE -

AIERHBENABRMEEE  AEERISE
BCREARAMBESZ) (BEERmRHE
AN (FREEXemEERRBRAERER  fIE
THINEEENSEHRIENBERE LRNERE
ZRE % > HEMBERETZHMPEEEE » RE
EHEEER A% WIMBESEERE A5 -
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CARE FOR OUR PEOPLE TO CREATE FRUITFUL LIVES

Upholding our philosophy of being “people-oriented”, the Group always
treasures our employees as the growth engine for corporate sustainability
development. We are committed to setting up a well-established employment
mechanism to provide diversified career advancement opportunities that
dovetail with our corporate development, so as to create favorable
opportunities and environment for our employees to enhance their skills and
comprehensive qualifications on the basis of a promised living, safety and
dignity.

Labour Rights and Employment

Dali Foods Group strictly complies with national laws and regulations such as
the Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Trade Union Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Social Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China, and
constantly improves our human resources management system to protect the
Labor rights and interests of employees and foster amicable relationship
between employer and employees. We are committed to the strict prohibition
of forced Labor and signing labor contracts in accordance with the law. The
Company has formulated an annual leave plan and a whistle-blowing
mechanism, adequately enabling our employees to take consecutive day offs
or take leave on rotation. Meanwhile, we adhere to a fair and just employment
approach where differentiated remuneration or discrimination due to gender,
ethnicity, nationality, health status, religion, marital status, etc. are strongly
forbidden. In addition, we also strictly comply with the Protection of the Minors
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Provisions on the Prohibition of
the Use of Child Labor to prevent the employment of child labor.

110 Dali Foods Group Company Limited -
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We keep renovating our human resources management model and working
approach and strive to create a more convenient and delightful working
environment for our employees. During the Reporting Period, we forged ahead
with our informatization for human resources management and adopted a
co-working Office Automation system to regulate our operation procedure
and achieve standardized management. Moreover, we launched a cloud office
trial application, where we can work and communicate with each other any
time anywhere through video conference and cloud desktop, thereby
enhancing our working efficiency.

As of December 31, 2020, the Group had a total of 39,216 employees. The
charts below show the distribution of our employees by type:

KRB ANEREEEXMITIEAR S
NAETRIEFINERE - MR TIEIRE o 3RS
R BMSEEEANEREENFEELE
5% R EIPA 0A (Office Automation > ¥HA B
1) 24 HEWMATRRE BEREELERE -
5 > HFIERET EMAAER » BiBRE
FiE  EEESEN > BRBREMZBEHAN
R ARFFTAERE

HE_Z_ZF+_RB=+—H> KEEHFE
T39216 A\ > BEBEDHERO TR

Total employees by gender Total employees by grade Total employees by age
BRGNS TR HRARBSME TAEY BERDSMWE TR
801 597

9,788 [

6,392 [

21,726 28,627 9,788 16,588
|
M:le Female Se:or Intermediate Junior SR b\elow 4150
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Remuneration and Benefits

We respect the efforts made and value created by our employees and are
committed to providing employees with competitive compensation and
comprehensive welfare and protections. In order to legally and effectively
manage the remuneration and benefits of our employees and provide better
welfare packages, we set out in the Human Resources Management Rules our
remuneration and staff benefit management system, under which indicators
such as the professional knowledge, professional skills and working
performance of employees will be taken into consideration when we make
timely adjustment to employees’ remuneration level. While we protect our
employees with their general benefits in accordance with the law, we also
listen to their demands and feedback, so as to provide more personalized
benefits to employees with different needs, and strengthen their sense of
belonging to and recognition of the Company which in turn ensure the
stability of talent. At the end of the reporting period, our overall employee
turnover rate was 6.5%.

* Statutory Benefits %2 iE#l

S T A

EMEESMAETINSENEE > R ABT
REBTERFNONHFMNNZEHNENRE 2
THROEAEREEETHHMEN > LRHEAR
FRBFIEY » HATE(ANEREESE) S8
BTEHMES TENEBE > ERETHEN
# o BERE Y TEENSIEEGRESE B AR
BETHKT - HAEREREZEETER
BRWNER > BOMBEEETERINER » AFE
ABRMHEZ AMAET > BBE THMERN
FEEMRER > BEATHEEE -HBERSE
HAoR » BT EEEMAEA6.5% o

e Five social insurances and
the housing fund
hfE—&

e Statutory leave O
EERAE

e Paid leave (annual leave,

home leave, marriage leave,
maternity leave and other

vacations)
AR (FERFRR B
R ERE)

112 Dali Foods Group Company Limited -

e Free physical examination

SEBIR

e Pproviding dormitories and accommodation

for migrant workers

AIMIETIREES XER

® Employee dormitories are provided with a

gym, theater, KTV and other entertainment

facilities

ﬁ%zﬁ%@ﬂ%1ﬁ%§~$ﬁ N KTVEEIREEES
it

e Transportation allowances, meal

allowances, night shift allowances, overtime
allowances, etc.

@R R RIDRAG NN AR F

e providing welfare supermarket to meet the

daily needs of staff
RIEEFE T A S T HEE M EIR

® Providing expatriates with assignment

allowances and home leave

AINKA BIRHINKERL TR

e Applying for working and living allowances

for employees with degrees and above who
come to work in Quanzhou

AR R 2 A SRR IN TARERGAR
EZEME

® Applying for high level talent allowances for

people who meet the requirement of the
county and city

AT aMERNERNAT BESERA
7 KB
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Staff welfare supermarket

ETHEMNER

Accommodation for couples
XEBHE

Care and Communication

The Group insists on operating under the principle of being “people-oriented”.
We respect and are willing to listen to employees’ voice. We have established
various channels for communication with employees. Employees are
encouraged to express their views and opinion through multiple channels
such as staff service center, WeChat, telephone and feedback email to jointly
promote healthy sustainability development of the Company.

Staff Service Center

B THRFS L

In addition, we attach great importance to the cultivation of corporate culture
and are committed to creating a harmonious and friendly working
atmosphere for employees, with an aim to increase team cohesion. We are
grateful and we care for our employees. We prepare gifts for them and
distribute staff welfare on every festive occasion and invite the People’s
Hospital and the Health Centre to jointly provide free medical consultation for
frontline staff. We actively carry out various group activities to strengthen
communication between departments, enrich the spare time of staff and help
achieve a balance between life and work.

Entertainment and fitness facilities

IREE(E S T

FREFMBHT TAAER ) > SEWHIMERS
UETHLE - RMELTSEETBBEERE
SRET@®BETRFFO - M5 BE - ER
REBBMEFLREXESCHENER > #£E
HIERERE - RFENERE -

o HAISEEREECER > RAONRRE
TRIEMERENTERE > BINEKRRS] -
BARBRFAEET - SBENBEAETROERSR
m o EWMETEN > WEHFEARER - HERH
AR BETRHEERD - HARBRESE
E2EE) 0 Mastriz HeEER BE8T
EHREE > BREBRTI R -
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Extending b/essmgs to female staff on Women’s Day on 8 March Holding birthday party for staff
= . BRI XETX LHE BETHEWEAE

We highly value our employees’ satisfaction, and welcome and embrace HfISEERETHNREE é%ﬁ’:\ﬂﬁ%ﬁjﬁ%m:
feedbacks from employees. During the reporting period, we conducted a ~ THIE:H %E%,HHF‘EE BMEGEAREE ~ TF
satisfaction survey of all employees on five aspects: company management, &7 » #HEIEF H?‘*):%DEE/E&EEETI i
workload, compensation and benefits, training and development, and living ~ fZ > E#EEEEIF%@T/‘%E};EEEIT’F )RR
standards, the results of which showed that the overall satisfaction of our BB> RfIE TEEREERE « HHHREERDS
employees was relatively good. In response to the issues raised by employees ~ T{EHHE T FF R PRAIRIRE » B IESE R
in the satisfaction survey, we also promptly conducted corresponding  EFEFERAE IR HARRES o

investigations and proposed solutions.

Measures to enhance staff satisfaction — optimization of workshop workforce management

BT REERARE -EHNRTEERL

During the reporting period, we carried out the following optimization measures regarding the workshop management
system with reference to the results of the employee satisfaction su rvey:

BREHE > HHE TmEEREER RN EREEGEET T UTEIE:

+ Worker communication: Organized by the workshop supervisor, we conduct face-to-face interviews with new workers to

understand the workshop environment, their adaptation to the on-site management style, and catering and
accommodation conditions, so as to carry out guidance work in a targeted manner;
BIBRM | HERFEEAS > HARNI TETEY
EBIBOM > RERIRE « RISEE S ERIER
DkEreEEERmE 7 #E  tmitHtERET T
E;

+  Workplace atmosphere: We make sensible work arrangements

with the aim to achieve fairness and equity and timely
solve bottleneck issues in the work. We also actively
organize various team-building activities and arrange
for inter-workshop learning and briefing sessions, to build
a healthy, pleasant working environment.
SEEE GBS IF BEWIRERAT » K
AT FREIRMNRSERE - ANRIGEHESEEE
EE 0 BB EASENER > SERM -« BIR/Y
TERE -
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Training and Development

We regard employees as an important strategic asset for corporate
development and strive to enable each employee to find their own position
under a fair and open system, to ultimately achieve a win-win situation for
both employees and the Company. We provide a variety of trainings and set
up a scientific training and motivation mechanism to enhance the ability of
employees; at the same time, we provide employees with multi-channel
development opportunities and combine job requirements with target career
planning to improve the overall work efficiency of the Company. During the
reporting period, we organized and conducted a variety of training activities in
accordance with our annual training plan, and focused on collecting
feedbacks from our employees on the courses to continuously improve the
quality of the courses so that more employees could benefit from them.
During the reporting period, the total number of trained employees reached
52,313 and the total number of training hours reached 113,616 hours, with a
training coverage rate of 93.5%.

Total number of trained

employees in 2020 in 2020 by gender
20205FIBEN4E AR 2020F EENE R HY
SEENA R
52,313
50,700 51,370 266380 55633

2018 2019 2020 Female

gogd

Male
S
Number of employees

AR

Number of trained employees

REulag e
BPRETACEEENTEHRER  BOR
EEMNETAATAEABENGET » #2BR
HOWMUE  BERETHMEMNHERTE o &
BIBRME SRR BER 205 R 8E
HWE IRABTIESN  IRABTRELREER
Bi#e BIEEUEREEEHEREBE
& REABIEEN TEMAE c REHAM > F A
BREEEFRAMMBESEEIES > 1
ABEREETHEENRE  FHIRAZREE
2 UEFLHNETIRPZHE o REHR > &E
E 48 A R EES2313 A 0 AR EE B B iE
113,616/\B » SHIBEFRE935% °

Number of trained employees

in 2020 by job level
2020 SFFzERAR R 5389
= H e
49,790
156 1,886

Junior
frontline

Intermediate
management and junior
management employees

Senior

2ARE RS HEg—
g i HET
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HREHN > RFIHETRMLEIEE

During the reporting period, the training we provided to our employees
included:

Training scope

EeNEEE

Training content
FNRE

. Induction training
UN:- 2=
One-on-one training with tutors
BEmE B —H—E

Production safety training

Za 4 EE

. Food safety training
BEmZ el

New employee training
HrE T

Themed training .
FIEE

Fire safety talks and drills
L% AR BUR B ER

. Risk knowledge training

R B R0 st

. Business ability training

EBE

Middle and senior management skill enhancement

hEEEER AR

External training
shapiEal .

BEREE

We strive to create equal promotion opportunities for employees and have
built clear career development paths. We have clearly set out promotion
management procedures in the Human Resources Management Rules,
stipulating the required conditions for promotion and re-designation of posts,
as well as the division of related management responsibilities. We also make
use of the results of various forms of assessments to form the basis for
promotion and re-designation. In the production workshop, we adopt a
friendly management style that encourages competition, and provide
promotion pipeline for capable personnel and promote self-development. At
the same time, for management and communication skills, we conduct
quarterly assessment and scoring for all levels of staff in the workshop, and
those with excellent scores are given promotion notes, while those with lowest
scores are given opportunities for improvement.

116 Dali Foods Group Company Limited -

Occupational quality training

HARNIRAETAETENEARE - BB
MIBV R ERIBE - RPEE(ANEREES]
) FERESEAEEERF > HE T BB
UABBENRERAAMEERENE D - WAZ
BN ERGERIFAS A NRBRE UK
RAEEEERBETAME BEEEE > 25
BENABRHEARE  BEREAREE - FF
HEEE BRERESHE  RfISTEHREM
BEERANBEGTERN D BENGTEAE
E o TN BENG T RIS -
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Health and Safety

Safeguarding the life and occupational health of our employees is the priority
in the Group’s daily production and operation. We strictly comply with the
Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Fire Protection Law
of the People’s Republic of China and other laws and regulations as well as
standards in relation to occupational health and safety. We have formulated a
series of practices on production safety management and established a
production safety structure. We also deploy additional manpower responsible
for safety management at the factory and subsidiary levels to effectively
ensure health and safety of our employees.

Health and Safety Management

The Group adheres to the production safety principle of “safety first,
prevention-oriented and comprehensive treatment”. We have formulated a
series of regulatory documentations in relation to production safety
management, such as the Emergency Preparation and Response Control
Procedure, the Control Procedures for Work Environment, the Control Procedure
for Identification and Evaluation of Environmental Factors, the Control
Procedure for Facilities and Equipment, the Regulations for Electrical Protection
and the Fire Control Management Rules, comprehensively implementing the
policy for production safety accountability and ensuring staff safety. For better
inspection of hidden hazards in production safety and identification of safety
risks, we have adopted the “5S*” site management approach, set up risk maps
as well as equipped employees in related positions with the necessary labor
protection supplies, so as to create and maintain a safe production
environment. In addition, we have established a production safety emergency
response team, headed by a safety team leader, which is able to respond
quickly to safety risk incidents and ensure the effectiveness of safety
measures. During the reporting period, the number of work-related injuries
and the injury rate of the Group were zero, and no work-related fatalities
occurred.

L “55” refer to Seiri, Seiton, Seiso, Seiketsu and Shitsuke

e R 2 4
REETHNEGZE2MRERBREAERREE
EEEPNERM T HABBET(TEAR
HNEZE2EEX) (PEARKENBUHNE) F
RRBEREREERERRBRE S FIET —
RIZ2EEEERE RUZEEERE T
EIBMOAEEEZE2EEAS  LBERE
ETHREREAZE -

RERE2ERE

FEERFER 225 BHAT &KREE
B NE2tERH  fIET SE(RSERNE
FRIERIZ ) (TFRIBERIZ ) CRIEA HH A
HEHEERIER) (Rt~ REBIEFIER) (RED
ERE)NMCHBLEERE) FERAN—RIZ2
SEEEREMEXH 2EEREREEESH
fil ) REEETZE - /7T EFNHIE R 2L ER
BT EAR > RAETSSREEEE
BRI EEME o AR E S TREHUERN
HRMERL THEEZENEERIE IL
Sho RPBITUZEERBENZEEERS
INME o BESIR R 2 RIBEHIETRIRER > R
ZERETAENIE o EHB > AEETHEAN
TEEEAT  FREEEMATIETEHR

1 55 45 (ZEI2 (Seiri) ~ FEUH (Seiton) ~ B R (Seiso) ~ 7B
2 (Seiketsu) ~ Z% (Shitsuke))
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In order to protect occupational health of employees, we strictly adhere to
and implement the Occupational Disease Prevention and Control Law of the
People’s Republic of China, the Measures for the Administration of Occupational
Health Examination and the Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurances and
other laws and regulations related to occupational health in the People’s
Republic of China and regions where we operate. We actively carry out
occupational health checkups and hazard tests to protect the health of our
employees. In addition, we have set up a health services station in the factory
area to provide emergency supplies and emergency treatment for employees.

AIRES THRZERE » RAIREETIEHIT(H
EARHMERERIAZ) (BEREREERE
HHE) M THRRFAD) SRR EEE AR
BERERERIEN - RIBRERERERIS
BERFEA - RESTTREE - I ZMAEE
TR&EHEL T RERDER > A8 TiRHESH
MR EESREE

Health Services Station

12BRARTS U

In early 2020, faced with the sudden outbreak of the Covid-19, the Group
responded promptly without hesitation and actively put in place measures
required by local government and industry authorities for epidemic prevention
and control. Such efforts included body temperature checking, disinfection,
and distribution of epidemic prevention related information. We also provided
employees with face masks and other epidemic prevention supplies to ensure
their health and safety. During the reporting period, there was no confirmed
case among employees.

TECDEY AEREHERRERE > £E
EES—REREEE  BREEEMBUNRT
ETEEPIPIEERE - EITRLR « HRAMEA
HEBSRBEHELF > UAETRHASEYR
BYE > 2RFEEINREZS - REHAR
BT RHIRRMEHES RO

T RIERALSLS TRk A B 1S

Body temperature checking of incoming and outgoing employees
HA B TR
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Epidemic Prevention and Control Promotion
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Safety Training

We have established a systematic, three-tier training program for safety
education to improve staff’s overall awareness about production safety.
Quality management officers are assessed in all aspects, including their skills
in respect of management and communication, as well as their academic
background and age. Such trainings are conducted through coordinated
efforts between the Company and the workshops and involve safety
department of the government who are invited to participate from time to
time. New employees are allowed to take on production posts only after they
have received education and trainings and passed the exams. In addition, we
carry out various forms of production safety training works tailored for
different production positions, providing a solid safety guarantee for the
Group’s production operation.

11

2R

ATEERAEINZ2EERTH > HfIELT
BREN=HRZ2HEEI BEREASHK
it~ B BB BE - FRFHEKTETS
HARET o B R ABMNEMES > FEH
BRABAZEME2E > FETEHFEIN
EAEREREFEANLERML o LI > #HEF
FEEBURK > HAIFRTRLUSENZEE
ERINIE  nEENZE2EERMBE IR
ERE o

Management fire safety training

EEA S E

Management production safety training

EEANSZ 2L EE

Emergency management training

e E A 3155
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GREEN PRODUCTION WITH ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION IN MIND

The Group has been actively formulating its strategy for sustainable
development, and strengthening its efforts in the implementation of green
manufacturing and practicing green development. We focus on the efficient
use of energy and resources, and strive to explore the use of clean energy and
the upgrading of production facilities, so as to contribute to the development
of the circular economy. During the reporting period, the Group invested a
total of RMB14.13 million in environmental protection.

Environmental Management

The Group strictly complies with environmental protection laws and
regulations in our production operation, including the Environmental
Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution, the
Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China,
the Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of
Environment Pollution Caused by Solid Wastes, the Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Prevention and Control of Pollution from Environmental Noise and
the Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China. We
actively push forward the improvement of our environmental management
system and the promotion of green culture with an aim to make continuous
improvement in our performance in environmental management, as well as
fulfill our green commitment to building a good ecological environment. As of
December 31,2020, all our factories have attained 1ISO14001 authentication on
environmental management system.

120 Dali Foods Group Company Limited -
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Energy Management

The Group pursues refined management of energy use by strictly complying
with the Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China. We have
set up a normalized monitoring mechanism for energy consumption and
combined it with that for assessment and management of energy targets, thus
ongoing efforts are made to promote energy saving and emission reduction at
each work stage. For the purpose of continued reduction in carbon emissions,
we promote the optimization of energy structure, technologic innovation of
equipment and the use of clean energy, continue to pursue higher efficiency in
energy saving and consumption reduction from the perspectives of
conversion, transmission and use of energy, and actively share our experience
in controls over energy saving and consumption reduction with our peers and
the community.

i N

| Energy conversion aspect: SEiBER5E

‘
J

RETRE B
FEBRBRET(TEARHEMBERGHLE) »
BREEREANEAEEIE - RIMEBILETRBFE
EECEEKS TESEREREZEER
il > FrEEER TRREBIENAERBELF - A5
BRI > MAIARDRESETREEBELE R
BRI U RB R EE IR > TEAEREA
SERMEMBERER =S EFHRRESERY
BIAEMFAERNRY > BIBEETT - HERFRHZMEE
[ FEAE AR R -

e Increasing the loading rate of high pressure compressors to reach the target of 85%, increasing
energy supply dashboards, matching consumption per ton, pressure and temperature with the

demand of each product.

By REHEA.

A B EERN & HE ERTAESS%H B R 1 INsERMEER RIBLEERBREIRNHE

e Regularinspection of thermal insulation and drainage systems, conducting maintenance in a

timely manner.

ERRE R FUK RG> WIHE KR EEE-

ENRmERBRRAR -

® |mprove production efficiency, running medium water pressure within the standard of
0.25-0.35MPa, regular cleaning of heat exchange system, modifying pipelines for better heat
transfer efficiency.
R EENE N EKEIRERZA0.25-0.35MPaiE T EEIESMAR R EBE RS
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B RO EIERREERMRBEODES
Mo ESEH - BB  ZEBEEEL > B
BeMEERSEERE » RFINEHRDFAE
BT WA BN AE - EMA > M
EEZMRART EERCHEERE  FHETEEE

Meanwhile, we also focus on exploring energy-saving and efficient production
facilities and equipment. In the selection of high-pressure compressors, low-
pressure compressors and air blowers, we insist on replacing high energy-
consuming equipment with high-efficiency ones. A number of our subsidiaries
increase the use of variable-frequency high pressure compressors. During the

reporting period, we carried out pipeline optimization and retrofit projects in

FHEERERME -

several locations, with a view of making ongoing enhancement to efficiency of
energy use.

(@)

Pipeline optimization and retrofit projects

122

ERECHERE

for a beverage plant of Jinan Dali

ERmARRHERERELCRE

Original design: The main pipeline is originally
designed to be installed on the east side of the
plant, with branch pipelines supplying energy from
east to west, resulting in lengthy pipelines and
considerable damages;

Technical improvement proposal: Major energy
pipeline is directly connected to the west side of the
plant, with branch pipelines supplying energy from
the west side of the plant to energy consumption
points, minimizing damages to pipelines.

R& RAETERKFEEBRE DX ERE
REMAEMLE ERRIEERK;

KPR ERTIESREEMRIER[AR I
BEHEEABRR AR B B85

Pipeline optimization and retrofit projects

Steam pipeline optimization and retrofit

projects for Jilin Dali

SHARHRSEREICHNE

Original design: Due to the narrow underground
pipe gallery, it is not possible to conduct annual
maintenance, resulting in considerable heat loss
and energy consumption;

Technical improvement proposal: The change to
above-ground layout facilities repair and
maintenance works. Major pipeline runs from
boiler room to enclosing walls and the west side of
the plant, whilst branch pipelines are connected to
energy consumption points of the plant, reducing
heat loss.

[R5t ERAM T ERMGR ERETNEEFER
BEMARERRBRA SERFERRK;

RREQH At B R B ERE T EE
RifERE L EEE JERAm X EEEA
REEIARERL B FABERKR
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RIRs HEKRERRS
Energy consumption?
REIRIHFE?
Category Unit 2019 2020 Change (%)
85 Efi Z—NEF “EEHF 15 (%)
Direct consumption Tonnes of standard coal
BEHEEHE MARRIE 102,783 88,628 ~14.4
Purchased electricity kWh
SNEEES TRES 508,150,100 482,550,800 -5.0
Purchased steam Tonnes
SNEBZES U 425,600 439,700 33
Indirect consumption Tonnes of standard coal
e AEHE MEARIE 117,183 115,851 -11
Comprehensive consumption Tonnes of standard coal
IR BEFE MRAR YR 219,967 204,479 73
Comprehensive energy consumption Tonnes of standard coal/
per RMB10,000 of revenue RMB10,000
Bl iR S aEFE MEAZIE BT 0.103 0.098 -55
Greenhouse gas emissions?
BERBEHE
Category Unit 2019 2020 Change (%)
55 E (i —E—hEF —ECEF 15 (%)
Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents
BEREHINE (#E—) W —SEiRES 183,185 158,146 -13.7
Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents
AERAEHINE (BB WB_EbikES 328,703 314,300 -4.4
Total greenhouse gas emissions Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents
(Scope 1 and Scope 2)
AERBIINAE (BRE—K#EE-) MWM_fsIRkaE2 637,977 472,446 -25.9
Greenhouse gas emissions Tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalents/
per RMB10,000 revenue RMB10,000
Bzl E RASEINE ME_ELREE BT 0.298 0.225 -24.5

z During the reporting period, the Group refined the management of energy consumption,
with additional disclosure of main energy consumption in 2020 as compared to 2019.
Comprehensive energy consumption includes the processing and production of food and
beverage products; the calculation of the comprehensive energy consumption was based on
General Principles for the Calculation of the Comprehensive Energy Consumption (Consultation

Draftin July 2018).

3 During the reporting period, the Group further refined the management of greenhouse gas
emissions by compiling and disclosing information on emission of Scope 1 and Scope 2
greenhouse gas respectively. Scope 1 greenhouse gas is mainly derived from direct energy
consumption — mainly include natural gas, diesel and gasoline; whilst Scope 2 greenhouse
gas is derived from indirect energy consumption — mainly include purchased electricity and
purchased steam; greenhouse gas emissions are calculated with reference to Guidelines for
Accounting Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Industry and Other
Sectors (Trial) issued by the National Development and Reform Commission of the People’s

Republic of China.

BEHAR AEEHNEREERTBALER 8
BR_F-NF > FBKRET T _TFFERER
EABR - GREkEEasRRMEEHERERINTE
E; REEFHEEt H2R (GG R EER)
(CE-NFLBRERERR) °

REHR AEEE— P HBEREFREITHEMR
EEE » DRI IR RERBEBINEERE —MEE
BE_BE - HhEB—AERBEIERAERER
HIE — TEQERAR  SORfh B TRE
RESIR B RIRARHFE — T2EEINBBHTINE
5 AERBHRESE2RPEARKNER
RERMNEZEFEMA(THEAMITECERE
REBHRIZE R FREREER (H1T)
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Resource Management

The Group focuses on the careful management of the use of resources to
reduce the environmental impact of production and operation. Through
continuous improvement of resource management system, rational utilization
of various resources in the factory, continuous enhancement of resource
utilization rate, regular analysis of resource utilization and incorporation of
resource utilization efficiency into daily management mechanism, the concept
of resource conservation is continuously transmitted to our employees.

Water Resources Management

The Group fully recognizes the importance of water as a fundamental daily
resource. We strictly comply with the requirements of the Water Law of the
People’s Republic of China and optimize our water resource management on a
continuous basis. We implement index target control over departments with
relatively high water consumption, keep promoting water conservation,
recycling and shared usage of water through the establishment of related
assessment mechanism.

HHE R
FEBITEHERNEMETHRMLECERE €M
REEEEEHRBERNFE - BETHTES
BEREEHNE  EMNAIRSEER  TERR
SERMNAX  UHERERBRETERD
i KEREAMEMABEEELFEG 5
BHRHOERNESERGERMNET -

IKE PR
AEBMRORHIKIEAEREZERNEE
%o BPERSETF(PEAREMBEKE) IR
T FE=EKEREIE  HKEREERSH
EFETERIEEEE » B8R EMEEZE
Hl > FEMREKERNELQER ~ BIREHME
EIfEA ©

Strict analysis on water consumption indicator for different products, carry out rectifying
measure in case of any abnormality;

BEDHEERBKER SRERS MR RIEHE;

e Reinforce the concept of water saving through notices and water saving labels;

BIBASTNEI K RRIREKNEFHE;

e Replace existing water faucets with inductive faucets to save more water;
KBRS A A RURE T K BERR » 1R FH /K AR 5

e Enhance recycling of water resources, add new recycling flow meters for recycling of
high-salinity water and steam condensed water to ensure maximum recycling;

Mg KERIBIRF A » T R/K B 20905 Bk B A B A EE R EWUREst IRERAEIR

FF%;

® Upgrade techniques such as original CIP cleaning process to increase production time and
reduce water consumption for cleaning; improve cleaning and recycling system of sterilizing
machines to reduce consumption of water and chemicals and pharmaceuticals ; water will be
filtered and recycled to the raw water put for reuse after it is used in the production and filling
workshops and treated through reverse osmosis (RO) process.
TEARUE HIIIEBERNOIE S (CIP) TEIRAZ - 18 N4 AR - B B AKE  BUER
B RO R FEKERICRZE R, £ ERRBERRINER2E (RO) BIERN

KiBRERERK MRS B Ao
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Packaging Material Management

During the reporting period, the National Development and Reform
Commission and the Ministry of Ecology and Environment jointly published
the Opinion on Further Enhancing the Governance over Plastic Pollution,
pursuant to which , the major plastic packaging materials currently used by
the Group are not within the scope of plastic products that are subject to
explicit prohibition and restrictions on its production, sale and use. On top of
that, we closely observe the requirements and implementation rules of the
laws and regulations in related to plastic packaging production, usage, recycle
and handling specific to the locations where we operate, so as to consistently
promoting our performance in the area of packaging material management.

The Group is committed to the research and development of sustainable
packaging in a view to reduce the amount of packaging materials used in
different products. We also encourage the usage of environment friendly
materials that are responsibly manufactured, such as those certified by the
Forest Stewardship Council (FSC). We actively explore the viability of the
minimization, light-weighting and greening of packaging. For materials, we
choose recyclable ones for all our packaging, and in terms of packaging
specifications, we give due consideration to the capacity utilization rate of the
products during the design process, so as to minimize the size of our
packaging and hence to reduce wastage.

' Packaging Optimization Actions % {E{L1EH

e Use “Tetra Pak” packaging for its “Doubendou”

certified by Forest Stewardship Council (FSC);

SRR R

REHN > IRENRE  £RRIEHHSEM T
(RARE—F INARERBSRR/ENER) » AEE
BrRIERANFEEENBET A EZXHE<E
1 BR&AIEE S HEMERNEN L REBEA o
FRIEZ 5h > IR EEFE B RAEN S
HELE S FRAMURCINEES S ENAEEARE
HERNEHAMR > FERARMEEEMEE
BHmIIRIA -

FEBR NN FEBENRAE > BOSERD
BEMEBE > YEBERREAEEEENR
REN > ERMEEEZEE (FSO) BENBEM
F o WAIRIBRRBENHEL - BEEKEE
16 EREMEERE L > ZAZBER AR
HE MK EEEERRT > BRERE
mBRE > REEKERE  FERKRE -

box packages. “Tetra Pak” packaging has been

SAERISRERFAKBFTMEIREEZS G (FSC)PEIERIRRITIHEEEE;

e Replace existing ink coding with laser coding to reduce the pollution caused by ink;
[ R TERE B A B EES R D MBS R

e Replace tape sealing with hot melt adhesive sealing to avoid pollution caused by tape;
BEHEE AR HE R HIERER;

e Apply amorphous design on the bottle mouth of our beverage products in 2020, thereby
effectively reduced the wastage of packaging materials.

—ETERMNERBEERFFAIFERRONKS AR AR BEEEYNRE-
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Resource Consumption

BiFHFE

Category Unit 2019 2020 Change(%)

1551 (i = hE  —B-BE 815 (%)

Water consumption tonnes

ke i 10,170,400 9,354,100 -8.0

Water consumption per RMB10,000 tonnes/RMB10,000

of revenue

B mkE L= 4.76 4.46 -6.2

Packaging material* consumption tonnes

AR HFE ng 314,600 293,600 -6.7

Packaging material consumption tonnes/RMB10,000

per RMB10,000 of revenue

Bl B M REEAE MR, BT 0.147 0.140 -4.8
Emission Control HEzEh]

The Group exercises strict control over emission management in accordance
with the laws and regulations of People’s Republic of China and the place of
operation. By formulating the Operation Control Procedure for the
Environmental Management System, enhanced efforts are made to various

emissions ledger and treatment processes, and the management of waste

gas, wastewater and solid wastes are continuously standardized, so as to

ensure that all pollutants are emitted in a proper and compliant manner.

‘ Packaging materials are mainly cartons and paper sheets

FEBKERRREEREMBOERER - HHF

WEBIIEBIT

BT - HPIEREGRIRE

ERERNETERRER) MBS EHFREaRK
FRIEMAZ » NETREHEER « K ERERY)
WER » ERFIAFIRYEEIZE - AFKRE -

‘ BEMEIEE BB R
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l " Exhaust Gas Control Actions [ BEiiZSIIEE

Upgrade low-nitrogen combustion of gas boilers, thereby subsidiaries in Chengdu, Jinan, Henan, Hebei,
Jilin, Shenyang, etc. have lowered the nitrogen oxide emission intensity to below 30mg/m?;

IR SRR (R B PRIGEEUE » E AR EB T ma ~ LU EE T Rl dE S BB ST B 2 AR BB IR & CYHR
EEEH30mg/m?3;

Add exhaust gas recycling and treatment equipment at the waste water stations, whilist the installation of
such equipment has been completed at the subsidiaries in Jinan, Jilin, Gansu, Ma’anshan, Nanchang, etc.;

SIS NS RO ER IR B A f A B BRI BEFWE D AR ERERTH;

Ensure standard emissions of workshop exhaust gas by carrying out centralized collection through air duct
to the processing system, as well as lye spray, high attitude emissions and other measures.

BREERFAREETRERERG TG SmREAES NS A RIEEREERERGRC

Increase centralized collection bucket for sewage sludge, prevent secondary pollution by automatic storage;

TSIEtE I RUREE S BBEERILEZ ISR,

Increase automatic sprinklers for the secondary and final sedimentation in the waste water treatment
process, so as to reduce labor intensity and improve treatment efficiency.

BE7K BRI T E AR 50 AT TS N B EHEHEE & - iR D N T 35 e s A iR

Separate solid waste according to the classification of hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste, maximize
the recycling of non-hazardous waste;

Hﬁlﬁl%@%%ﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ&%%*ﬂfﬁ%ﬁ?%#@ﬁ%ﬁ%fiJ%kﬁﬁf&ﬂfﬁ%@%%%&ﬁ@ﬂ&
A5

Hazardous waste such as automobile waste oil and acid and alkaline solvent drums are properly collected in
accordance with standard procedures, the temporary storage area will be locked-up and the ground is
solidified to prevent contamination of under soil caused by leakage, after which such waste will be delivered
to qualified companies for transportation and treatment.

EfREREYINER R R AR S BRREREZEWS T FEERAEM LHEE kA
E{CREIER L REE RS R N e R T IE, AR XA AR AN AR ETEANES
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arge Tanks”

The Optimization Project of “Replacing Small Barrels wit

D)vidskEE) B1EER

In order to consistently control the exposure in the course of
production regarding the transportation of materials and waste, we
have commenced the optimization project named “Replacing Small
Barrels with Large Tanks” during the reporting period, by replacing the
small barrels currently used in transportation with large tanks, thereby
we have effectively reduced the consumption and wastage of small
barrels and hence the transportation costs, so as to strive for a more
economical, safe and environment friendly transportation process.

ANEREEEBE PR ERER » FERRERMNE
WEHR - ZFIFRE VR BERE - KRN/ MERES
MR ARRES > ATANB/ MRNERBENIEESE > MR EER
Bl 7S 2 IBREBAHE ~ 22  RIRNRE R EEHEE R4 o

Pollutant emissions

SRHER

Category Unit 2019 2020 Change (%)

bl B “E-NEF ZBIEF E1E (%)

Waste water discharge tonnes

EEK B = i 5,383,238 5,049,477 -6.2

Recycled non-hazardous waste tonnes

ElREEREY i 46,788 45,876 -19

Recycled on-hazardous waste tonnes/RMB10,000

per RMB10,000 of revenue

BrlahlESEmE L= 0.022 0.022 -1.9

Nitrogen oxide emission® tonnes

EE=K(et V7100 & L 38.04 22.66 -40.4
° Nitrogen oxide and sulfur dioxide are mainly emitted by boilers FE YR - SRR EBEER
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Green Office

Apart from exploring green production technologies, we always focus on
creating green working environment. We actively promote the use of energy-
saving office equipment, and our employees are encouraged to save water,
electricity, paper and office supplies. Meanwhile, we vigorously pursue OA
(Office Automation) system, with the intention to reduce the number of
printed documents and promote online meetings amid COVID-19 outbreak,
thus truly integrating the concept of sustainable development into daily office
life.

BRASTEKER BEE TR
IKBVIRIR A

Regular repair and maintenance on
water pipes and office equipment and
facilities

TEHR MR (R E K BB R AR BRIE

‘
J

RAEHRRESBEERMTNER » (BRFEITE
REMANIRE HMBEIBEEERHENRAR
%> SEIETEAAK  BE «  BRURBAR
mm BYH A& B B0 3 K 77 # 170A (Office
Automation > ¥ ABBIME) 248 0 BV ARE SR
IR MAEEHERIBERREBARE Lg%
BFRAFEERESMATIBEIALIER o

Enhance employees’ environmental Q Promote paper-less office, encourage
awareness regarding water saving with ‘ shared-use of computers, use email to
notices and water conservation signages send information, use duplex printing

whereas necessary
EEEACHIA SN E = B3
EERERD W ERHETEEITE]

Advocate to turn off the lights whereas
appropriate and control the temperature
setting of the airconditioning in offices
and dormitories

BEBFRE WENAN B S ERE
PR T
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CREATE A BETTER SOCIETY AND MAKE IT A PLACE
FULL OF CARE

Philanthropy is always a focal point of the Group, and this is why social
responsibility is incorporated throughout the entire journey of our cooperate
development. Over the years, we have been sparing no effort in initiating
charity programs, in which philanthropy is included in our annual budget
thereby providing it with institutional assurance, while our various charity
foundations are managed with scientific approach. Through school
constructions, paying tribute to elderly and nourishing youngsters, calamity
relief and many other initiatives, we show our utmost solicitude for the most
vulnerable and support the poor through various means. As we always
remember the roots of our success, it is our mission to contribute in the
creation of a more caring society and living out the motto of “Taken from
Society, Give back to Society”.

Value Education and Foster Learning

Education is the very foundation of a country, as the nation’s future and hope
lie upon it. On this same note, Xu Shihui, the Chairman of our Group, once
suggested: “Put priority on education to propagate traditional Chinese
virtues.” In an effort to develop educational endeavors, we have established
educational foundations to venture in the area of scholarship provision so as
to support both teachers and students, and at the same time eagerly
collaborate with government authorities in school constructions. Through our
contributions to education, we hope to inspire the community to engage in
this endeavor, injecting new momentum to educational development by
rallying the supports from different walks of life, and through this, we can
bring better education to more children and hope to more families.

130 Dali Foods Group Company Limited -

Fartt > BOKE

REMBRB A B EWAZRRIAEE » &
BTHEEERMALEERNZBE > RAU
o WA ERNIRAREEER  BEEFET
ABERE  HIELATRE  REEERER
mEE - BREPER  TEKY  RKKES
FH 2EFAEHETHSEER > LRIEHKE
ERAM - HPIREABEREFHEITMELS
8 gUKBR > EEMEIIRZINEE > BN
& o

H L

HERUBEZA » BREHRKMAE - EEH
EERFUHBHIRE MBAERBEEE 5
BEMTERT - A THHERBEEE K
I THEREE > BRRERY - REMBHE
FH¥ > AFEEBFEPIEBRESIF > BEES
B RPIREMEKF B FENERRNEL
EHERE  RESRNE  HHBEFEEHRN
BEER > BEZHNERTFEIRENHEE > R/EZS
PREFRRFE ©
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Promoting Teaching and Learning: Scholarship Provision

HERHH - RRE UK

As always, in August 2020, the 10th “Liangliang Education Trust Association” of Huian County offered scholarship to
outstanding teachers and students as encouragement as well as to underprivileged students as supports, through which
around 3,000 teachers and students received awards from the foundation with an amount aggregated to RMB10 million. In
late 2020, the “Xu Shihui Education Trust Association of Dali Group” of Huian County was officially consolidated under the
name of “Liangliang Education Trust Association” of Huian County, whence an award was launched exclusively for students
with outstanding results in the Higher Education Exam. The scholarship offers RMB100,000 to each awardee who mainly
comprise Peking University students from Huian. To date, the association has been offering scholarships to the majority of
teachers and students for ten consecutive years, covering over 20,000 beneficiaries with an amount accumulated to
approximately RMB85 million. Through these various scholarships, we hope to inspire every student to strive forward
diligently and aim for the best, and eventually pave the right way to their greatest success.

“ETERFNA FTEEZRRHEESRESREE N AR 11,0008 7T 0 BREESMENE KR ERESEERH
By BE3000IMEEBHEESHER - TENEEFHERZHEES ) RS SFREARTIBZH TR
BEEER > UWKHIRILTSZFHEE > T2REENBE  WANBLRE T » RBSEABAARKLE T - BEHA
ﬁ%em}_ﬁaﬂ—ﬁﬁ%kﬁmi@éﬂﬁ%&ﬁ%%%% R EWETRIARES5008 7T » BRATAERE 20,0002 AR © 2
AEEBRPBLHOLN > IMFEBTFHBER > BR31E > AEUSESRMITT T RIFHER o

mooom

sunEes A
7010%’1
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Promoting Teaching and Learning: School Constructions

HREH — BESRR

In 2018, the Group’s Chairman donated RMB1 billion to kick-start the “Liangliang Education Trust Association” of Huian
County and engaged in the construction of Hui’an Liangliang Middle School. The grand signing ceremony of the cooperative
education program with Hui’an Liangliang Middle School, which is donated by the Group, was held in October 2020, and it is
expected that the enrollment for junior and senior high freshmen will commence in September 2021. In the foreseeable
future, we, and the other parties involved, are committed to foster Liangliang Middle School into a shining example of modern
education not only in the county but also the entire nation. As a full-time and comprehensive middle school that is non-profit
in nature, Liangliang Middle School is not only a major project under the Development and Reform Commission of the Fujian
province, but is also an important element within Hui’an’s “A County Excel in Education” program. The establishment and
operation of Liangliang Middle School marked another milestone of Dail Group’s philanthropy in respect of education. We are

eager to cultivate more talents to serve as pillars of the nation through these charity programs.
FEBEEREE_E—\FREEARBOETEENUEZRSRHSETS  BEEZ =2 _ 2 2F+5
7 HEEBEENEZSSHRESFMESNEIRERT  UHEtR 2 —FAARGBERBKI— 5L -
BEZ AR ERANRRIERSRRITERNAEE N EERANREAEEE R - (FA— 2 AtFEF ETEHE
BLRmHPENMEEREERNZHINERER » W2 LM M ERG WEEEE - =P 2NEENNESE  2iE
NEBEHEERESFETENXY —RREE - HMHFEREEERZSHARBAKIEEES RS

Z;'f?‘é‘f? ]

a2 Y. I‘Q M, o t;\ﬁ
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Pay Tribute to Elderly and Nourish Youngsters

The Group is a propagator of Chinese virtues, with the admirable tradition of
“Honor the elderly and the young in other families as we honor those in our
own” in mind, we keep a keen eye on the issue of aging population and left-
behind children, showcasing our care through actual measures. We have been
sending out hope and warmth to elderly in poverty and left-behind children,
so as to immerse them with love and care from the larger society. We are
committed to foster harmony and the spirit of reciprocity in the society, by
spreading positivity, we hope to rally all walks of life to contribute their
resources in charity, and thus enhance social harmony through joint forces.

b/ €

EESMEPEXRE > R EEEURAZE
HEDURAZ ) HERER  BEADER
{ENBTRERE  REOBEABRITEH  »
BREFEAMNBTRERXREGARRE » B
FEMNRZIZRELEAKENEIGHIE o M
RONEENZBEYNHELE > FEREBGEE
FHEE GEHERREREREZELNE
(R LR -

Caring for Elderly and Sharing Love
BOEE > BRAD

Since 2010, the Group has been granting annual old-age subsidy to
elders without pensions in some villages and towns in Huian County,
Quanzhou City. This charitable event has organized for more than a
decade. Up to now, Dali Foods Group has granted old-age subsidy of
over RMB90 million to nearly 100,000 people in total.

B2 EESFHERENMERHIONELZFRIA
FTHEFABRBOMES  EEEAS A Am L EKFETRE
HEHR > ENEREERFEIEI0EAREHRELHES AR
9,000 % E T °
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Caring for left-behind children and assisting for family reunion

MEBETRE > BHEEFZ

Since 2016, the Group has devoted ongoing attention to the issue of left-behind children, and the geographical scope of its
supporting activities covers Fujian, Jiangxi, Chongging, Yunnan and other provinces and cities. In 2020, under the guidance of
the Rights and Interests Department of the Fujian Provincial Committee of the Communist Youth League of China, Daliyuan
launched a charity campaign for left-behind children in conjunction with Children’s Channel of Fujian Television Station,
namely “Daliyuan — Letting Dreams Set Sail, Love Reunited”. On 16 January, the Group organized a group tour to Fuzhou for
30 left-behind children and their parents, visiting the education base of the China Shipping Heritage Scenic Area in Fuzhou.
Apart from that, they were also invited to appreciate the cultural programmes at the studio hall of Fujian Radio Film and TV
Group. In addition to gaining knowledge and enjoying the wonderful performances, it is more important to reunite the
children with their parents and share the happiness of being together as a family. By organizing caring activities for left-
behind children, we hope to show our love and concern to their families, as well as to take the opportunity to promote charity
and accumulate social power, so that more people in need can benefit from the support and assistance by virtue of increased
resources. In addition, Daliyuan’s charity campaign for left-behind children, namely “A wonderful new year with the happiness
of reunion”, was officially launched on December 27, 2020. We will maintain our enthusiasm for organizing caring activities for
left-behind children, with the commitment to providing support to more children and families, and creating warm childhood
memories for those being left home alone.

BTGt EEFEMEIZTRERE > FRERNZ O EBEKERERE 1A BB - EmEZEEM °
TETERE gHERREESREEIEET HMEREERA L RIBEHASE T NEME — HRAMEEEE)
ENEFZEETREADES c —A+/H » EEEO0FHR 02 ETREREMPINREHZRIEN  ABETRERE
SETRNTHEMBEXEREHSEERHIEEN  ZFNXEME-—FRIBEREERZRERANERABREE
f1H - FRENHANMEBE TR FEEENEEZFNREEE > HARE —RAE—EHERE - HASNPEE
BTREED  ERARBENREZEZRENRE  hHEZELEEEARES  RALEHE  EHESNERAESLE
REMAZREREMER - Itsh > T2-TF+ "B+t HEMNE IRX225E > =REEF MERTZERE T
EEDIERXEE - R EEERFHBTREATFRNIRE  IBHEPBEHNEZFHRE > SBTERNNBRREE
—(AERBHELF -
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Fight Against The Epidemic

The Group always keeps in mind its role and mission as a Chinese enterprise
by paying attention to social hot issues and actively shouldering social
responsibility. In the face of major disasters, including Wenchuan earthquake
in 2008, droughts in Southwest China and Yushu earthquake in 2010, Ya’an
earthquake in 2013, as well as floods hitting middle and lower reaches of the
Yangtze River in 2016, Dali people are always among the first to set up support
teams for delivering the most needed food and beverages to people in
disaster-stricken areas.

In early 2020, the Group made prompt responses to nationwide outbreak of
COVID-19. During the reporting period, we fully supported the front-line
personnel and fought against the epidemic together with the people
nationwide, with an aim to overcome the adversity hand by hand.

Joint forces to fight against the epidemic

RhinEER - EFRERT

proRE
AEBBRKFLERELENEEMNESD » BE
g BHEELEtEET Tfé_gvl\ﬁﬁ
JNNHE > —2—TFFEFEREN - T/RIHE »

SE——FHTHE > BEIZ _/\ﬂi‘é/lq]—[:/ﬁ?

/D/IMBﬁimE/ﬁ7}</2/E£££ ‘!5 )\%j([g/«/\ rﬁﬁ
Al > L?’F'JA%@‘;‘% B%F'ﬁiﬁﬁ)é PR 1L 3% #%
B> AREAREERFENE M

“ETTHY) 2EEENERIERE > £F
MIREE > HEHR > AR HWE—RAE
HEEARBWE > HEE > BFHRRR -

In early 2020, in the face of the unexpected COVID-19 outbreak, the
entire country worked together to fight against the epidemic, and the
Group was devoting its supporting efforts amid such difficulties. On
January 27, we sent the first batch of supplies to infected area in
Hubei, marking the commencement of our anti-epidemic support.
Following the spread of the epidemic, our subsidiaries and partners
donated supplies of more than RMB10 million to front-line workers. In
February 2020, the Group further donated Doubendou soymilk in
amount of RMB10 million, thereby providing strong backup support to
frontline staff, delivering nutritious foods to medical staff, volunteers
and patients, expressing our respect to medical staff and volunteers,
and contributing to the nationwide anti-epidemic work, with a hope to
gather the strength of the entire society and celebrate triumph over
this invisible war.

TEIEHFY) BHENEENHEREE  2E ETHAROITE
BIE - EEMAEATEEERENR ) — B2+t H > &MIBHE—
HAEMMEEENILES » T RBEERINER - BIEELZ % >
AEBETABURGENFEETERIFEZE T EEARE 1,000 88
BNYE - ZETZF "/ EEBRIBE TEEARE 1,000 8T
NEARZ I > FBILEATBRIARIEE TR ANBEILIE > ABEA
E\u@%ﬁ$%%LTM§%g RETHEEAS  TEEN

R AEENTUE LER) > A2REEMENNETRES R
BHEENEE o
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APPENDIXES [z

I.  Appendix — The list of significant laws and regulations L K% — B s s
that apply to the Group

No.

F8%  significant laws and regulations that the Group should comply FEEFRERIER

1 Company Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREEARBEMB AT ED

2 Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEARHMBERAEEHRF L)

3 Advertising Law of the People’s Republic of China (PE AN RHMBEBES L)

4 General Standard for the Labeling of Prepackaged Foods (FEEKeRIEEEL)

5 Standard on Nutrition Labelling of Prepackaged Foods (e REERRER)

6 Basic Standards for Corporate Internal Control (RSP B AR &)

7 Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery CRAR R I R R IT AR EITRED

8 Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEAREMEERZEE)

9 Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEARENEERESE)

10 Regulation on the Implementation of the Food Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEARENRBREERESHIEM)

11 Patent Law of the People’s Republic of China (FhEE N REMBEIERE)

12 Trademark Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REMBEERE)

13 Copyright Law of the People’s Republic of China (hEE N REMBEZ(ERIE)

14 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests (hEE N RBEMBEHEE D REL)

15 Labor Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REMBESG EED

16 Labor Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China (hEANRENBESEHERE)

17 Special Rules on the Labor Protection of Female Employees (LR T EHRERIIRE)

18 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors (FREE N REMBEIR MR FEARE LX)

19 Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor (BILFRAETRED

20 Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China (hEANRENBEZEEEE)

21 Regulations on the Safety Management of Hazardous Chemicals (Bt RT2EBRE6)

22 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational Diseases (FhEE A REA BB B A E)

23 Measures for the Administration of Contingency Plans for Work Safety Accidents (EEZ2EWNESTEAREIEINE)

24 Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance (THBRBRIEHD

25 Fire Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (hEE A BRHEFBEHERAE)

26 Special Equipment Safety Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEARHNESFERBELEE)

27 Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REMEIRIRREE)

28 Environmental Protection Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (hE N REMEIRBRERE)

29 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution (hEE N BEMBE KRS REAEE)

30 Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE A REFBE KT LAY

31 Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution (EE A RHEFNEE RERE YIS S IRIRRRIA L)
Caused by Solid Wastes

32 Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Pollution from (hEE N REMNEIR B IR B T RHAE)
Environmental Noise

33 Energy Conservation Law of the People’s Republic of China (PEE AN RHEFMBEEBAERE)

34 Water Law of the People’s Republic of China (FREE N REMEKIED
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II. Appendix — Indices for Content of ESG Reporting Guide II.

by Hong Kong Stock Exchange

General Disclosures and KPIs

Bifis — & 22 ESG ¥ i f5 5
BRI

A

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR 2020

— R B R RR SR A RS 1R “EODFRE C HERERRE
A. Environmental
AIRIR
Aspect Al Emissions
EEAL Bk
Al General Disclosure Environmental Management, Energy Management, Emission Control
—RRIKER RIFEE » BEREIE » HEdEs|
All The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Emission Control
B R AR R HE R R © BEmuEs|
Al2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, ~ Energy Management
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
/%Eﬁ B e (UEstSE) Kk (WER) BE MUSESBM AEREE
IEREETE) ©
Al3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate,  With a relatively low amount of hazardous waste produced by the Group
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). and the absence of concern from stakeholders, disclosure is not
available for the time being.
FRELAEREEYEE CUESHE) k (NER) BE INESEEE FEEELNFEERYERD  TERDARKEBRT ALt
il ~ BIERIEAH) © BRIKEE o
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, ~ Emission Control
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).
FRELBZERYRE CURstE) k (NER) BE MUSESE  HuEs
il ~ BIERMETE) ©
Al5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Emission Control
RPN E N IETE R PAISAR k2l
Al6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, Emission Control
and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.
HIRIEAERBEEEYNG S « BIEELSNERAEMRR - HERdEs
Aspect A2 Use of Resources
[BEA2 HiRER
A2 General Disclosure Energy Management, Resource Management
—RRIKER AEREE - BIREHE
A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or ~ Energy Management
oil) in total (kWh in *000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).
RS HMERR/NEEERWE - RIUH) LEE (UTE ERERE
TREE) REE (MUSESEE(] - 8BEREE) °
A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production ~ Resource Management
volume, per facility).
BIOKBREE WNUSEREN - SIEREE) © BREE
A2.3 Descr\pt\on of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to  Energy Management
achieve them.
HtSERE AN a5t B R PTG AR o BEREIE
A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for ~ Resource Management
purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.  The Group did not have any problems with water sourcing.
HREER AR LRI ERRRE - WREAR KM ast 8IS BREE
FR © REEETE SREVE R AOR LB R E
A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if ~ Resource Management

applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

Bk SRFT A B ek BY4R 8 (LIRSS K (W) S EBUGE -

BEREE
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General Disclosures and KPIs

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR 2020

— AR B R A B AR RHEAT ZETHERE - HERERRE
Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
BEA3 IRIERRAER
A3 General Disclosure Resource Management
—RRIREE BREIE
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment ~ Resource Management
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.
HRFEFFHHRERRIARERNEAXERCENEREMTE ZREE
H1TE ©
B. Social
B.it &
Employment and Labour Practices
ERREIER
Aspect B1 Employment
EmEB1 {El%
Bl General Disclosure Labour Rights and Employment, Remuneration and Benefits
—RRIKER BT REm BRI ~ FrBiEF)
Bl.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or ~ Labour Rights and Employment
part-time), age group and geographical region.
MR~ EBEEE « FRAARRME R DI EEARE - E T m AR
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. The Group disclosed the overall employee turnover rate, and it intends to
disclose the turnover rate based on gender, age groups and
geographical locations in the future.
MR~ FEMER R BB DI EE ML o ERBEREERTAE  RIEH « FRRAR RMEE HHNEERKL
Kt BIRARARER
Aspect B2 Health and Safety
[EmB2 BEEZE
B2 General Disclosure Health and Safety
—RRIKER BEZE
B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. Health and Safety
R TIERMAMIETHIABURELE o REZE
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
RAITHGERTIFEE - REZ2
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, and ~ Health and Safety
how they are implemented and monitored.
PR ER B B 2 (2 R B L 2 FE I > DURABRAIBAT B8R 75 0% REZ2
Aspect B3 Development and Training
[EmB3 BRRIE
B3 General Disclosure Training and Development
— AR Bl RE
B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category  Training and Development
(e.g. senior management, middle management).
BENREEERN (MNEREERE - FREEES) BIoNZilE BlEE
EER
B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and  The Group disclosed the average training hours completed per employee,

employee category.

BURREESEHNE D - SRIESTHZ I TR -

and it intends to disclose the training hours completed by employees
based on gender and category in the future.

BRESEEETMZIIN TR - Z1H5 - SR SNEESR
alIE B Et BIR SRR B
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report
RIS HEKREARS

General Disclosures and KPIs ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR 2020

— AR B R A B AR RHEAT T THERE - HERERRE
Aspect B4 Labour Standards

[EE B4 G

B4 General Disclosure Labour Rights and Employment

— RN ER

ST e SRR

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child  Labour Rights and Employment
and forced labour.
R ST IR B 1B 5 AU B hE LA e & T R s lIz5 T o 5T BE
B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. No violation has occurred during the reporting period.
TR IRER B REH RS ISR TR 5] o REPARNRBLEERBER
Operating
Practices
Eigan
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management
BEBs pEsEEE
B5 General Disclosure Food Quality and Safety
— ARk EE EmEEETZS
B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Food Quality and Safety
a8 D HERHE o EmBEENRSE
B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of ~ Food Quality and Safety
suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and how they
are implemented and monitored.
M AR AMERNES > MENTERBEANHESHE U eRBEEH%2
KB RRIEBINMITREER S X
Aspect B6 Product Responsibility
/B Be EmEE
B6 General Disclosure Food Quality and Safety, Scientific Research and Innovation, Protection
of Rights and Interests
—RRIRER EmEEHZE  RIfAH - BaRE
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety ~ Food Quality and Safety
and health reasons.
BESEEXERMEHTRZ2RREEAMABRKME DL o EmEEHZE
B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how  Protection of Rights and Interests
they are dealt with.
RN ERRRFFHR B U R 5% o Tzt fRAE
B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual  Scientific Research and Innovation
property rights.
Hh B 58 R (RIS B ERE B RAAVIER) o [Rzsin Uk
B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Food Quality and Safety
L E SR TR REREIWIZR EmEEETZE
B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how  Protection of Rights and Interests

they are implemented and monitored.

HHUH B E BB RIERFARBER » MURABRMAITREER T4
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Environmental, Social And Governance Report
RIS HEKREARRS

General Disclosures and KPIs ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR 2020
— R B R RR R A RS 1R “ECEFIRR - HERERERE
Aspect B7 Anti-corruption
BmB7 REE
B7 General Disclosure Integrity and Compliance
—RRIKER BRREHR
B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought  Integrity and Compliance

against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.

RERPAHFTAREESRLETEEENESHARGNHE  BEAR

FeafFahiE R o
B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, and  Integrity and Compliance
how they are implemented and monitored.
BT R R IRAZ T » MURABRIIT R EEER % © FRRER
Community
#HE
Aspect B8 Community Investment
[EmEBS HERE
B8 General Disclosure Create a Better Society and Make it a Place Full of Care
—RIRE EiFtg > BORE
B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns,  Create a Better Society and Make it a Place Full of Care
labour needs, health, culture, sport).
SIEMEEHE - BESE S IRER -BE X85 o EFdg > BORE
B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. Create a Better Society and Make it a Place Full of Care

EEIBEFMBHAER NSHEHHRE) o g BO0KE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 R S

Ernst & Young ZXKBE R E KT Tel E35: +852 2846 9888
22/F CITIC Tower EHIEREE 19 Fax {£H:+852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue rhiE K E2218 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

EY:

To the shareholders of Dali Foods Group Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dali Foods Group
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 148 to 242, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

RiEFIEREBARATMR
(MRS EEMMIIMNERRERAR)

BR

EEEERE MEEF M EMBEN BERER
BRAR (TERE))) REMBAR ((E£H)) B
afBERE  BENR_E225+_"F=1+—
HOAHEBRRE  BEZALLFENGHIE
mMHEMEREERmT « A EREB RN EGHIR
TRER > UKAHVBREWT (BIEERS
STBUREEE) ©

EERA HUFRERERES GRS
(TEBEMAE) BHENEBMBRSER
(TEBMBREEL ) ABEMATHKIR BE
ER_Z222F+_A=+—HHNEHEHRR
RESEZRAILEFENGHPVBRREREHIES
e > WEEREBATREIZRER

BRI
EERBEEBESHMASTRMBNERETER
(TEBBEER) ETEZ - ESENZHEELT
NWEEEEFNREARBMMEZS HUBR
REEENEE—HE—P BT - RESBGS
MAgnEBREStmERTR ())&
F/UY BEEE TEBETETHMER
B - EEME 0 ESMESHEERERE
REEMAEENERIEMHER
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV Y GRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report,
including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

[oH S o A I

REBEEENERESE > BARELFESEEEL
RARENEHMHRETREENEFER - EF
EBZAHMHRERMIEERNSRFEELE
FE MAGHMILEFEEFERTR -5 TX
KREEME > ARESERFRIEILESRENE
HEFEARIEFIER

EEERTHAREZEEMMBL G HUHIREKEA
AENSE—EMENEE > SFRIEEFFER
< EE- Bt EENBFHELESELE
EEHAHVHFRRETERRBERAE R (&
WEFHRE  BREF (BESRETIIEER
METHER) NERBESUBEM S HEBR
RERBZERRHTEMR -

accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
R EIZSIA

Valuation of inventories

FEILE

As at December 31, 2020, the balance of inventories was
RMB1,074,604,000 which accounted for approximately 6.5% of the current
assets of the Group.

N TETEFF_R=+—H > FE&HH AR 10746040007
1t BEERREIEENG6.5%

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined by the weighted average method and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. When the Group launches
new products, key parameters in the valuation of such inventories require
the Group’s estimation and judgement. In addition, determination of net
realisable value also requires the Group’s estimation and judgement.
Considered the significance of inventory balance and significant
estimation and judgement involved, we identified the valuation of
inventories as key audit matter.
FERMARETEIRBENE PRREETIER o MARMETIDEEE
MERBAEAARBEEEME - BERE T RREZE LIS ENEEE
B-E EEEEHMERR > ARTFEGLETHNERS2HFTE B&
BV EET R FIER o 15h » PTRIRFENEETTE BSEEFRMESK
HIEf o ERIFEEFRNEAM KNI RNER G RFVE - EFF
FEGERAMRERER
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EFETEASMMAREIRMRELER

We obtained an understanding of management’s
process on the determination of inventory cost and
net realisable value and evaluated the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key
internal controls.
EEEREEEECFENARISIRBENER
Wb T B2 REBEIEMRE ~ MITRIERN] -

We performed on sample basis the determination of
the cost and the accuracy of the cost calculations.

EEHMANETERMF st B REE T IEITHE

We performed test on sample basis the determination
of net realisable value of finished goods by comparing
the expected selling prices to the selling prices of
recent or subsequent sales.
EERBRETEERTIANBEEEETLER
DUt s A e A SRR ERNEEETAR o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV R GlIE =

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
RREZSEIA

Valuation of inventories (continued)

FEILE (&)

Please refer to note 18 to the financial statements for related disclosures.

AR R B S MM B m KM 18 o

Impairment of trade and bills receivables

8 5 BUGRIE K R W R IR R (E

As at December 31, 2020, the balance of trade and bills receivables was
RMB899,559,000, which accounted for approximately 5.4% of the current
assets of the Group.

RIZZZFE+ZA=1+—H  BSRBRIEREREZEREGRA AR
899,559,0007% 1 EERBBVRENEELI5.4% ©

Under HKFRS 9, the impairment of trade and bills receivables was based
on expected credit loss (‘ECL”) approach. The measurement of the ECL
requires significant judgements and estimation on the key assumptions
used in the ECL models, such as the expected future cash flows and
forward-looking adjustments. Considered the significance of trade and
bills receivables balance and significant estimation and judgement
involved, we identified the impairment of trade and bills receivables as
key audit matter.

IRBEEBMHBREERFE N > B RUNRIE R E B (E TR TEH
EEEE (FEREEHE)) ZET - sIERREEEEREHRERES
BEENEANTIZ/RRETERFE (LS FIMNFARRRRESR
AIBEIE AR o & R E 5 EUWEIE R W RBARI B A UK K&
HNEXREETRFIE > 585 RUIGRIE R BN E BB ER R A REEE
%EE -

IoH St o A o 0 (3

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEETEANNARERRERER

We also performed on sample basis the
reasonableness of the estimated cost of completion
and selling expenses of the raw materials and work in
progress by comparing the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses of the raw materials
and work in progress with similar products in the
current year or subsequent periods.
EFTNBBR RME TR T2 518 TRk
THEE R Bl F E R B ARV AR DI E mIEITHEE
HEMERERTIENEE TR REERSH
BIREETIHE o

We also assessed the adequacy of the related
disclosures in the notes to the financial statements.

EE LM BRRNEPHERRERS RS

We performed an understanding of management’s
credit management process on the trade and bills
receivables and evaluated the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of key internal controls
which govern credit control, debt collection and
estimates of expected credit losses.

EEHRREEERNESRIHERERZEENGEE
BIREF > WiEEEREEEENRET ~ JITREF
W HEEEEEES « WEKBEREE/HIEME -

We tested the ageing analysis prepared by
management.

EENHEEEFTRAAERE DA

We evaluated the appropriateness of judgements
involved in determination of impairment of trade and
bills receivables, including the historical experience
and forward-looking adjustments.
EEMLEEE B 7 UG IE M R RRPT S R 9 )
ETRTEE » SFEEERRAEEREE -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV Y GRS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
RREZSEIA

Impairment of trade and bills receivables (continued)

B S WA KRR R RUE ()

Please refer to note 19 to the financial statements for related disclosures.

TRRMEE SRR 2 R B RMEE 19

IoH St o A o 0 (3

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEEETEANNARERRERER

We tested the model parameters including the
underlying historical and external data used, examined
the actual losses recorded during the current financial
year and assessed whether there was an indication of
management bias when recognising loss allowances
and the computation.

EEARAREL 2 BEPTAERET RIMNIETE
BENENYBEERENERBIBRTIEERS

We tested on sample basis, the cash receipts from
customers after the financial year end relating to trade
receivables balances as at December 31, 2020.

EEMR 2 EF T "B =1+—HNEZ KX

181

EER WA RNBYBREERERBETRHER

TWAEIT R ©

We assessed the appropriateness of disclosures.
EETERBRTHE o

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. We obtained Management Discussion and Analysis section prior to
the date of our auditor’s report, and we expect to obtain the rest Sections of
the Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed
on the other information obtained prior to the date of the auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

144 Dali Foods Group Company Limited -

A AR A H At 2R

EFAHHMERFKESR - HMBEHNSEER
ANFTEFTBER TEEGHMBTRERES
IZERET IR S - BN AR S B HRTES
EEEN W RONTEE > BE SRR AZEAD
BREBRISERIOERER ©

EEHAHMHFRRFUNER L ERERME
k> BESTEHHEMERNERTATNZE
A5 o

RESZELOHYBREMES » EFNEERHE
BHMER > tMEBEMENE SRS HIT
BERNEFEBZBAERTETNERFEERT
75 WBIFHFEERERERIL o HEERBAEZ
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV R GlIE =

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the
Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

WA A DRV B R URIE I B AT

BERBEFRAEERBEEBGHMAGHMBNS
AUBHREENRBFTBRRFR > HREEMQ
TR BRIBERNEHMBRE  REFETHR
NEHMBREBUESOERMABIEE - MUEZ
EEHMBRERTGEFERNNEFFERMER
ERKERIL

EREGHYBRRE > SRREFREE
it EEEFEEENEN RERFEKE
RINEIE NER) WIRAUFECERERNE
50 FRIFE BRREFRHE SEEBREIE
LEEE > SRR Z SN H M B R AITRIME ©

BERREFHERZEEWIETREEE B
EEMBREEFHNEE -

R Bk T % 7 OF I 55 ¥ R R I
HIE
EENERASEET IS A S RREEN
ER BB EER R RERMERNEALES
it WA ELERORYETRE o ARES
BT EARERERE  FRILLOMRIIfER
iR - BEEHARAREHABHTHEMA
TEBERRIEEMEE -

GEEERSERNLE  BREEBETER
ETHER L ETEREBEERIMEFENEX
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV Y GRS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional

judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

146

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

A% B R A A% 5 DF S 5 R ZHR IR 1
HAIE ()
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REFEIE > RIFTHERIBREE - EFF
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BER - ERERIREEENEEIERIE
FIUE AR SE BB EFFME R B ARKER
HRBSINAREZRRERMERNE
REBRABIREL o

THREEHARMI A EELIE 0 URFTEE
BNEEF  ELIFETEE SEENR
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV R GlIE =

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is CHEUNG NG.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
Hong Kong

March 29, 2021

A% B R A A% 5 DF S 5 R ZHR IR 1
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other

Comprehensive Income
EREm kARSI mER

Year ended December 31,2020 B4 —&E _ZFF+ _FH=+—HILFEZE

2020 2019
s “T-NE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HIsE ARBFT AREBTFIT
REVENUE s 5(a) 20,961,708 21,375,248
Cost of sales HHE RS 6(a) (12,720,812) (12,883,785)
Gross profit EF 8,240,896 8,491,463
Otherincome and gains HAKA KW as 5(b) 1,036,617 886,733
Selling and distribution expenses THE AR (3,555,237) (3,677,450)
Administrative expenses TR (606,092) (553,032)
Finance costs B A 7 (9,574) (1,413)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX PR AIEF 6 5,106,610 5,146,301
Income tax expense PSR 10 (1,257,957) (1,305,730)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FAiEF 3,848,653 3,840,571
Attributable to: DUF ATFEL
Owners of the parent ISYNCIEZ PN 3,848,653 3,840,571
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRAEF 3,848,653 3,840,571
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hthizals=
Exchange differences: ERAEEE
Exchange differences on translation of HMEBINET
foreign operations EREER (20,367) 5,889
Net other comprehensive income that may be eSS R Ay
reclassified to profit or loss in EEANEMGS
subsequent periods W 3 ER (20,367) 5,889
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FRHEMEaWE
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX (3518250 (20,367) 5,889
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FERLGEAWR=REE
THE YEAR 3,828,286 3,846,460

148 Dali Foods Group Company Limited « Annual Report 2020



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

Bt EmkEMEE @R

Year ended December 31,2020 B4 —&E _ZFF+_FH=+—HILFEZE

2020 2019
—EEHF TN
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Fe&E AR¥Fx AEREF T
Attributable to: YT ATHENW:
Owners of the parent BATEE A 3,848,653 3,840,571
Total comprehensive income attributable to: WU TALTEGES
U E4a%E -
Owners of the parent BABIEB A 3,828,286 3,846,460
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BATIEiERREES
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF BEAEGERER
THE PARENT 12
Basic and diluted BEARRKEE RMBO0.28 RMB0.28
— For profit for the year — EREH ARfo0.2857c ARM0287T
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R BINR

December 31, 2020 R —E_EFF{+_H=+—H

2020 2019
—ECEHF “E—hF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Fe&E AR¥Fx AEBETIT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y BB R E 13 5,111,010 5,141,506
Investment property BEYE 14 225,664 233,762
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15(a) 691,425 608,746
Intangible assets W B E 16 1,171 1,994
Prepayments AT RIE 17 87,184 96,045
Deferred tax assets IRIEIBEE 25 62,552 64,218
Total non-current assets IERENEEARE 6,179,006 6,146,271

CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories =z5 18 1,074,604 1,262,355
Trade and bills receivables B S e ahnIE L ERZE S 19 899,559 736,874
Prepayments and other receivables AT EIE R B e RIS 20 632,368 709,703
Pledged deposits BER 21 100,072 141
Cash and bank balances RE R IRTT456R 21 13,825,147 11,092,268
Total current assets MEEELE 16,531,750 13,801,341
CURRENT LIABILITIES mENaE

Trade and bills payables B SRR EN R 22 983,987 1,347,768
Other payables and accruals HithE (I Fa R EstE&E A 23 1,596,871 1,572,753
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FHEIRITEM 24 1,917,681 -
Lease liabilities HEaE 15(b) 17,844 19,289
Tax payable NG 270,252 236,084
Total current liabilities B ({E4E%E 4,786,635 3,176,794
NET CURRENT ASSETS FEEERRE 11,745,115 10,624,547
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES SEBERAHAE 17,924,121 16,770,818

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEREER
Lease liabilities Heas 15(b) 32,378 474
Deferred income IRIEUA 26 358,307 370,925
Deferred tax liabilities IEIERIBEE 25 68,000 122,793
Total non-current liabilities JERBN & EALEE 458,685 494,192
NET ASSETS SERE 17,465,436 16,276,626
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\
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position ”é“ ‘
BHIFBAR T J

December 31, 2020 R —E_EFF{+_H=+—H

2020 2019
s “T-NE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

PEE AR®T ARETTT

EQUITY fEs
Equity attributable to owners of the parent YNk 2PN
Share capital %N 27 112,712 112,712
Reserves (4 28 17,352,724 16,163,914
Total equity HEREES 17,465,436 16,276,626
Xu Shihui Zhuang Weigiang
HritiE PR G
Director Director
BE BE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

et LIS

Year ended December 31, 2020 #E_—_EFE_— =

FH_A=1+—HILFE

Exchange
Share Share Merger Statutory  fluctuation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
kx  ROGE  AffEE  iERE EREBEE  REEN Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000* RMB'000* RMB000* RMB000* RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETR AREBT ARETT ARETT ARETR
(note 27) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28)
(MzEar)  (Miske)  (¥sE2s)  (BifE2s)
At January 1,2019 RZF-h&—B—-H 112,712 1,260,189 (23165) 1,706,803 291207 1206491 15412707
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - - 3,840,571 3,840,571
Other comprehensive income EREMERE NG
for the year:
Exchange differences related BRENEBNERER
to foreign operations - - - - 5,889 - 5,889
Total comprehensive income FREERGESE
for the year - - - - 5,889 3,840,571 3,846,460
Final 2018 dividend declared BER_E-\FRERE - (906,308) - - - - (906,308)
Interim 2019 dividend “2-NERHEE - (353881 - - (439722) (12826300 (2,076233)
Transfer from retained profits BEEREET - - - 55400 - (55,400) -
At December 31,2019 RZE-hE
+-B=+-H 112,712 - (23,165) 1,762,203 (142626) 14,567,502 16,276,626
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BHEmEHR

Year ended December 31,2020 B4 —&E _ZFF+_FH=+—HILFEZE

|
l
!
D

Exchange
Share Merger Statutory  fluctuation Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Rx  SHiE  EERE EREDEE 2 GREEN faxt
RMB’000 RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000* RMB’000
AERETr ARETR* ARETR* ARETR* ARETR* ARETR
(note 27) (note 28) (note 28) (note 28)
(M¥zE27) (MizE2s) (Myzk28) (MizE28)
At January 1,2020 R-ZE-Z%—A—H 112,712 (23,165) 1,762,203 (142,626) 14,567,502 16,276,626
Profit for the year FEREF - - - - 3,848,653 3,848,653
Other comprehensive income FEREMAESUE !
for the year:
Exchange differences related B REEINERMESR
to foreign operations =5 - - - (20,367) - (20,367)
Total comprehensive income  E 4T & U428
for the year - - - (20,367) 3,348,653 3,828,286
Final 2019 dividend declared Bk = B—fE R EHR
RE - - - - (1,736,732)  (1,736,732)
Interim 2020 dividend TETEFHRHKE - - - - (902,744) (902,744)
Transfer from retained profits &8 B {R & aF| - - 22,284 - (22,284) -
At December 31,2020 jgat--Jamk>s3:- 3
+=-RA=+—H 112,712 (23,165) 1,784,487 (162,993) 15,754,395 17,465,436

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB17,352,724,000 (2019:
RMB16,163,914,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

* ZEHEREDBIBEEHPBRARAN S HEE
BAR17352,724000c(Z 2 —NE: AR

16,163,914,000 75) °

ENRmERBRARE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

aHETRER

Year ended December 31,2020 B4 —&E _ZFF+ _FH=+—HILFEZE

2020 2019
—ECEHF =ty =S
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
MsE ARETT AREFIT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES R EE SIS RE
Profit before tax BRIG AT A 5,106,610 5,146,301
Adjustments for: AT HIE LA
Interest income — bank deposits MEBWA — RITER (7,274) (5,283)
Loss on disposal of items of HEME - MEREE
property, plant and equipment, net THH I EIE3 58 6(c) 2,180 2,449
Depreciation of property, RNyt
plant and equipment ITE 6(c) 737,810 699,786
Depreciation of investment property REYEITE 6(c) 9,468 9,719
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREESERTE 6(c) 32,824 31,244
Amortisation of intangible assets BigmpEE 6(c) 823 1,146
Impairment loss on trade and bills receivables B EWTIE L EWE
ERER R 6(c) 497 1,434
Impairment of inventories FERE 6(c) 295 1,268
Finance costs [EE=1DWN 7 9,574 1,413
Government grants recognised in profit or loss 48 70 R b SRRV BT
AL 26 (31,660) (28,556)
5,861,147 5,860,921
(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits BIRIR1TEE ()
e : 4% (100,000) 11,265
Increase in trade and bills receivables B ENTIE R E
ki Sl (163,182) (23,604)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments and other FE{I IR H A FE U R IE
receivables b (g hn) 78,939 (215,261)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories EFEERLD, (18 187,456 (125,824)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables B ENRHIE L ENEE
CRizL) /1810 (363,781) 405,934
Increase in other payables and accruals HihEt R IE KL fEst
BRIEM 8,791 258,498
Cash generated from operations BEFRSIRE 5,509,370 6,171,929
Interest paid 2FME (7,834) (1,413)
Tax paid OfRIE (1,277,816) (1,155,112)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM REEHFRSRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES SBEE 4,223,720 5,015,404
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BftiREAER

Year ended December 31, 2020 B —&F _EFF+{ _H=+—HIEFE

2020 2019
bt 3 3 “B-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREBTFIT
CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEEFRARERE
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE WREKREBE
equipment and investment property B EYZ (727,644) (1,000,519)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEYE « BMEKEE
plant and equipment HEWPMSMIA 4,308 3,708
Additions to right-of-use assets FRAEEERE (30,898) (40,269)
Additions to intangible assets BEEERE - (265)
Receipt of government grants for property, UREVHZE ~ R R R LA
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (65 AR &8 EE B 4 B 19,042 29,263
Interest received from bank deposits BiR{TERUERF] B 5,670 -
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BRETEIRLD 69 1328
Net increase in bank deposits RITF RIS IR (1,320,000) (130,000)
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN REETHFIARERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES PER (2,049,453) (1,136,754)
CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIS ;EEIFTAIRERE
New bank loans MIRTTER 2,217,681 -
Repayment of bank loans BIEIRITER (300,000) -
Dividends paid ERE (2,639,476) (2,982,541)
Principal portion of lease payments MEMRHNASED (19,177) (18,296)
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN MBS RARERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEE (740,972) (3,000,837)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERIREEEWILM
CASH EQUIVALENTS BEE 1,433,295 877,813
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FHIRSKRIREHEY 10,962,268 10,078,566
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net PEREFN R EFEE (20,416) 5,889
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EXRRERIREEEN
AT END OF YEAR 12,375,147 10,962,268
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BHIEEMNER

Year ended December 31,2020 B4 —&E _ZFF+ _FH=+—HILFEZE

2020 2019
s “T-NE
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

PEE AR®T ARETTT

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERINESL Bt

CASH EQUIVALENTS bagii
Cash at banks and on hand RITREFRE 12,334,926 10,669,710
Bank deposits with original maturity of MEEIEE DR =EAR

less than three months RITHER 40,221 292,558
Bank deposits with original maturity of PRI RBE=EE M

over three months SRITERR 1,450,000 130,000
Cash and bank balances as stated in AR R RFTFIIRE R

the statement of financial position IR1T45ER 21 13,825,147 11,092,268
Less: Bank deposits with original maturity of B REIEE B

over three months =1EBBRITER (1,450,000) (130,000)

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in BEMERMYIBE R

the statement of cash flows HEZEY) 12,375,147 10,962,268
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Notes to the Financial Statements
TSR R M 5

December 31,2020 —&E _ZEF{ _F=4+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Dali Foods Group Company Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The registered
address of the Company is Maples Corporate Services Limited, P.O. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of food and beverage in Mainland
China.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the “Directors”), the holding
company of the Company is Divine Foods Limited (the “Parent”), a
company established in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The controlling
shareholders of the Company are Mr. Xu Shihui, Ms. Chen Liling, Ms. Xu
Yangyang, Divine Foods Limited, Divine Foods-1 Limited, Divine Foods-2
Limited, Divine Foods-3 Limited, Hi-Tiger Limited and Xu’s Family Trust
(together known as the “Controlling Shareholders”).

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
incorporation/
registration,

type of legal entity,
and date of
incorporation/ Place of

Name of company registration

SEMARL EEoEs -
EERRESENIR
AL 5o E

operations

AERTE

Dali Foods Holdings Limited

e

BVI Limited liability company BV
November 4,2014

REEREEEREEAE 3
—Z—mF+—AmY

24

Dali Foods Holdings Limited BEREE

Dali Foods Group (Hong Kong) Hong Kong S.AR. Limited
liability company
November 11,2014

FRFIITHERREERE FE
—Z-mFE+—A+—H

Hong Kong
Company Limited

ENRRER (B8) BRAT

1. A R EEER
ENBRERBRAR (TRa5) RIEFH
EHRENBETHERERMMIIAER
RHRERE  ARBINEAMMPEERES
Maples Corporate Services Limited » 3h it &
P.0. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands ©

AERBB—RREERAT - XA KRE
MEBAR (s TAER) TE2ETEAN
WRFR MM EERIFE -

RRABEE (TEER) XA AREER
‘AF) A Divine Foods Limited (M}AE]) » A&
—REEABHERES (RBERKED K
I BAF] o RABINIERG R AFTHIES

E-BRBE L

= B B 2 & ~ Divine

Foods Limited ~ Divine Foods-1 Limited ~

Divine Foods-2 Limited ~ Divine Foods-3
Limited ~ Hi-Tiger Limited & 5F 5 &R 1% 15 5%
(1rfEs TEERRARERD) ©

14 I 8 2 ) ) 2
KABIEEMBABIGFIENT !

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

BEITEE/
MRS EE

USD100

1003E7T

HKD100

100 87T

[
2t
b3
So
i
i

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the Company Principal
Direct  Indirect activities
FATE(ED
BAL
HE M TEEH
100% - Investment holding
RELR
- 100%  Investment holding
RELR
BIRRAE . FIR 2020 157



Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

December 31,2020 —&E _ZEF{ _F=4+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation/
registration,

type of legal entity,
and date of
incorporation/

Name of company registration

SEMERIL, B oS o
EERRRENR

A B2
The PRC Wholly-owned

foreign enterprise
February 10,1993

AERTE

Dali Foods Group Co., Ltd.
(EFERERBRAR) "

ENRnEEERAT HESMEEERE
—AN=%ZF+H
Quanzhou Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited

(RMNEFERBRAR) liability company

January 12,1993

RINEFERERAE HEEREFRAE
—MN=F—B+=H
Hubei Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited

(MIBEFERBRAR) liability company

June 16,2005

WILENERERAE HEEREFRAE
“ZTRERA+TH
Jilin Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited

(EFHEFERBRAR) liability company

June 17,2005

EMENERERAE HEEREFRAE
“EZRFRA+TH
Gansu Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited

(HE=EFNBRERAR) liability company
August 31, 2005
HEEREFRAE

“ERRFN\A=+—H

HRENRMAERAR

Jinan Dali Foods Co., Ltd.
(EREFERERAR)

The PRC Limited
liability company
June 18,2005
HEBREERE
“ZTRERATNAE

FBRENRRBRAT

158 Dali Foods Group Company Limited -

Place of
operations

e

Mainland China

FEIAH

Mainland China

FEIAH

Mainland China

FEIAH

Mainland China

FEIAH

Mainland China

FEIAH

Mainland China

FEIAH

1. An] B REER (5D

F AN A m R ER (81D

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

BRTEE/
MRS EE

RMB1,450,000,000

ARE

1,450,000,000 7T

RMB90,939,305

ARE

90,939,3057T

RMB209,000,000

ARE

209,000,000 75

RMB100,000,000

ARE

100,000,000 75

RMB209,000,000

ARE

209,000,000 75

RMB190,000,000

ARE
190,000,0007%

Annual Report 2020

Percentage
of equity
attributable

to the Company

Direct  Indirect

HAFME G

BSL
Ei# GiEES

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal
activities

TEEE



Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR MIEE

December 31,2020 —&E _ZEF{ _F=4+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Name of company

AERTE

Chengdu Dali Foods Co,, Ltd.
(BEZEF BRERAT) "

REENRMAERAT

Ma’anshan Dali Foods Co., Ltd.

(BEUENRRBRAT)

BRLEFRMARAT

Shanxi Dali Foods Co., Ltd.

(LFEENRRERAR) "

LEENRRARAR

Yunnan Dali Foods Co., Ltd.

(ErmENRRERAR) "

ERENRRARAT

Xiamen Dali Trading Co., Ltd.

(EFEFBERRAR)

EFIEFBEERAR

Henan Dali Foods Co., Ltd.

(IRENRRERAR) "

ARENRRARAT

Place of
incorporation/
registration,

type of legal entity,
and date of
incorporation/
registration

AL EroEs -
AEREENR
AL E5e A

The PRC Limited
liability company
June 28,2005
HEBREERH
“ZTRESRAZHNE

The PRC Limited
liability company
October 9, 2007
HEBREERH
“ZREF+HANH

The PRC Limited
liability company
November 15, 2007
HEBREERH
“E2tF+—A+AH

The PRC Limited
liability company
March 25, 2008
HEBREERH
“EE)N\F=AZ+HH

The PRC Limited
liability company
April 2,2010
HEBREERH
“Z-BEMAH

The PRC Limited
liability company
July 21,2010
HEERSEAT
“E-EFtAZ+—H

Place of
operations

e

Mainland China

PE it

Mainland China

PE

Mainland China

PE

Mainland China

PE it

Mainland China

FE Rt

Mainland China

PE R

1. An] B REER (5D

F AN A m R ER (81D

Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

Direct

Percentage
of equity
attributable
to the Company
Indirect

HAFME G

BRTEE/
MRS EE

RMB105,000,000

ARE

105,000,000 70

RMB160,000,000

ARE

160,000,000 70

RMB105,000,000

ARE

105,000,000 70

RMB110,000,000

ARE

110,000,000 75

RMB330,000,000

ARE

330,000,00075

RMB150,000,000

ARE
150,000,0007%

ENRmERBRARE

BSL
Ei#

GiEES

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal
activities

TEEE

Investment
property

REME
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

December 31,2020 —&E _ZEF{ _F=4+—H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
(continued)

2] B AR EE R (D)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

F AN A m R ER (81D

Place of
incorporation/
registration, Nominal value Percentage
type of legal entity, of issued of equity
and date of ordinary/ attributable
incorporation/ Place of registered to the Company Principal
Name of company registration operations share capital Direct  Indirect activities
s B - FRRR R
EERBER BEFLE/ BAk
AR sHMERIL EEE H AR = 3k RS EE HiE fE TEEH
Guangdong Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China ~ RMB200,000,000 - 100% |
(BREFBABRAR) liability company
August 5,2010
ERENERARAR HEBREERH FREIR AR
“Z-ZF\BEH 200,000,000 75
Nanchang Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB140,000,000 - 100% Il
(BEEFERBRAR) " liability company
August 2,2010
HEENERBRAT HEBREERH FREIR AR
“Z-ZFN\AZH 140,000,000 7
Jiangsu Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB250,000,000 - 100% |
CIEEFERBRAR) liability company
August 23,2010
IEFENERBRAT HEBREERH FREIR ARE
“2-2F\AZ+=H 250,000,000 75
Hebei Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100% |
(AIbEFERBRAR) liability company
April 22,2011
ALENEmBRAT HEBREERE FREIR AR
“Z—FMAZ+ZH 100,000,000 7
Shaanxi Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB80,000,000 - 100% |
(AR ERERAR) liability company
June 28,2011
REENERBERAE HEBREERE FREIR AR
—Z—FAZH+N\H 80,000,0007C
Shenyang Dali Foods Co., Ltd. The PRC Limited Mainland China RMB200,000,000 - 100% |
(BEFERBRAR) " liability company
May 21,2012
ERENRRERAR HEBREERE FREIR AR
“Z—"HFRAZ+—H 200,000,000 75

Dali Foods Group Company Limited -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR MIEE

December 31,2020 —&E _ZEF{ _F=4+—H

1.

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Name of company

AERTE

Fujian Dali Development Co., Ltd.
(BREFERBRAS) "

BRENZBBRRAE
Fujian Dali Foods
Technology Co., Ltd.

(BRENRRRRERAR)
BRENRANEARAT

Guangxi Dali Foods Co., Ltd.

(EfENRRBRAT)

EREMEmARAT

Guizhou Dali Foods Co., Ltd.

(BEMEFRRABRAR) "

BNENRRBRAT

Notes:

Place of
incorporation/
registration,

type of legal entity,
and date of
incorporation/
registration

AL EroEs -
AEREENR
AL E5e A

The PRC Limited
liability company
August 26,2016
HEBREERH
“Z-RENABZHRH

The PRC Limited
liability company
June 19,2017
HEBREERH
“Z—tFRA+IE

The PRC Limited
liability company
April 15,2018
HEBREERH
- \FmA+AHA

The PRC Limited
liability company
March 6,2018
HEBREERH
“Z—)\F=AH

Manufacture and sale of food and beverage
Manufacture and sale of food, beverage and related packaging
Manufacture and sale of beverage

English translations of names for identification purposes only

Place of
operations

e

Mainland China

PE it

Mainland China

PE

Mainland China

PE

Mainland China

PE it

|
Y

y

1. ZAn] B EEER ()

£ BRIk S A IR E R ()
Nominal value Percentage
of issued of equity
ordinary/ attributable
registered to the Company Principal
share capital Direct  Indirect activities

FATE(ED
BRFLE/ BAk
RS EE HiE fE TEEH
RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Trading
AR 8%
50,000,000 7T
RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Research and
development

AR i
50,000,000 7T
RMB250,000,000 - 100% |
ARE
250,000,000 75
RMB200,000,000 - 100% |
AR
200,000,000 75

BT

S ERHERRKREE

II: SEREERR R RAREE

I1l: S EMHERE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

December 31,2020 —&E _ZEF{ _F=4+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

162

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for equity
investments which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31,
2020. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  theGroup’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited « Annual Report 2020

2.1 #wmadFLde

ZEMHBRROCREESBGHMAT (EH
BEEAE)) AAMNEBYBREE
Al TEBMBREER > SEFMAEEEBM
BREER - BB G ER ((HEBGHE
) K52 R8) ~ EBLR G RIREER
BMFBIMIRERERM - ZFWHBERERD
BEEERABRERR  ERERER
NTEFERI - IRRARBEN > ZF
MBREUARE TARE) 29 FFA
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 HaBiILHE (&)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
of such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The
Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits,
as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for the
current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Amendment to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of a Business

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
(early adopted)

Definition of Material

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(a)

164

Dali Foods Group Company Limited -

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance to all
parties to understand and interpret the standards. The
Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on measurement
and reporting financial performance, new guidance on the
derecognition of assets and liabilities, and updated definitions
and recognition criteria for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies
the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty
in financial reporting. The Conceptual Framework is not a
standard, and none of the concepts contained therein override
the concepts or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)  Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for
an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered a
business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including all
of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs. The
amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods or
services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The Group has applied
the amendments prospectively to transactions or other events
that occurred on or after January 1, 2020. The amendments did
not have significant impact on the financial position and

performance of the Group.

(c)  Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address issues
affecting financial reporting in the period before the replacement
of an existing interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-free
rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide temporary reliefs which
enable hedge accounting to continue during the period of
uncertainty before the introduction of the alternative RFR. In
addition, the amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their hedging
relationships which are directly affected by these uncertainties.
The amendments did not have significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group as the Group does not

have significant interest rate hedging relationships.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

166

(d)

Dali Foods Group Company Limited -

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to apply lease modification accounting for
rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to rent
concessions occurring as a direct consequence of the pandemic
and only if (i) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the same as, or
less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding
the change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before June 30, 2021; and (iii) there
is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the
lease. The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after June 1, 2020 with earlier application permitted and
shall be applied retrospectively.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on January 1, 2020
and elected not to apply lease modification accounting for all
rent concessions granted by the lessors as a result of the
pandemic during the year ended December 31, 2020. The
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information, or both. The
amendments did not have any significant impact on the financial
position and performance of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework?
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform — Phase 2!

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture®
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts>®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current
or Non-current®®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
HKFRSs 2018-2020 lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

° As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5

Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to align
the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

o As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4
was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply
HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before January 1, 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

168

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred
separately rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21
respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the
amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
prospectively from January 1, 2022. Since the amendments apply
prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or after the date of first application, the Group will not be affected by
these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced
with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be updated without
adjusting the carrying amount when accounting for changes in the basis
for determining the contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis immediately
preceding the change. In addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on
transition are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also
provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately
identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as a risk
component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge,
to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component to become
separately identifiable within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the
amendments require an entity to disclose additional information to
enable users of financial statements to understand the effect of interest
rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial instruments and risk
management strategy. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021 and shall be applied
retrospectively, but entities are not required to restate the comparative
information.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited « Annual Report 2020

2.3 CARMH AR 7 A 5

o R (5)
EBMBREENEINNETETUZE
—N\ERBRMGNH B RS SIER 2R
MR B R AR R R EIIER 2 1R
o MBARNEELERE - ZFETT
HERBVHBRSENEIFEFELSEM
BERUETEENBB BN ZHERR
AIMA—IBBIINER - ZBIIMERIRE
HNBEBET RS RAETE (AR
MBRERBEEE) 2 BB 2 RNEBEN
WEERIABENS  HREEEBE
BEEMFNEBEHTEL  AEASE
BYBREENFIFNERELFIZER
BEFERNFEITHAEE (BRMBRS
RRLHEY) —2BE2ARMIFMSHER -
IESh » ZFETBBRAEENWHE AR
AT OGNS - AEERFB T
F—RB—HEMBMERMZFES - BN
ZEETREEEAN B R RSB RAE
ARz ZEBGH > FAIEAEER
BEARRTERZEEINEE

EBMBREENE o - BB G ERE
395k~ BBMBREERE T  HBME
BREENF4RFREBUFREENE 16
SEBVERT R RS RIRAH KA IR
SRERBNEXAEHRREECRTEMH
BEZME - FRRZEIRH—IEE
REITRER L ATHEEEMEER
BEZENREAEZ A EEHETE
RERENERNEXMETAEREE
AiERERMESANXREENEZHER
REBESNRSNENWEERKE L
FRNFHEFFBLAEE o 15> Z
FET AT RE EEE B R E XX E
HAKBEENFEFAERNEE) > MAEE
LEHRRE 4 o B TS HAR BT SE A L RYE IR
HEBIEIIIEaE BV R G R F RN
ERBREETRIE LS RESE TE
Wit ZFEINTABREEHEFER
PR R B A RIS TE 23 B B 17 B 8B 8w
BREBHANZRTE ZREATERN
FEEEMRRE D meE P B 2 HE
EERACERPERRARE RO R
R 24 BB AR AT EIGHR o E5h - ZF
BT ERBRANBRRINER » LIETH
WENEREENFENREENEHNE
ENTRTAREREERBNTE - &
FEIN_T-_—F—RB—HBIZERAA
BFEMBLERN > LREEMER > BEE
BABTILLRER -



Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR MIEE

December 31,2020 —&E _ZEF{ _F=4+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and foreign currencies based on the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate as at December 31, 2020. If the interest rates of
these borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group will
apply this practical expedient upon the modification of these
borrowings when the “economically equivalent” criterion is met and
expects that no significant modification gain or loss will arise as a result
of applying the amendments to these changes.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an inconsistency
between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of
a gain or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or
loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments to
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January
2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities
as current or non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s
right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of
the liability at the end of the reporting period if it complies with those
conditions at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the
liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered
a settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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2.3

170

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements in
which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to
HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be applicable
to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities
that are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2022. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example
13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying HKFRS
16.

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market
must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

172

(continued)
Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level2 — based onvaluation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited « Annual Report 2020
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 T A€ =HBOREREE (4)

(continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment property and non-
current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

or

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
(or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other
entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited « Annual Report 2020
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 T A€ =HBOREREE (4)

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment is classified as
held for sale or when it is part of a disposal group classified as held for
sale, it is not depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 5, as further explained in the accounting policy for “Non-current
assets and disposal groups held for sale”. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:
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Buildings 4.75% 1BF 4.75%
Motor vehicles 19.00%-23.75% RE 19.00%-23.75%
Plant and machinery 9.50%-19.00% BN 9.50%-19.00%
Other equipment 9.50%-31.67% H=%E 9.50%-31.67%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

fEY% ~ BB RREEESE DA ER
FHARAR > RIAEMEENRAERS
BEARREED2E > L&D FHITERER
7o MErBEE JERFHRFEEED
REMBEERBREKRBFE WER) -

FH 2020 175



Notes to the Financial Statements
SRR MIEE

December 31,2020 —&E _ZEF{ _F=4+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment property

Investment property is interests in land and buildings (including the
leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would otherwise
meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such property is
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the Group chooses the cost model to measure all of
its investment property.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of investment properties to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose
are as follows:

Investment property 2.00%-4.75%
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment

property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of
the retirement or disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 T A€ =HBOREREE (4)

(continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software

Purchased software is stated at cost less any impairment losses and
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of five
years.

Pipeline rights

Purchased pipeline rights represent the payments made for the use
right of natural gas and water pipelines, which are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of five years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

178

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

(b)

Dali Foods Group Company Limited -

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Leasehold land 50 years
Plant and property 3years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life
of the asset.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases (that is those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or when
there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an operating
lease or a finance lease.
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2.4

180

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 T A€ =HBOREREE (4)

(continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised
cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how
it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
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generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace. BEo

Subsequent measurement Higst=

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their SHEENERSEERANESKE 2B
classification as follows: mnr

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

182

(continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

Afinancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part
of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an
asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if,
and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset,
the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 T A€ =HBOREREE (4)

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“‘ECLS”)
for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs
are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in

ol R

REEMIL LA FEFF ABEF AR
BEHGIREIEMEERE ((FBRES
iR BE - REIEEBRDENRES

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group NEEEM S 4IRS R 2 B E B FEHE URERY
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original Wi EEERFENEEF RIS

effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows

BEMEZENERBET ° %Eﬂﬂfﬁ/i\iﬁ%

from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are BeEEHERBFRBREENERFIes
integral to the contractual terms. NEMEEFAREHFIIFHIRERE ©
General approach —HgE

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there TR SO MEMSERFES o ST e

has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the
timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

184

(continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
and financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract
assets which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stagel — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do not contain a
significant financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 T A€ =HBOREREE (4)

(continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings, or payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

186

(continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined on the weighted average method and, in the case of work
in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are
not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that
a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit or
loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
pUrposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

188

(continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the
amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be
entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest method. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the customer and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

190

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when
control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on receipt

of the goods.

Some contracts for the sale of goods provide customers with rights of
return and volume rebates. The rights of return and volume rebates give
rise to variable consideration.

(1)

Rights of return

For contracts which provide a customer with a right to return the
goods within a specified period, the expected value method is
used to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration to
which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in HKFRS 15
on constraining estimates of variable consideration are applied in
order to determine the amount of variable consideration that can
be included in the transaction price. For goods that are expected
to be returned, instead of revenue, a refund liability is recognised.
A right-of-return asset (and the corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) is also recognised for the right to recover products from
a customer.

Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided to certain
customers once the quantity of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer. To estimate the
variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the most
likely amount method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for contracts with more
than one volume threshold. The selected method that best
predicts the amount of variable consideration is primarily driven
by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract.
The requirements on constraining estimates of variable
consideration are applied and a refund liability for the expected
future rebates is recognised.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 T A€ =HBOREREE (4)

(continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or
services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised
for the earned consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are
subject to impairment assessment, details of which are included in the
accounting policies for impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group
transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Contract costs

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil a
contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be
used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with
the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset
relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

192

(continued)
Right-of-return assets

A right-of-return asset is recognised for the right to recover the goods
expected to be returned by customers. The asset is measured at the
former carrying amount of the goods to be returned, less any expected
costs to recover the goods and any potential decreases in the value of
the returned goods. The Group updates the measurement of the asset
for any revisions to the expected level of returns and any additional
decreases in the value of the returned goods.

Refund liabilities

Arefund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of
the consideration received (or receivable) from a customer and is
measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to
return to the customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the
end of each reporting period.

Employee benefits
Pension scheme

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central pension scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2.4 T A€ =HBOREREE (4)

(continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by
the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of
the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change at fair value of the
item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date
of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance, the Group determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

194

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of the Company and certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into RMB at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any
fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
arising on acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management
has made the following judgements, apart from those involving
estimations, which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Withholding tax arising from the distribution of dividends

The Group’s determination, as to whether to accrue withholding taxes
arising from the distributions of dividends by certain subsidiaries
according to the relevant tax rules enacted in the jurisdictions, is subject
to judgement on the plan of the distribution of dividends.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables is
disclosed in note 19 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease,
and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the
funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation when
no observable rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not
enter into financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases
are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such
as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).

Provision for slow-moving inventories and net realisable value of
inventories

Management reviews the ageing analysis of inventories of the Group at
the end of each reporting period, and makes a provision for slow-
moving inventory items. Management estimates the net realisable value
for such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions. A write-down of inventories to net realisable
value is made based on the estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the write-down amount requires
management’s estimates and judgement. Where the actual outcome or
expectation in the future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of inventories and the write-
down/write-back of inventories in the period in which such estimate has
been changed.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and has four reportable operating segments as
follows:

RER ok AR
AERER FEBRHELNDEBE
T AALEFT2MEEHE BT :

(a)  Manufacture and sale of household consumption; (a) HSEMHEREHE;

(b)  Manufacture and sale of snacks; (b)) HEEMHEEREESR;

(c)  Manufacture and sale of ready-to-drink beverage; and (0 HEMHERMEE ; &

(d)  Others. (d Hftho

The “Others” segment comprises the sale of packing materials in TEM pEBEHEERRNGNEER

relation to the production of food and beverage, and rental income
from the investment property’s prime office space.

Management monitors the gross profit of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. No analysis of the
Group’s assets and liabilities by operating segment is disclosed as it is
not regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker for review.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

B =ar—Ig

4. RBBEIIRER (5)

Ready-
Household to-drink
consumption Snacks beverage Others Total
Year ended HE-Z-TH REHE FHER BPEREREL Hith Wt
December 31,2020 +ZA=+—HLEE RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR¥ETR AR®TR ARBTR ARETR
Segment revenue (note 5) AEpUkES (Mt s)
Sales to external customers HETINBRE 2,963,312 10,213,400 6,175,648 1,594,901 20,947,261
Other revenue Hthes - - - 14,447 14,447
20,961,708
Segment gross profit HEWEF 1,391,215 3,852,449 2,955,755 41,477 8,240,896
Reconciliation: R
Other income and gains HAA KU 1,036,617
Selling and distribution expenses $HE KA IHF (3,555,237)
Administrative expenses THEX (606,092)
Finance costs BB RS (9,574)
Profit before tax IR AR 5,106,610
Other segment information ~ Hfth3 2 &
Depreciation and amortisation 378 i 146,052 163,587 344,710 9,468 663,817
Capital expenditure * BARRE
Allocated BoHE 282,527 234,731 191,966 1,370 710,594
Unallocated RO 47,948
758,542
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December 31,2020 —E _&EF+_F=+—H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) KR rkER ()
Ready-
Household to-drink
consumption Snacks beverage Others Total
Year ended HE_Z—NE RXEHE HREE R G Hth W5t
December 31,2019 +TA=t+—HIEE RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARE®TRT ARETR ARETT ARETET
Segment revenue (note 5) HEpUkES (MisEs)
Sales to external customers HETIMEER 2656546 10,153,891 7,141,644 1412118 21,364,199
Other revenue Hilhz - - - 11,049 11,049
21,375,248
Segment gross profit SEEF 1,315,810 3,794,956 3,335,513 45,184 8,491,463
Reconciliation: HER
Other income and gains Hw ARz 886,733
Selling and distribution expenses  $5& R A& 4R (3,677,450)
Administrative expenses THREX (553,032)
Finance costs AE A (1,413)
Profit before tax BRAQETER 5,146,301
Other segment information ~ E{t13EpEE
Depreciation and amortisation 788 Kr#84 118,011 167,011 365,047 9,719 659,788
Capital expenditure * EAMZ"
Allocated B7Ee 588,257 172,793 231,620 2,688 995,358
Unallocated Fnhe 45,695
1,041,053

Geographical information

Since over 90% of the Group’s revenue and operating profit were
generated from the sale of food and beverage in Mainland China and
over 90% of the Group’s non-current assets were located in Mainland
China, no geographical information is presented in accordance with
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments.

Information about a major customer

Since no revenue from sales to a single customer of the Group
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total revenue, no major
customer information is presented in accordance with HKFRS 8
Operating Segments.

Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets, investment property and intangible assets.
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA ~ HAtA B i
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WABDIFNT :
(a) Revenue: (a) WA :
2020 2019
—ETF —E—hE&F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEASHBIWZ 20,947,261 21,364,199
Revenue from other sources K EHE AR a5
Gross rental income from investment KEYELKSHENHES
property operating leases U A4ERE 14,447 11,049
20,961,708 21,375,248
Revenue from contracts with customers FEEESHHIYEE
(i)  Disaggregated revenue information (i)  SHEWKZFER
For the year ended December 31,2020 BE_ZEHF+_RB=+—
BLEFE
Ready-
Household to-drink
Segments H% consumption Snacks beverage Others Total

XERE  fHRR  AEERE it ait
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
ARBTR ARRTR AREFR ARRTT ARETR

Type of goods anEs
Sale of goods HEEY 2,963,312 10,213,400 6,175,648 1,504,901 20,947,261

Timing of revenue recognition YRS BERY
Goods transferred at a pointintime R E—Fs IR 2,963,312 10,213,400 6,175,648 1,594,901 20,947,261

200 Dali Foods Group Company Limited « Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements
ISR MIEE

December 31,2020 —&E _ZEF{ _F=4+—H

S.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA ~ HAWA e las (48)
(continued)
(a) Revenue: (continued) (a) WA @ (&
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) REERESHYMURE (8)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) SDERZEN(E)
For the year ended December 31, 2019 BE_Z-—NF+_RB=+—
HIEFE
Ready-
Household to-drink
Segments o consumption Snacks beverage Others Total
REHE HEE® SMERERKL =G Mt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETR ARBT:
Type of goods anEs
Sale of goods HEEY 26%546 10153891 7,141,644 142118 21364199
Timing of revenue recognition Wy EsHESARSRY
Goods transferred at a pointintime A E—FE 2 EEEY) 2,656,546 10,153,891 7,141,644 1,412,118 21,364,199
(ii)  Performance obligations (i)  BHIEE
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is ERAEBBAYSINE R
summarised below: Wl
Sale of goods HEGY
The performance obligation is satisfied upon receipt of the BHSENREWE REERE
food and beverage and payment is generally due within 30 BIEER 0 M —RBERNs
to 90 days from receipt, except for new customers, where U1 30 E 90 RN B HA » MR AP
payment in advance is normally required. Some contracts — e ERIEEIEFITE o
provide customers with a right of return and volume WASHREELEETFEH®
rebates which give rise to variable consideration subject to RGN A REIE S R IRy
constraint. ERENEH (LIFRE5I5A
BHE)
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WoA ~ HAm A Belieas (48)
(continued)
(b) Other income and gains (b) HAU A B s
2020 2019
—ECTH —ENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETTT
Bank interest income (note 6) IR1TFI B (M5E6) 544,150 457,750
Government grants” BT Es 429,120 342,604
Income from sales of scrap, net HEEANMNIRAFEE 62,243 69,055
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE - MERZEER
plant and equipment AU 605 371
Foreign exchange differences, net EREREFER - 16,709
Others H 499 244
1,036,617 886,733

I3 E G R NI = NSITEE |
BT R UR B89 S 3R R R
REEMNSEHE - ZFHAhTE
REMFGHENRER -

Government grants include various subsidies received by the Company’s
subsidiaries from relevant government bodies in connection with enterprise
expansion and efficiency enhancement. There are no unfulfilled conditions
or contingencies related to these grants.
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

6.

The Group’s profit before tax from continuing operations is arrived after

BT i A

AEBFEICE EBORMATE T T &0

charging/(crediting): B2 (Gt A) U FEIERIER :
2020 2019
—E-EHE ) =S
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AREBTT
(a) Cost of sales: (a) SHEERRZS -
Cost of inventories sold GFEHERKN 10,694,963 10,905,556
(b) Employee benefit expenses (including (b) (EEEFIEX (BIFEERIT
directors’ and chief executive’s ta L EREN (fdzES))
remuneration (note 8)):
Wages and salaries TEKRFHFE 2,067,971 1,997,316
Pension scheme contributions, BRAEEEIHZT s e R
social welfare and other welfare K EAAEF 235,880 236,275
2,303,851 2,233,591
(c) Other items: (c) EfthIER :
Depreciation of property, Mz~ BB RsEITE

plant and equipment (note 13) (Ff¥5E 13) 737,810 699,786
Depreciation of investment property BREYEITE (W5t 14)

(note 14) 9,468 9,719
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EAEEEITE (MsE150)

(note 15(a)) 32,824 31,244
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 16) I E EEY (M5 16) 823 1,146
Promotion and advertising expenses HENMESHS 1,993,466 2,122,478
Auditor’s remuneration ZENEMEN 4,500 4500
Research and development costs FREE R A 65,352 62,030
Foreign exchange differences, net bE o E R FEE 11,412 (16,709)
Bank interest income (note 5) IRITH E WA (FsEs) (544,150) (457,750)
Net loss on disposal of items of property, HEYZE - MERREEE

plant and equipment RIE51E3ER 2,180 2,449
Government grants (note 5(b)) B RE (M 5E5(b) (429,120) (342,604)
Impairment of trade and bills receivables B2 R ERRERE

(note 19) (FI5E 19) 497 1,434
Impairment of inventories FERE 295 1,268
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204

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued) 6.

The depreciation of property, plant and equipment, investment
property and right-of-use assets, and amortisation of right-of-use assets
and intangible assets are included in “administrative expenses”, “selling
and distribution expenses” and “cost of sales” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Research and development costs are included in “administrative
expenses” and “cost of sales” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

FINANCE COSTS 7.

An analysis of finance costs from continuing operations is as follows:

BRAsE Al Al (48)

W BERRE  REVEREHES
B UREAEEEREN EERH
SAAGHAR REMGS KE RN (TH
BIsZ) ~ TENEE R EHREST) R TSN E A o

e A A SRS R EMG TR
B9 TTERRES ) K TSHEE R o

il 2 PR
FECE RS NRERAD RN T :

2020 2019

—ECTH =ty =S

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥Fx ANEREF T

Interest on bank loans IRITEFFE 9,053 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEaENE 521 1,413
9,574 1,413
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8.
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies

HH R AT BON B

REETRA - BB REEEI383(1)()
b~ (R (IERRE (REEEHmER)
RIS 2B EEF ERSITTHA SN

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as T
follows:
2020 2019
—E-THF “EBENE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%STT ARETT
Fees W 572 564
Other emoluments: HnphE -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYEN 8,685 8,846
Pension scheme contributions and RASTEIEA B EF
social welfare 21 16
8,706 8,862
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) T ZIEPUTHES

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the

FANEBNBIFATERNRESN

year were as follows: T
2020 2019
b el 32 —T-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETT
Mr. Cheng Hanchuan 1285k 143 141
Mr. Liu Xiaobin 2/ R S 143 141
Dr. Lin Zhijun MEEE LT 286 282
572 564

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2019: Nil).

FRNEEMEIB I IFITE RN

T(CE-NE T o

EMNRmERBRRAR -
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8.

206

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8.

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

H3 R A TBON B (48)

(b) HUTHEHFRIFHUTEHESF

Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances contributions
and benefits and social
Fees in kind welfare Total
e RRR BEEIHR
ik BMERN Rt @EF &zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARBTT ARETT
2020 o 23
Executive directors: HITES !
Mr. Xu Shihui (Chief executive) — EFttHiB4c 4
(RBTBAB) - 2,082 - 2,082
Ms. Xu Yangyang EiZ] 2 - 2,368 2,376
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang HERLs - 3,847 3,855
Ms. Huang Jiaying (appointed =S+
as an executive director on (RZBE-_—F_H
February 8,2021) NBEZH) - 388 5 393
- 8,685 21 8,706
Non-executive directors: EHTES ©
Ms. Xu Biying FEELL - - - -
Ms. Hu Xiaoling Eil=cg . - - - -
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 8. HHRIRmITBN BHi (4
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (b) HUTEFEMIEPUTEDS (41
(continued)
Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances contributions
and benefits and social
Fees inkind welfare Total
e B2k RAKEFEIER
ik BYEr hZan=g =l a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBT ARBTT ARBTT

2019 “BNF
Executive directors: BTEE .
Mr. Xu Shihui (Chief executive) ~ FFit¥BAE4E
(BRBITHAR) - 2,150 - 2,150
Ms. Xu Yangyang FRBLT - 2,430 8 2,438
Mr. Zhuang Weigiang HERTE - 4,266 8 4274
- 8,846 16 8,862
Non-executive directors: FHTES:
Ms. Xu Biying BB+ - - - -
Ms. Hu Xiaoling Eil=eg . - - - -
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or ERNTEESEENEREERET
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. (SRR By 22 HE o
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

hA R E B

The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors
(2019: three directors), details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining two

(2019: two) highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief

FROEESHNERRE=2EF(CT
—NE ZREF) > WENFFEHR
EXHizEs « HEfME (ZE—NEF : W)
RemilEELIFARTEFTHERSITH
AB » EFERFMEFEDT

executive of the Company are as follows:

2020 2019

—ECZF “Z2—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TT ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e N R EYIEF 4,449 4,734
Pension scheme contributions BARS RN EEF

and social welfare 15 17

4,464 4,751

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as

follows:

HMETIREANNIFEERIFRSITH
ABNESFMESHAZUNT :

Number of employees
ES AZ

2020 2019
—ECTHF “E-NF
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 B TTZE 1,500,000 B 7T - -
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000 1,500,001 A 7T 2 2,000,000 7B 7T 1 1
HKD2,000,001 to HKD2,500,000 2,000,001 875 E 2,500,000 B 7T - -
HKD2,500,001 to HKD3,000,000 2,500,001 77T 3,000,000 B 7T - -
HKD3,000,001 to HKD3,500,000 3,000,001 78752 3,500,000 B 7T 1 1
2 2
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10.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is a qualifying
entity under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The first
HKS$2,000,000 (2019: HKS2,000,000) of assessable profits of this
subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2019: 8.25%) and the remaining
assessable profits are taxed at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%).

Under the Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
the Company’s subsidiaries that are established in the PRC are subject
to income tax at a base rate of 25%, except for some subsidiaries which
are subject to income tax at a preferential rate of 15% in different
periods between January 1,2014 and December 31, 2030.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from January 1, 2008 and applies to earnings after December
31, 2007. In addition, under the Arrangement between Mainland China
and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of
Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to
Taxes on Income and its relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax
resident will be liable for withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend
income derived from the PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is the
“beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of the
PRC company. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. Deferred tax
liabilities have been provided for based on the expected dividends to be
distributed from these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future in respect
of the profits generated since January 1, 2008.

10.

IR

AEE AR AR E R A AT EFRERCE
MBI EREEERRER S AARENE
R VAR ST ©

REREREREBMERE EHERIKRR
Bl *EEBEHNENRSEERER
HERBIBFTISH ©

EBFNERNERERNTEBELENGTE
BIENIR16.5% (ZEBE—F  165%) B
MEMEHEE > HREBEMNESRMARS > &
EE—EHBARABEREBERI o Z
Mt B8 /A B 82,000,000 7T (ZE— N F .
2,000,000 7 7T) FE R R i 1 B0 Z 25 8.25%
(ZEB—NF 1 825%) » Bf FERIREFEY
$16.5% (ZB—F © 16.5%) 3 o

R EARLFE (THE ) Sk
EARE R I B AR B B A B ZB3Z 25% 1Y
TR BANFREIR I DB A BRI
N_E—NFE—B—HEZIZ=Z2F+Z
B=+—HHNTEBEZ15%HNEBRE
BARFTISHA o

RIB(RBEIRERSRZE) > AN ERE
REETRRANRPEKRERILZSINER
ERRBEW10%FEINR - BRAKRES -
TENF-A-AEBEXN TEARCT
TtE+RB=+—HEBMREEZEF -
SN - R (Rt N E B TR E RIS
FrigEt e S ERMMB L MR ZHE) &
HAERZNE  M— R EREENTER
APERBN IEmERE A LFEH25%
L ERE AIRRERRTERETE
BV BT B 5% I TG TR0 7R ©
HAEEMES > BARER% - EERIE
BEEREBEZENEREAN _EEZNE—
A—BUBELEREN R A RREHR DI
BOTRHARR BEHR A o
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10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. Fifsae (1)
The major components of income tax expense are as follows: Fri8RmX M EEHMILHUWT :
2020 2019
- k2. 2 —T-hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBFT ARETT

Current tax: BPEATRIE !

Income tax in PRC for the year FERRR R HPFER 1,311,084 1,193,496
Deferred tax (note 25) IRIEFRTE (FIEE 25) (53,127) 112,234
Total tax charge for the year FRRIES H 4858 1,257,957 1,305,730
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the RARB R RS BB A BT =) A
statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority & f& AR PR AL s R BY A E R FE B R 1 FE
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax X AR ERRENRIBRX EIRNT -

rate is as follows:

2020 2019
—ETF “ENF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AEBETIT
Profit before tax FRIQET A 5,106,610 5,146,301
Tax at the statutory tax rate (25%) R TE MR AR IE (25%) 1,276,653 1,286,575
Effect of tax relief enjoyed by ETHEBABZERERIE
certain subsidiaries N2 (120,029) (125,540)
Effect of tax concessions and exemption MIBESE RN E (4,749) -
Tax losses utilised from previous periods BB EARI IR B 18 (4,103) -
Income not subject to tax* BRMTRAIIA (9,591) (16,023)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR HREE 1,282 1,666
Unrecognised tax losses RIESIINIEEE 11,717 12,028
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on REENFEHEAE]
the distributable profits of A 53R 5% TR
the Group’s PRC subsidiaries 2 106,777 147,024
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate BAEEBRREHIRNNIRIEL H 1,257,957 1,305,730
Income not subject to tax mainly includes the profit from the primary agricultural ) BRMBHBATERREREDEREZRE
product processing, which is exempted from income tax in accordance with the PRC PRSIRBYZR B A AR AR A M IN T AYEF)
tax law.
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11. DIVIDENDS 11. &
2020 2019
ZETHE —ZE—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AERBFT ARETT
Interim — HKD0.075 (2019: HKDO.168) FHE — SR IERR0.075 87T
per ordinary share (ZZE—hF 1 0168787T) 902,744 2,076,233
Proposed final — HKD0.085 (2019: HKD0.140)  #Ez&AH — EIRE@AZ0.085 87T
per ordinary share (Z]—N4E : 0.140 BT) 986,228 1,736,732
1,888,972 3,812,965
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the BRI FREREREBFEAB K
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. R EERERE fﬁjﬁ‘@tﬁt/ﬁﬁ » J3EJfE
= o
12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. Eﬁ’&ﬁl%ﬁiﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁ N AL 5
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT HE ]
The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based on the SREABN BN RES AR ZERE
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, mFHAANBEFRBENRFREET
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 13,694,117,500 13,694,117,500 A% ( - F - h F:
(2019: 13,694,117,500) in issue during the year. 13,694,117,5008%) E1BARBIINFEF I o
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during FEERBE_ZEZER-_T-NE
the years ended December 31,2020 and 2019. +Z-A=+—H iﬁfiﬁ#ﬁﬁ@fﬁﬁﬁa/
EBHBEBHITZER o
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on: SREAREERFNELENR TR !
2020 2019
k-t 2 3 —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBF ARETT

Earnings 2%
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BABEBERERITBA
holders of the parent FE(G A 3,848,653 3,840,571
Number of shares
B EE
2020 2019
—TEH —ENEF
Shares ;440 > 8
Weighted average number of ordinary FREETEBERY
shares in issue during the year INHEFEI98s 13,694,117,500  13,694,117,500
Earnings per share FREF]
Basic and diluted (RMB) HEAR#E (NRET) 0.28 0.28
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

212

13. W3 ~ Wi et

Motor  Plantand Other Construction
Buildings vehicles machinery equipment in progress Total
tERE
B¥F _E kigss  HtiRfs HEEIR “act
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
December 31, 2020 AZEZEE
+ZA=+—-H
At January 1, 2020: NZEZZF-F—H.
Cost A 1,638,759 119,645 6,668,378 757,316 598,160 9,782,258
Accumulated depreciation BT EREE
and impairment (597,403)  (78,535) (3,564,579)  (400,235) - (4,640,752)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,041,356 41,110 3,103,799 357,081 598,160 5,141,506
At January 1, 2020, N ZZZZF-F—-H>
net of accumulated NBESHTERRE
depreciation and impairment 1,041,356 41,110 3,103,799 357,081 598,160 5,141,506
Additions HE 20,233 9,526 185,526 48,054 450,463 713,802
Depreciation provided during ~ FAFHERITE
the year (note 6) (D) (80,238) (13,478)  (545,678) (98,416) - (731,810)
Transfers =t 290,406 525 389,025 90,044  (770,000) -
Disposals HE - (549) (5,702) (237) - (6,488)
At December 31, 2020, _B_ %
net of accumulated +-A=+-H>
depreciation and impairment MR RFINERBE 1,271,757 37,134 3,126,970 396,526 278,623 5,111,010
At December 31, 2020: QS
+ZA=+-8:
Cost A 1,949,398 129,147 7,237,227 895,177 278,623 10,489,572
Accumulated depreciation KEHTER
and Impairment /JEME (677,641) (92,013) (43110,257) (498,651) - (5’378,562)
Net carrying amount IRESE 1,271,757 37,134 3,126,970 396,526 278,623 5,111,010
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As at December 31, 2020, the Group had yet to obtain property
ownership certificates for certain buildings with an aggregate net book
value of RMB182,408,000 (2019: RMB70,903,000). Notwithstanding this,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group owned the beneficial
titles to these buildings at the end of the reporting period. As at
December 31, 2020, nil of the group’s property, plant and equipment

was pledged.

R —=—=

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)  13. M2 ~ J§i5 Bt (49)
Motor Plant and Other  Construction
Buildings vehicles  machinery ~ equipment in progress Total
FERE
BF R Ki%e  Hitzf ERIR )
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETRT
December 31,2019 RZB—h&
+=B=+-A
At January 1,2019; ZZ-NF—-A—H:
Cost A 1,668,903 98457 5964,176 622,855 497,890 885,281
Accumulated depreciation REMERAE
and impairment (521,805) (66,063) (3,044,053) (309,045) - (3,940,966)
Net carrying amount IREFE 1,147,098 32,394 2,920,123 313,810 497,890 4911,315
At January 1, 2019, RZB2—-NE—F—H>
net of accumulated MRRHTERRE
depreciation and impairment 1,147,098 32,394 2,920,123 313,810 497,890 4911,315
Additions hE 8,776 21,351 317,399 88,563 614,039 1,050,128
Depreciation provided during ~ EREHRAIITE
the year (note 6) (Hizk6) (75,598) (12,472) (520,526) (91,190) - (699,786)
Transfers i 75,074 - 392,295 45905 (513,274) -
Transfers to investment property SR E R B (113,994) - - - - (113,994)
Disposals HE - (163) (5492) M (495) (6,157)
At December 31, 2019, RZE-NE
net of accumulated +ZA=+—8"
depreciationand impairment MR REHTERIRE 1,041,356 41110 3,103,799 357,081 508,160 541,506
At December 31, 2019; AZE-NE
+-B=1+—8”:
Cost A 1,638,759 119,645 6,668,378 757,316 598,160 9,182,258
Accumulated depreciation FEINER
and impairment BfE (597,403) (18535)  (3,564,579) (400,235) - (4640,752)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,041,356 41,110 3,103,799 357,081 598,160 5,141,506
A — Tz

“ERE+"RA=+—H x&EEH

AFLERERE S T A REE 182,408,000 7 (=
Z—HE . AR¥70,903,0007T) HUE Fig

FEISY XA #E

o BEWLL > EHEFT

AAEERNRSHAREAZSETNED

Ei R -

ENRmERBRARE

EEREF_B=+—H =&
EEY BIITYE « BB KR

2 f o
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14.

214

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 14. Be&EVE
2020 2019
—ECTF —E—hE&E
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥ETTT
At January 1 w—A—H
Cost %N 269,259 47,225
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  ReHTEREE (35,497) (4,833)
Net carrying amount REEE 233,762 42,392
At January 1, net of accumulated R—B—H > HMREFINER
depreciation and impairment HE 233,762 42,392
Addition e 1,370 2,688
Transfer from owner-occupied property HERERYE
(note 13) (BF5E 13) - 113,994
Transfer from right-of-use assets (note 15(a)) B FEAESE E (M5 15(a)) - 84,407
Depreciation provided during the year (note 6) FERFHEAITE (HizE6) (9,468) (9,719)
At December 31, net of accumulated W+—-_BA=+—H">
depreciation and impairment NBRRFHTE A 225,664 233,762
At December 31: R+ZBE=4+—H":
Cost %N 270,629 269,259
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  ReHTEREE (44,965) (35,497)
Net carrying amount REEE 225,664 233,762

The Group’s investment property consists of one investment property in
Mainland China. The directors of the Company have determined that
the investment property consists of one class of asset, which is
commercial, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of the
property. The Company applies the cost model. At December 31, 2020,
the Group’s investment property was not pledged.

The investment property is leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 15 to the
financial statements.

REENLEYECIE—BURFEAM
HEREYE - REWENME BB RE
B> AADEEETREMEDE—EE
EoEEe RATERMAER - R
ZTRFEF"HA=Z+—H ZEENKRE
YN EER o

REYERBEEHEHATFE=7 H
IR BE I M B ARMEE LS o
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15. LEASES 15. HH
The Group as a lessee AR EE 2 RN

The Group has lease contracts for various items of plant, property and
land used in its operations. Lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leased land from the owners with lease periods of 50 years,
and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of these land
leases. Leases of plant and property generally have lease terms of 3
years. Other leases generally have lease terms of 12 months or less and/
or are individually of low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There are
several lease contracts that include extension and termination options
and variable lease payments, which are further discussed below.

AEEMEEBIBANSERE « WERK
ITHIBEBTABRESN - AEEROES
AURBETRAAS0 ERFAE LA — BN
= BERBEZS T MENGRR S 1a8
B TTIR » BB R EBAON—RIER
A3F - HAEAN—REMAS2E/N
MR/ S ERMmESBEEE - &R
BEASRERNEERDEEESE -
ZIEMEEGNEEIERMEIEEEEL R
FEMEEMNR BN T XE—F 5 o

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) fMEREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the KEBNEANEAEEERAER
movements during the year are as follows: BEWTE -
Prepaid
land lease Plant and
payments property Total
AT
HEMIH® BB RME 4t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
As at January 1,2019 N ZE—NF—HA—H 557,422 36,022 593,444
Additions nNE 130,879 - 130,879
Transfer to investment ERELEYE
properties (note 14) (B 5E 14) (84,407) - (84,407)
Depreciation charge EMX (13,428) (17,816) (31,244)
Exchange adjustment PE R R - 74 74
As at December 31,2019 and A TE—NE
January 1, 2020 +ZBA=+—H8kK
B2 F—-H—H 590,466 18,280 608,746
Additions wE 65,818 49,755 115,573
Depreciation charge IERX (15,053) (17,771) (32,824)
Exchange adjustment PE R = (70) (70)
As at December 31, 2020 AT TTF
i = +—H 641,231 50,194 691,425
The carrying amount of the Group’s prepaid lease payments ANEBWFEMHEESHEREIETE
represents the carrying amount of land use rights in Mainland Mt E AR EE c N _E
China. The Group was in process of applying for the land BFE+"_B=+—H» "EEIEFRFE
certificates with a carrying amount of RMB16,118,000 as at IREEA AR 16,118,000 7889 L 3
December 31, 2020 (The Group was in process of applying for the FBRH(KERBN _ZE—HLE+_A
land certificates with a carrying amount of RMB16,276,000 as at = +—HEHFEEREA ARK
December 31, 2019). 16,276,000 ToRY L 3E5ER) o
ENRmERERAQR . £, 2020 215
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15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

216

(b)

(c)

Lease liabilities

15. FHHE &
AR EEAAMAN (8

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

(b)

HERRA
FREESERAERESHUT

2020 2019

—ECZTHE —E—hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

UN:- 5 ARETT

Carrying amount at January 1 R—HA—HWIREE 19,763 37,985

New leases MEE 49,755 -
Accretion of interest recognised during FAERDREFATE

the year 521 1,413

Payments NN (19,698) (19,709)

Exchange adjustment PE R A% (119) 74

Carrying amount at December 31 R+ZA=+—HHKEE 50,222 19,763

Analysed into: aiIr=

Current portion mENER 17,844 19,289

Non-current portion JERBNEL 32,378 474

50,222 19,763

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 35 to

the financial statements.

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are

as follows:

HEaENIIEAE 2 MIFER 7R
EERE

FAAER BRI T

2020 2019

—ETE —EB—hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Interest on lease liabilities HESEBFNE 521 1,413
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets  ff FBEE EITERM 32,824 31,244
Total amount recognised in profitorloss 1B mEERIVARE 2R 33,345 32,657

Dali Foods Group Company Limited

Annual Report 2020
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15. LEASES (continued) 15.

The Group as a lessor

FHE (5

ARLEEEA BN
SEBEBEHKREYE (5T 14) » BIEL
EHEZHTHEAMN —IBEmEYE
HEREEERBLZMRIFEE MR
BERBRTNH SR R EH EHREEHEE
B AEEREREDBNHESIWABA
R 14447000 (ZE—HE: AR
11,049,000 7T) » FEIEEH P IAFEIRMIZES ©

The Group leases its investment property (note 14) consisting of one
commercial property in Mainland China under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB14,447,000 (2019:
RMB11,049,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the financial
statements.

N_EBE_EFE+"_A=+—H  xEER
ARERAAER R B E AR P 5T I BT o) BEH A

At December 31, 2020, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by
the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with

its tenants are as follows:

S ERKBIRIREE MR T ¢

2020 2019

b el 5 3 —T-NE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AR¥ETTT

Within one year —FRN 10,412 15,406
After one year but within two years —FBEMERN 6,370 7,111
After two years but within three years MEBE=FRN 2,840 3,864
After three years but within four years = FBENFERN 163 3,239
After four years but within five years MEBERFRN - 230
19,785 29,850

EMNRmERBRRAR -
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16.

218

F+_H=+—H

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. fEIE &R
Software Pipeline rights Total
B EiERER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETIT ARET T
December 31, 2020 —E-=F+-HA=+—H
Cost at January 1, 2020, net of N _E-EE
accumulated amortisation —B—HB
bR R TN 814 1,180 1,994
Amortisation provided during FREHER
the year (note 6) GELD) (372) (451) (823)
At December 31, 2020 NTETTF
+—-BA=+—H 442 729 1,171
At December 31, 2020: S
+-B=+—8":
Cost BAs 4,922 4,670 9,592
Accumulated amortisation RETHEH (4,480) (3,941) (8,421)
Net carrying amount RMEFE 442 729 1,171
December 31,2019 —E-h&E+=“BA=+—H
At January 1,2019: N ZE-NF—A—H:
Cost D7 5,023 4,406 9,429
Accumulated amortisation RETHEH (3,798) (2,756) (6,554)
Net carrying amount EREVRE 1,225 1,650 2,875
Cost at January 1, 2019, net of A TENEF
accumulated amortisation —B—HIE
OBk R 5tk 1,225 1,650 2,875
Additions during the year FRRE - 265 265
Amortisation provided during FRSHER
the year (note 6) (39 (411) (735) (1,146)
At December 31,2019 RIZZE—hE
+-_B=+—H 814 1,180 1,994
At December 31,2019 and NE—NFE
at January 1, 2020 +ZA=4+—HK
“ETEF—H—H:
Cost [ 4,922 4,670 9,592
Accumulated amortisation RETHEH (4,108) (3,490) (7,598)
Net carrying amount RMEFE 814 1,180 1,994

Dali Foods Group Company Limited -
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17.

18.

PREPAYMENTS 17. FAGRIE
2020 2019
—E°FF —ENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETIT
Prepayments for the purchase of B TR ENTENRRIE
land use rights - 34,920
Prepayments for the purchase of property, BEYE - MERRENENIE
plant and equipment 87,184 61,125
87,184 96,045

Prepayments are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. None of the

RURERSERIFRAE - LHEES

above assets is either past due or impaired. JEEHASRI(E ©
INVENTORIES 18. 715
2020 2019
—TEHF —E—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥ETTT
Raw materials and packaging materials R B EE A et 846,394 919,673
Finished goods [ 228,210 342,682
1,074,604 1,262,355
ENRmERERRAR . F£#W2020 219
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. B 5 MEIGER Ve e HE i 22

2020 2019

—TTEHF “E-NE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR#Fx ARETFIT

Trade receivables B SRS 904,950 740,189
Bills receivable eI = 2,500 4,079
Impairment BB (7,891) (7,394)
899,559 736,874

ERERTTF 30 90 K o FREREHAR » 28
ZEHHRIIGEEEBEREHNEZEW

The credit periods range from 30 to 90 days. The ageing analysis of trade
and bills receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

220

invoice date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

AR R SRR HBRES AT A0 T

2020 2019

—ECEF “E-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT

Within 90 days 90 XA 841,332 670,371
91 to 180 days 91 F 180K 48,399 47,196
181 to 365 days 181 365Kk 9,828 19,307
899,559 736,874

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade and bills
receivables are as follows:

B S RITRIRERERE S BRREEIHI

=

2020 2019

—ECTHE “ENF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET ARETT

At beginning of year F4 7,394 5,960
Impairment losses (note 6(c)) RERE (M5 6(c) 497 1,434
Atend of year FER 7,891 7,394

Dali Foods Group Company Limited -
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19.

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a
provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighed outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions.

Bills receivable are bank acceptance bills that are unconditionally
accepted by banks within the maturity period, and there is no loss
allowance for impairment of bills receivable.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

19. B 5 MEWORK 0 B FEWCE B (46D)

As at December 31, 2020
Within
90 days
20 KA
Expected credit loss rate TRERE BB X 0.59%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BRETAR{E (A R¥EFIT) 846,347
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) FEER(E &8
(ANR¥EETFT) 5,015
As at December 31,2019
Within
90 days
XA
Expected credit loss rate FEHREEEHEX 0.93%
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BREAR{E (A RET7T) 672,528
Expected credit losses (RMB’000) FEHA(E &8
(ANR¥TT) 6,236

-

iz

RERE BERABEEREETRED T
MEtERMEERE - B#BEXNHERAEAR
BLUSERANZERF 254 B a
HEEE - A5t ERMIBARMEZR -
ERRERNRBSHARNSHNERBES
B~ BRI R AR RSB R TRRAIRY & 12
IRy =

FEW R B AR RTIHARABFAERNN
RITARREE > BUELBERERE
RBEREME -

TREBABER HIAEEEZRI
RIEFTAZEERBRER

R-E-EF+"A=+—H

91 to 181 to
180 days 365 days Total
91F 180K 181F 365K st
1.05% 19.57% 0.87%
46,384 12,219 904,950
485 2,391 7,891
H-E—-hE+=B=+—8H
91to 181to
180 days 365 days Total
91F 180k 181F 365K A5t
2.31% 0.22% 1.00%
48,311 19,350 740,189
1,115 43 7,394
mEBEBRRE - FI 2020 221
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20. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

222

20.  PEASHRIH B HoAth EWSGRK o

2020 2019

—EEHE —ETNE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT ARETIT

Prepayments to suppliers B EEEH TR 383,502 382,373
Interest receivables FEURFI 2 115,141 191,380
Other receivables HiEWERIE 74,331 83,509
VAT recoverable (i) FHRINEER () 44,972 39,388
Prepayments for advertising services EERFETENIE 12,345 8,740
Deposits R 2,077 4313
632,368 709,703

(i) The Group’s sales of goods are subject to Value Added Tax (‘VAT”) in Mainland China.
Input VAT on purchases can be deducted from output VAT payable. The VAT
recoverable is the net difference between output VAT and deductible input VAT. The
applicable tax rate for domestic sales of the Group was 13% in 2020 (2019: 16%
before April 1, 2019 and 13% effective from April 1, 2019).

Prepayments and other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing

and have no fixed terms of repayment. The financial assets included in

the above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. As at December 31, 2020 and
2019, the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited

« Annual Report 2020

0] FEBP B G E BEMNPEIEER (MEE
1) o WEBAEIEILER T B RN IHIEIEE
R0 o IR ER BB ERE A
TR ETEISLERN P ERE c AEEBENHE
MERRERN B -_RFEA13%(ZB—H
FIRIZE-NFMNA—HAIAL% KT
Z—NEMA—BEA13% °
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21.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS

21. BLE BsRAT &G iR B A7 K

2020 2019

—ECEE ) =S

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

s AR%Fx AREBTT

Cash at banks and on hand RITRERRS 12,334,926 10,669,710
Bank deposits RITER 1,590,293 422,699
13,925,219 11,092,409

Less: Pledged short-term deposits B BRI ERER 22 (100,072) (141)
Cash and bank balances B KiR1T45ER 13,825,147 11,092,268

The Group’s cash and bank balances at December 31, 2020 and 2019
were denominated in the following currencies:

AEER _Z_ZEER_T-HE+_AH
= +—HNRERIBTAERLUTY S5t
& :

2020 2019
—ECEE TN

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%Fx AREF T

RMB AR 13,745,464 10,994,058
HKD BT 34,593 49,860
usD e 45,090 48,350
13,825,147 11,092,268

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Bank deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and twelve months depending on the cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective bank deposit rates. The bank
balances and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

EMNRmERBRRAR -

ARBRGEARBAEMER - 24T
AR IR R P 3 9 (M B B IR AR5 ) e (45 B
EERNEEERE)  ~EREEBEE
RECEIIEXFNRTRARB RGBS
HMEH -

IRTIRERBES HRTERN LT ER
KEMA R - RITERBH—BE+ZE
BAT%E > RFAEENRTFE2MEIL U
BRIRIT A RGBS  IRITHERRK
BIRERERNEE RF BERERR
TEACERBIERTT ©
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22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 22, B 5 MEASE K VE B A 22
2020 2019
k- ek 23 =N
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREEFTT
Trade payables B 5 (I RIE 817,407 938,368
Bills payable FE(S 2R 166,580 409,400
983,987 1,347,768

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the

R|BEER > REXZHHEINEZE

reporting period, based on the transaction date, is as follows: RIBE A ERZENR T
2020 2019
—EEHE —E—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fx ARETIT
Within 90 days 90 XA 827,297 937,946
91 to 365 days 91 & 365K 148,664 402,461
1to 2 years 1E28 4,457 2,346
Over 2 years 2FEL 3,569 5,015
983,987 1,347,768

HAENERURNERR 2S5+
BE=Z+—HEHENEHEERARKE
100,000,000 TCEIEIHF(ZE—NE+ZAH
=+—8 8 (Mizk21) e

Certain bills payable were secured by the pledge of the Group’s short-
term deposits of RMB100,000,000 at December 31, 2020 (December 31,
2019: Nil) (note 21).

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled B REAMIBAREE > —Mi30 RN
within 30 days. The bills payable are non-interest-bearing and are o BAEBFE » —MI365 KA
normally settled within 365 days. 8o
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23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23, HARENT R IE B RERTEEH
2020 2019
—ECTH “ZNF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT AEBETIT
Contract liabilities SHEE 511,667 538,787
Payroll and welfare payables I TE K& 332,283 308,350
Payables for purchase of property, BEYZE  BEMRREDN
plant and equipment eI 3R IE 205,982 192,395
Other tax payable HAMEIIRIE 172,534 156,090
Other payables HAMETFRIE 145,201 144,284
Accruals FESTE A 142,054 145,697
Payables for purchase of prepaid land EEENITHBEEREN
lease payments eI 3R IE 87,150 87,150
1,596,871 1,572,753
Details of contract liabilities are as follows: SHREEFBUT
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2020 2019 2019
—E-FHF “E-NF “ENF
+-A=+—H +t-RA=+—H —RB—H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%BTT ARHEETIT ABETIT
Short-term advances received BIE F iz
from customers
Sale of goods HESm 510,855 538,787 348,266
Rental Gickra 812 - -
Total contract liabilities BHIBELELE 511,667 538,787 348,266

Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on

HMEARBESERR TSt ERARE

demand. KEFEIE o
24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 24. BtESRITIEE
2020 2019
—E-EE “2NEF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity RMB’000
BERHE (%) HE ARETRT ERFE®) AHE  ARETR
Current DA
Bank loans RITER
— unsecured — migIA 2-3 2021 1,917,681 - = =
ENREREBRARRE -« FIR 2020 225
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25. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year are
as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

BIEHUR
FREERIAS EREENSET :

BRIERIIE EL

2020
ZECEF
Withholding
taxes
FEInm
RMB’000
ARBTT
At January 1,2020 A _ECEF—-H—H (122,793)
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FANIbR BB RNVIELERIE (M5 10)
profit or loss during the year (note 10) 54,793
Gross deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2020 Jj{‘: =B F+_H=+—HH
FIEFRIE & B4R %8 (68,000)
Deferred tax assets RIEFIH &
2020
—g-%F
Losses
available for
Unrealised offsetting
internal against future
sales profit taxable profits Accruals Others Total
Aj LA
REFNE  RRERR
HERH  RFEESE e &R Hith o H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERBTR ARETRT AEBTR ARETRT ARETR
At January 1, 2020 R_E_ZTE—-A—H 11,329 4,250 34,640 13,999 64,218
Deferred tax (charged)/ ER F0RE) A
credited to the statement of  $BZARAVIELL
profit or loss during the year  #318 (Fi{£F 10)
(note 10) (197) (130) (1,390) 51 (1,666)
Gross deferred tax assetsat = RZEZE
December 31,2020 +ZA=+—HBK
EIERIEE E4A%E 11,132 4,120 33,250 14,050 62,552

226 Dali Foods Group Company Limited « Annual Report 2020



Notes to the Financial Statements

FAFSER R MIEE

December 31, 2020 —ZE_Z&

F1+_HB=+—H

25. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

ﬁ?@ﬁilﬁ (ﬁE)

SR

2019
“ENF
Withholding
taxes
faiiin
RMB’000
AREEFIT
At January 1,2019 RIZE—-hFE—A—H -
Deferred tax credited to the statement of EW FABREEN
profit or loss during the year (note 10) JEFRIA (5T 10) (122,793)
Gross deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2019 ’3: T—-NFE+ZA=+—HHW
IR IEE 154858 (122,793)
Deferred tax assets BIERITE &
2019
NE
Losses
available for
Unrealised offsetting
internal  against future
sales profit  taxable profits Accruals Others Total
GIfcsiii=
RERNED RIRFERK
HHE A S 1E FEsTER Hh AR5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT ARETFT AREBTT ARETT
At January 1, 2019 RIZ2—NF—B—H 10,202 8,085 21,289 14,083 53,659
Deferred tax credited/ FREA/ (HRRE)
(charged) to the statement B FRAIEIE
of profitorlossduringthe  FRT& (T 10)
year (note 10) 1,127 (3,835) 13,351 (84) 10,559
Gross deferred tax assetsat ~ R ZE—NE
December 31,2019 +ZB=1+—HH
IEERIBE AR 11,329 4,250 34,640 13,999 64,218

EIERBEEEHRAMN T TF+ -4

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax losses of
RMB58,415,000 as at December 31, 2020 (2019: RMB13,017,000), as they
have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

ENRmERBRARE

=+—HB A RK 58,415,000 TTHIFR IEET 18

(—=—

NEINEET —
&SRR w7 BT A

HE  ARKE13,017,0007T) FESE >
RRAZEBEER—

BERSHENNE
BB 0 R RFAIEEA
PRIRES M IART IR ©
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25.

26.

27.

228

DEFERRED TAX (continued) 25. BRIEFIH (&)
Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax REPEDERERZE > R ERMAR L
is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign W B EEIEIMNGEET RIS BB
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement W10%FENIR - ZRMEBZZENE—AH
is effective from January 1, 2008 and applies to earnings after December —HEEN > TERAR _EE+tE&E+_-H
31, 2007. In addition, under the Arrangement between Mainland China =+—HZBEENRF © LI BIE(A
and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of MM EBENTHRERMNEMEERESE
Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to BARABA L ERIR N2 HE) R EMRER »
Taxes on Income and its relevant regulations, a qualified Hong Kong tax SEREBREEREMAS EaEA Al &
resident will be liable for withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend FAETERABRE2% I £ BEBER
income derived from the PRC if the Hong Kong tax resident is the TR B R Y B B U A 1R 2 500 A A2 TR N
“beneficial owner” and holds 25% or more of the equity interests of the R MAERMS > BREREA®w BT
PRC company. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. Deferred tax TENF—B—HEEENEMNFTTIIE
liabilities have been provided for based on the expected dividends to be IEREBEBEENREZENWBARENER
distributed from these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future in respect RAETFEHRE F 0 IkFI NG B 5T B o
of the profits generated since January 1, 2008.
DEFERRED INCOME 26. BIEWA
2020 2019
ZEITHE —E—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AERBTT AR¥ETTT
At beginning of year FEH) 370,925 370,218
Additions during the year FRRE 19,042 29,263
Released to profit or loss BEiEm (31,660) (28,556)
At end of year FR 358,307 370,925
Government grants have been awarded for the construction of certain ENBWEATNETFYE s BMELSH
items of property, plant and equipment and prepaid land lease EENESRETEN T A EHIEEEEN
payments of the Company’s subsidiaries. There are no unfulfilled FFHEES o M4 B X M BE R E R IE 4
conditions and contingencies relating to these grants. SR o
SHARE CAPITAL 27. A
Shares 5401
2020 2019
—ETHF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREFIT
Authorised: ERE -
50,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 50,000,000,000 J& &A% 0.01 B ITHY
HKDO0.01 each RS 409,085 409,085
Issued and fully paid: BETREE
13,694,117,500 ordinary shares of 13,694,117,500 P& &% 0.01 B 0HY
HKDO0.01 each =Gl 112,712 112,712
Dali Foods Group Company Limited « Annual Report 2020
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27.

28.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Shares (continued)

A summary of movements in the Company’s issued share capital and
share premium is as follows:

27. WA (4)

ey (%)

UTBERBEETRARKRD BEEE
BIKEE

Number of Equivalent
issued and nominal
fully paid value of
ordinary ordinary Share
shares shares premium Total
BEITR
BYLf  SERED
BiERHE BiEh R E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREBTT ARETR
AtJanuary 1,2019 A\_E-NEFE—H—H 13,694,117,500 112,712 1,260,189 1,372,901
Final 2018 dividend declared BEER_ZS—NEXRERE - - (906,308) (906,308)
Interim 2019 dividend declared BERK_ZE—NERHRE - - (353,881) (353,881)
At December 31,2019 and ‘f:;ﬁ—jlfﬁ‘l'_ﬁ —+—H
January 1,2020 “ETEF—HF—H 13,694,117,500 112,712 - 112,712
At December 31, 2020 N_E_EFE+"H=+—H 13,694,117,500 112,712 - 112,712
RESERVES 28. {ilifhi

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the
current and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on pages 152 to 153 of the financial statements.

Share premium

The share premium of the Group represents the amount paid by
shareholders for capital injection in excess of its nominal value. Details
of the movements in the share premium are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents capital contributions from
the equity holders of the Company. The additions in prior years
represent the injections of additional paid-in capital by the equity
holders of the subsidiaries to the respective companies. The deductions
in prior years represent the acquisitions of paid-in capital of the
subsidiaries by the Group from the Controlling Shareholders which are
accounted for as distributions to the Controlling Shareholders.

el

REFEERBEFE > ~EERNREDE
RAEMEF 2N MBREF152E 1538
NEHRmEEE -

HR 3 i (L
AEENKRMDSERENRREIEEMS
NHEEEHEEERNE D ° RO GER
BEIFBFRNAHEZET K -

LR

FEBNGHEFBRREAARDEEFA
ABNERLE - BEFEAERNEAS
oA AR QR EABINEBRESR -
BEFERVIERERRREIERRRE

BB ABNEHER (RO RIS
DIRAER) ©
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28.

29.

30.

230

RESERVES (continued)
Statutory reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations applicable to wholly-
foreign-owned companies, certain entities within the Group are required
to allocate a certain portion (not less than 10%), as determined by their
boards of directors, of their profit after tax in accordance with the PRC
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles to the statutory reserve fund
(the “SRF”) until such reserve reaches 50% of the registered capital.

The SRF is non-distributable except in the event of liquidation and,
subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations,
can be used to offset accumulated losses or be capitalised as issued
capital.

In accordance with relevant regulations and the articles of association,
a subsidiary registered in the PRC as a domestic company is required to
appropriate 10% of its net profit (after offsetting accumulated losses
from prior years) to the SRF. After the balance of such reserve reaches
50% of the entity’s capital, any further appropriation is at the discretion
of the company. The SRF can be utilised to offset accumulated losses or
increase capital. However, the balance of the SRF must be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the capital after such usages.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at December 31, 2020, the Group did not have significant contingent
liabilities (December 31, 2019: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's bills payable and letters of credit, which are
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 21 to the
financial statements.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited -
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29.

30.
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31. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period:

31. R

REIREHR > AEBEVERERENT :

32.

2020 2019
—ECEHF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTr AREFIT
Contracted, but not provided for: BB RFHERE -
Property, plant and equipment M~ BBERRE 297,177 236,781
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BAMTIARRS
(a) Transactions with related parties: (a) BRI S .
(i)  Sales of products (i) HEES
2020 2019
—ECEHF “E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT AREBTFIT
Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd. BLBENTLBEERAR 180 116

(i)

The sales to Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd., which is a
company controlled by the Controlling Shareholders, were
made according to the published prices and conditions
offered to the major customers of the Group.

Rental expenses

Rental expenses represent expenses from leases of
properties and prepaid land lease payments which are
charged in accordance with the terms of the agreements
made between the Group and Fujian Dali Foods Group Co.,
Ltd., which is a company controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders.

The operating leases have been recognised as right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities in the financial statements, upon
the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases effective from January 1,
2019. The rental expense for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2020 was RMB19,928,000 (for the twelve
months ended December 31, 2019: RMB19,885,000).

M EZREFNTABEFRA
B (A REEZERRKRRZERNA
8)) fEH BV ELIRBRM T
FEETBEEPNERMER
RAFAHIEST ©

HEFX

B E BRI R
AR LA ERIE > A EH
HEEENRRERERAR
(—ERREERRRZERDN
AE)) FRTERZERIIRRURE

(i)

B _E—NE—H— B M
EBMBEREENSE 16REE
% KEHER T HBRERESD
AFAREEREESE &
E_ZETHFA+"H=+—H
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#19928000c( 8 & = &
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32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

232

(a) Transactions with related parties: (continued)

(iii)  Services purchased

Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd.
Hubei Sky Island Lake
Eco&Culture-Tourism Co., Ltd

(former name: Hubei Dali Estate

Co., Ltd.)

32. BT 5 (48)
(a) HRAWEHMIRS @ (8)
(iii) BRERTS
2020 2019
—ECTH —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AR¥TIT
BEZBEMNELBERRAT 654 6,007

AIEREGHE R IRBRAF
(BRAR ILEMNME

BIRAR)

404 2,157

1,058 8,764

The purchases from Hui’an Dali Century Hotel Co., Ltd. and
Hubei Sky Island Lake Eco&Culture-Tourism Co., Ltd, which
are companies controlled by the Controlling Shareholders,

were made according to the published prices and

conditions offered by the associates to their major

customers.

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the

mEZHREMNELBESERA
B K2R 30 R U A RE SR A R
AT (HIERRRIERBAE)
EHBVRBIIRIBE AMER
EREMEARRETEHIEZRER
BORMHIEST ©

(b) AL EEMAEHMW :

Group:

2020 2019
—ZECTHF “Z2—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#Fx AREBETT
Salaries e 16,916 16,508

Pension scheme contributions BEELSFHEET AT ZERN
and social welfare 57 51
16,973 16,559

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to

the financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (a)(i), (a)(ii) and
(a)(iii) above also constitute connected transactions or continuing

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.

Dali Foods Group Company Limited
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33.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. RIS R T R

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2020

Financial assets

- Jant- 1 3

— T —F

TRMEE

RREIRE AR T ANREENT !

Financial assets
at amortised cost

P SH Y A5 AR

HERIEE

RMB’000

ARSTT

Trade and bills receivables B 5 FEWRIE K FEU Rk 899,559
Financial assets included in prepayments sHATERIE R AR EIER

and other receivables TREE 191,549

Pledged deposits BIRER 100,072

Cash and bank balances RERIRTTHEER 13,825,147

15,016,327

Financial liabilities

AN

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

FR SR AT AR

HEREE

RMB’000

AR®BTT

Trade and bills payables B 5 NIRRT R 983,987

Interest-bearing bank borrowings sTEIRTEE 1,917,681
Financial liabilities included in other AR MENTUERESTE RN

payables and accruals iy =V 580,387

3,482,055

ENRmERBRARE
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33. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 33. FULIE] 5 )R T ()
(continued)
2019 —E-NF
Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets
at amortised cost
B IH R AN AR
HEREE
RMB’000
ARETIT
Trade and bills receivables B 5 W FUE K R E R 736,874
Financial assets included in prepayments 5T AFE(T FRIE K Bt FE U R IERY
and other receivables THEE 279,202
Pledged deposits BIRER 141
Cash and bank balances RS RIRTTAERR 11,092,268
12,108,485
Financial liabilities TRt E
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
b Xz ) DS
HEpas
RMB’000
ARETIT
Trade and bills payables B 5 B RIE R R =% 1,347,768
Financial liabilities included in other FFAEMERIBREST &R
payables and accruals THER 569,526
1,917,294

234
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34.

35.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments reasonably
approximate to fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables, trade and
bills payables, financial assets included in prepayments and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
and amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the interest-bearing bank borrowings have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group’s
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings as at
December 31, 2020 were assessed to be insignificant.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise bank loans, cash
and bank balances and pledged deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The
Group has various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland China and nearly all
transactions are conducted in RMB. As nearly all of the Group’s assets
and liabilities were denominated in RMB, the subsidiaries of the
Company in Mainland China were not subject to significant foreign
currency risk. As at December 31, 2020, the Group’s assets and liabilities
denominated in HKD were mainly held by the Company and certain
subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland China which had currencies
other than RMB as their functional currencies. The Company and those
subsidiaries incorporated outside Mainland China also held bank
balances denominated in RMB, from which foreign currency exposures
arise.

34.

35.

ENEREERRAR -

ER T HI 2P B A TG )

FEETMTANKEERRATESEM
% o

EEECMRERIBEEEY ERF
o BERBUWRIEREWREE - BZEM
IR BN EIE ~ st A TR IR H A E
WCRRIERY = B E B LU 5T A B FE (T /IR
KESHERNERE EUKREW I B
NEME HATEERKIZEE LREK
EERE > HEREFETAREHAEHR
TR}

STRIRITEEN A TEDUEBHELURR -
EERBERFGIHENITANRAEHNE
MIREMARREAESE - N T T
F+TR=+—RH> xEEHFERITE
ENBSTEARBRERNA T EZIK
AHEBTEK -

<2 Tl oL B P B e BBCSR

FEENETEZSHTABERTER ]
ERIBTEFRERTFR  LEFEMTA
NWEBENREREEENEEZSEES -
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TREEREE > WEZBRBHRERES
FETRIES -

FERSRIAESRNEZRBHINEE
B EERBATBETER EFEH
BRI EEESERBREER  BRBR
BN o

AN B
AEENEBEBZURPEAM > REF
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EREEREBDHUARESE > 72T
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND  35. 4xFllJa\bass Bl B A2 5y B (&)

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued) AN e B (48

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the TRITHRIRERR > AEBBFRRANEF
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the HKD exchange BRAEENERE B TEXRSIEREEH)
rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's profit before HSRE (FTBEEMtMESRFIEE)

tax and the Group's equity.

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in HKD rate before tax in equity*
BITEE BRI AT EF i
E3R (P i GRd)  18hn GRd) *
% RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt AR®TT AR%T

2020 —E-THF
If RMB weakens against HKD HAREHETEZE 1 8 156
If RMB strengthens against HKD 1 A\ RSB THE (1) (8) (156)
Excluding retained profits TR RE BN
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in HKD rate before tax in equity”
S TTER FRAR AR A i
EiR/CRED) 30/ CRi)  s8m,/ Cab)
% RMB’000 RMB’000

Bt ARETT ARETT

2019 —EF—hE
If RMB weakens against HKD WARBEHETEE 1 (1,100) 312
If RMB strengthens against HKD A A RSB THE (1) 1,100 (312)

T EIEREET)

Excluding retained profits
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35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It
is the Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant. For transactions that are not
denominated in the functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without the specific approval of
the Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum exposure to
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on
past due information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification as at December 31.

The accounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at December 31, 2020

12-month ECLs

35.

<5 Rl R ey B ) PR B BOER ()

{5 BB
FAEEERERTAGELBRRFZE=
HERRS - AEBZBRBAAERRE
BEHETEE R R > YRKBEERSE
2R o b5 > REEFHEE R B WGRIAR
B MAEREZIERERILAEAR 5Ll
JELERE B B ThEE B sHEZ R 5
FEBEARAEEEREETERENERT
TERMEEH -

B e JEL R B AR A H AN
TRETRTZA=+—HARBAEERE
ERRZEEERNAZZESEERRE
HIZRBEIMER CRIFE BRI
FANRFZHMER) - LU FERRA]
par R

ETGEATHEEBIREE -
HR-E-TE+-HA=+—H

Lifetime ECLs

BERER
12 BB SFHATAHA
JEHiEEE5E SHEE
Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
E—R & st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TT ARETFT AR%TT
Trade and bills receivables B 5 REWGEIE R eI R ik - 899,559 899,559
Financial assets included in FTATERIER
prepayments and HEWEIER
other receivables SRS E
— Normal g 5 191,549 - 191,549
Pledged deposits HIRGER
— Not yet past due — EREH 100,072 - 100,072
Cash and bank balances IRE& R IRTTAEER
— Not yet past due — M REHA 13,825,147 - 13,825,147
14,116,768 899,559 15,016,327
ENEmERBRAE . IR 2020 237
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35.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

As at December 31,2019

S8R (48)
B-E—-h&E+=-A=+—H

12-month ECLs

Lifetime ECLs

35, <pxil g P R e SR (4

el EEIREDzE!
121@8 FHATEHA
TERR(EE R EE/1E
Simplified
Stage 1 approach Total
B4R liGh (7 485
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFT AREBTT
Trade and bills receivables B 5 REWGEIE R R R ik - 736,874 736,874
Financial assets included in FFATEFIER
prepayments and HhfEUFRIBRY
other receivables SRIEE
— Normal —IFE 279,202 - 279,202
Pledged deposits BIREm
— Not yet past due — M REH 141 - 141
Cash and bank balances RE& R IRTTAERR
— Not yet past due — MR EER 11,092,268 - 11,092,268
11,371,611 736,874 12,108,485

For trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach TAEBEBERASLELEHEREZ B SR
MIEREWEEMS @ ERREERNER

IREATS IR M SE 19358 -

for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 19 to
the financial statements.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit

ERAERREEZRERIBEZEERR
2B L EEHBEN M BRAMEE 194K o

risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 19 to the
financial statements.
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring
liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both its

financial instruments and financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and

projected cash flows from operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,

35, <pxil g P R e SR (4

BN & 2

FAEBEABRADESHI TARRH
ERiERAR - WTAEEHS/MIT AR
TREE (WE S REGEE) NEAA KA
SHSERIRENE -

RIREMR > AEETHEERSARM
RARVEEE AT -

is as follows:
2020 b Jenk -3
Less than 3 3to12 1to5 Over
On demand months months years 5 years Total
BEX LR3ER 3E12M8R 1E5§ sENE &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AERBTR ARETR ARETR AERBTR AEETR
Trade and bills payables BoREITBERENER - 983,987 - - - 983,987
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 52 IR1TEE - - 1,956,118 - - 1,956,118
Financial liabilities included in 5t AELfh (S ZRIE Ko e 5t
other payables and accruals ERNSHas 287,255 293,132 - - - 580,387
287,255 1,277,119 1,956,118 - - 3,520,492
2019 —E-hE
Lessthan 3 3to12 1to5 Over
Ondemand months months years 5years Total
BEXK DR3MER 3ENRER 1858 S5ELE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETRT AR%ETR
Trade and bills payables BEEMTIBRENEE - 1,347,768 = = . 1,347,768
Financial liabilities included in &t A BB RIE KL fE AT
other payables and accruals ERNSHEs 289,981 279,545 = = - 569,526
289,981 1,627,313 - - - 1,917,294

ENRmERBRARE
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35.

240

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of
the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements.

35.

<5 Rl R ey B ) PR B BOER ()

HEAEH
AERBEFAEENTIEZERERREIED
FERERE MR RENERLEER » UX
FEBUERRREENRAL -

AERERHERAEBIRBEERRE
HRAMEENRERBEEEFLRAE -
DT NABREN GRS ZEENARR
HRROREXMN  ARRFBEEFRIE
1THIRD o A& [E 3 = E B (E I S0 8B i N
BERER ©

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total liabilities AEBUEESRIEEXREREAR  HHiR
divided by capital plus total liabilities. Capital represents equity BERUBARIN -B8EEEETE - EAXIE
attributable to the owners of the parent. The gearing ratio as at the end BATEE AEGED - REREHAERMN
of each reporting period was as follows: BESMBLEERNT !
2020 2019
—TEF —ENEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREETTT
Total liabilities ISREREE] 5,245,320 3,670,986
Equity attributable to owners of the parent REVER ANFELER 17,465,436 16,276,626
Capital and total liabilities BARKEERE 22,710,756 19,947,612
Gearing ratio BEAMEE 23.1% 18.4%

Dali Foods Group Company Limited -
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. ALnnA]BIRIR
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the Company UTARRSIEREBEBEAERATMIER TR
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: &R
2020 2019
—TEH “ZNF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T ARETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENEE

Investment in a subsidiary RERABNEE 1 1
Total non-current assets JERENE EARE 1 1
CURRENT ASSETS ENEE

Cash and bank balances IRE MIRTTAEER 71,742 200,953
Due from subsidiaries FEWLH B8~ Bl 7R IE 586,461 -
Other receivables HihEURIE 11 5
Total current assets MENEERE 658,214 200,958
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEnafE

Interest-bearing bank borrowings SHRIRITEE 417,681 -
Due to subsidiaries FE{S B A B RIE - 38,648
Other payables and accruals HiE (I RIB R et & A 17,898 18,412
Total current liabilities mENEEAEE 435,579 57,060
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEERE 222,635 143,898
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BELAE R REI&E 222,636 143,899
Net assets BEEFE 222,636 143,899
EQUITY i

Share capital %N 112,712 112,712
Reserves (note) & (MIEE) 109,924 31,187
Total equity 4B %A 222,636 143,899
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 36. AARIMBHIRIEH (41
COMPANY (continued)
Note: FsE -
Asummary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: KABEERENT
Share
Exchange fluctuation Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BipEE ERIEERE {REimF 4act
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AR®TT ARET T AREET T

At January 1, 2019 w-E—h&—HA—A 1,260,189 411,159 241,638 1,912,986
Total comprehensive income for the year — FER4R S W 4R%E - 58,464 1,042,278 1,100,742
Final 2018 dividend declared CERZZE—/N\FREKE (906,308) - (906,308)
Interim 2019 dividend T -hEFRERE (353,881) (439,722) (1,282,630) (2,076,233)
At December 31,2019 and HRIE—hE+ZA=+—HK
January 1, 2020 —E-EH—HF—H - 29,901 1,286 31,187
Total comprehensive income for theyear  FER4RE W 4REE - (54,704) 2,772,917 2,718,213
Final 2019 dividend declared CER_Z—NERPRE - - (1,736,732) (1,736,732)
Interim 2020 dividend ZETRFHHBEKRE - - (902,744) (902,744)
At December 31, 2020 H-ZE-FH+=A=+—H - (24,803) 134,727 109,924
37. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 37. bW
There was no material subsequent event undertaken by the Group after rKEBRBE_EZ_EF+_H=+—H
the year ended December 31, 2020. I FEERB I EETERIREAARER -
38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38. IZUEM B
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the BHEBERITHESEEN _E_—F=4
board of directors on March 29, 2021. TN BRZAERIRRE o
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Definitions

“AGM”
MERBERG

“Articles” or “Articles of Association”
F4MAN ) 31 T=A24MA1

“Audit Committee”
I=EZEE89)

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

EEg)

“BVI”
IREEREE

“China” or “PRC”
TFRE
“Company”

/Nl

“Corporate Governance Code”
or “CG Code”
M2 ERTR

»

“Director(s)

ME%)

“ESG
FESGJ

» o« » o«

“Group”, “our Group”, “we” or “us”

Mg/ 8 M3

“HKS” or “HKD"
Bl

“Hong Kong”
r&%E)

the annual general meeting of the Company

TRERRBFRE

the articles of association of the Company which became effective on the Listing
Date and as amended from time to time

7 L BB AE MRS RHEST A A B E 2 4RA)

the audit committee of the Board
EERBERZEET

the board of directors of the Company

EY/NSIE

the British Virgin Islands
HEMRES

the People’s Republic of China excluding for the purpose of this annual report,
Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan
FEARREME > MAFRMS » FEEESE RFIFHTHEREE

Dali Foods Group Company Limited (2 F| & & & B A& BB A 8]), an exempted
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands on November 4, 2014
ENEREEERAR  — KR _Z2—NF+—ANBEMREEEFMMIIN
EHRRAT

code on corporate governance practices contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

L AARRIMN R P S b R BRI TR

the director(s) of the Company
KABEER

Environmental, Social and Governance

R LB RER

collectively, the Company and its subsidiaries

IR B R EM B R BRI

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BT BBEEE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
FEEARHTHE
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Definition

“Listing Date” November 20, 2015, the date on which the Shares were listed on the Stock
Exchange

r M HE “Z2—HF+—RAZ+8 > ROREPT EMIERR

“Listing Rules” the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange

F Er#RA)] HizZ g s LR Al

“Model Code” the model code for securities transactions by directors of listed issuers as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

MEAESPA FRBIMER R E T AESIETR S 5 R %ETE

“Prospectus” the prospectus of the Company dated November 10, 2015

AR ETR) AABIHA ZE—AF+—B+HNBRERE

“RMB” Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

N AR REPEEE

“Securities Dealing Code” a code of conduct adopted by the Company

Eioeay=t=—all R BRI T 2T R

“SFO” the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

85 R ERE 1511 EREBIE STIE GBS MR EAE R

“Share(s)” share(s) in the capital of our Company with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each

MRg17 ] KA BIEAFEREE0.01 BTN

“Shareholder(s)” holder(s) of the Shares

MR%ER [EAREST=DN

“Share Option Scheme” the share option scheme adopted by our Company on August 25, 2015 for the

benefit of its employees, Directors, customers and suppliers of our Group,
business or joint venture partners and certain advisors of our Group and their
respective employees, a summary of the principal terms of which is set forth in
“Appendix IV — Statutory and General Information — D. Share Option Scheme” to
the Prospectus

MEERetE st &) KRB AERREE « EF ~ TR RMER - EHFNSERHERAEERE TR
BREESENEENN aN _S—AFN\B Z+EHRMNERESS > &
FERRVBEHCIBIREIE TSR0 — AT K—RER — D BERES

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
THS 5SS FIT BEBBERZNARAHT

“%” per cent

M9%] Bt
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